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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.

GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS
The following are not technical definitions, bueyhare helpful for the reader’s understanding ofisderms used in
the notes to the financistatements of the Compa

Terms Definitions
/day Per day

AESA Albanesi Energia S..

AFIP Federal Administration of Public Rever

AJSA Alba Jet S.A

ASA Albanesi S.A.

AVRC Alto Valle Rio Colorado S./

BADCOR Adjusted BADLAR rati

BADLAR Interest rate paid by financial institutions on g on time deposits for over one million
pesos

BCRA Central Bank of Argentir

BDD Bodega del Desierto S.
Compafiia Administradora del Mercado Mayorista EiéotS.A. (Wholesale Electricity Market

CAMMESA
Management Compar

CcC Combined cycl

IFRIC International Financial Reporting Interpretatiormn@nittes

CNV National Securities Commissi

CTE Central Térmica Ezeiza located in Ezeiza, Buenoss

CTF Central Térmica Frias, located in Frias, Santiagd=dter:

CTI Central Térmica Independencia located in San Migeelucuman, Tucumé

CTLB Central Térmica La Banda located in La Banda, 8gotiel Ester

CTMM Central Térmica Modesto Maranzana located in RiartouCdrdob

CTR Central Térmica Roca S.A./The Comp

CTRIi Central Térmica Riojana located in La Rioja, LajB

CVP Variable Production Ca

Dam: Cubic decameter. Volume equivalent to 1,000 (oousand) cubic mete

DH Historical Availability

DIGO Offered guaranteed Availabili

Availability Percentage of time in which the power plant or nregrly, as applicable, is in operation
(generating power) or available for power genertiut noicalled by CAMMES/

DMC Minimum Availability Committec

DO Target Availability

DR Registered Availabilit

The Groug Albanesi S.A. jointly with its subsidiaries and ethielated compani

ENARSA Energia Argentina S..

Energia Plu Plancreated under ES Resolution No. 128

ENRE National Electricity Regulatory Authori

EPEC Empresa Provincial de Energia de Cérd

FACPCE Argentine Federation of Professional Councils imfamic Science

FONINVEMEM Fund for investmentrequired to increase the electric power supphe\WENM

GE General Electri

GECEN Generacion Centro S.

GLSA Generacion Litoral S.A

GMSA Generacion Mediterranea S.

Large Users
GROSA

WEM agents classified according to their consunmptito: GUMAs, GUMEs, GUPAs and
GUDIs
Generacion Rosario S.,



Free translation from the original prepared in $glafor publication in Argentina

GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (Cont'd)

Terms Definitions
Large Demand from Distributors’ customers, withldezd or demanded supply of over
GUDIs
300kW
GUMAs Major Large Usel
GUMEs Minor Large User
GUPA:« Large User« Individuals
GW Gigawatt Unit of power equivalent to 1,000,000,0043t<
GWh Gigawat-hour Unit of energy equivalent to 1,000,000,000tsvabu
HRSC Heat recovery steam gener:
IASB International Accounting Standards Bc
IGJ Legal Entities Regulat
IPC Consumer Price Indi
IPIM Wholesale Price Ind:
kv Kilovolt Unit of electromotive force which is equil 1,000 volt
kw Kilowatt Unit of power equivalent to 1,000 we
kWh Kilowatt-hour Unit of energy equivalent to 1,000 watts |
LGS General Companies L
LVFVD Sales liquidations with maturity date to be def
MAPRQ Major Scheduled Maintenar
MAT Futures marki
WEM Wholesale Electric Mark
MMm3 Million cubic meter
MVA Mege-volt ampere, unit of energy equivalent to 1 volt ampere x 1C
MW Megawatt Unit of power equivalent to 1,000,000 &
MWh Megawatt hour Unit of energy equivalent to 1,000,0@ttshoul
ARG GAAF Argentine Generally Accepted Accounting Princi|
IAS International Accounting Standa
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standz
NAUDCO New Agreed Upon Date for Commercial Opera
OoDs Sustainable DevelopmeObijective:
ON Negotiable Obligatior
GDF Gross Domestic Prodt
PWPS Pratt & Whitney Power System |
RECPAM (Purchasing
Power Parity Result of exposure to the change in the purchgsimger of the current

Regulatory framework for the sale of energy to CAMSA through the "WEM Supply

Resolution No. 220/07 Contracts" under Energy Secretariat Resolution2260/07

RG General Resolutior

RGA Rafael G. Albanesi S..

RSE Corporate social responsibil

RT Technical Pronouncemer

SADI Argentine Interconnection Systi
ES Energy Secretari

SEK Swedish crowr

GSE Government Secretariat of Ene
SHCT Health, Safety and Hygiene at w:

Empresa de Transporte de Energia Eléctrica porilisién Troncal del Noroeste

TRASNOA S.A. Argentino S.A
UG Generating un
cGu Cash Generating Ui

usD US Dollars
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Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2019

To the Shareholders of GMSA,

In compliance with current legal and regulatoryyis@mns, the Board of Directors submits for younsideration this
Annual Report, the Summary of Activity, the Finaal®tatements, Statements of Comprehensive IncBtagments of
Changes in Equity, Statements of Cash Flows, an@dNtw the Financial Statements for the year eridezsday,
December 31, 2019.

1. ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

GMSA'’s main line of business is the convention&rthal power generation. It has six thermal powantd operating
throughout the whole country fed with natural gasvall as diesel as alternative fuel. They sellehergy generated in
accordance with different regulatory frameworks. Vs nominal installed capacity is 900 MW.

Nominal installed

Power Plant capacity Resolution Location

Central Térmica Modesto Maranzana (CTM 350 MW ES Nos. 220/07, 1281/06 Plus and SRRyME 01/ Rio CuartoCérdobi

Central Térmica Independencia (CTI) 220 MW (Ef/z'\g)?.sg 220/07, 1281/06 Plus, SEE 21/16 and SRRyME San Miguel de Tucuman, Tucuméan
Central Térmica Frias (CTF) 60 MW ES 220/07 and SRRyME 01/2019 Frias, Santiago del Estero

Central Térmica Riojana (CTRi) 90 MW ES 220/07 and SRRyME 01/2019 La Rioja, La Rioja

Central Térmica La Banda (CT LB) 30 MW SRRyME 01/2019 La Banda, Santiago del Estero
Central Térmica Ezeiza (CT E) 150 MW SEE 21/16 Ezeiza, Buenos Aires

Total nominal installed capacity 900 MW

GMSA is controlled by Albanesi S.A., an investimgddinancing company, which holds 95% of its cdpitad votes.
ASA was established in 1994. Through its subsidgadnd related entities, the Company has investedei energy
market, in the power generation and commerciabpasiegment, its main line of business to date.

Grupo Albanesi had at the date these financiadstants were signed a total installed capacitys#A MW, representing
6.1% of the total installed thermoelectric capagitrgentina, it being expanded with additionaB28W with all the
new projects awarded and currently under way.

Grupo Albanesi entered the electricity market i@£2@vith the purchase of the power plant Luis PidBuana S.A. In
this way, the development of the electricity matketame one of the main purposes of the Group.

2013
2000 Refurbishment of
Construction CT GROSA 60MW
Solalban 120MW. 2y
2012 CTE 50MW
2008 Repair CTR 130MW CTI 50MW
Enlargement CTMM Acquisition CTLB 30MW CT Timbiles 170 MW
120MW CTR 60MW
2011

2007 Construction CTT 20MW 2017

Sale of interest in Refurbishment o £

Taecival Biiana GROSA 80MW CIRi 50MW

and CTRi 40MW CTMM 100MW

CTI 50 MW
2005 Construction: CTE 100MW
Acquisition of CTMM 2010
FOMW Enlargement CTMM
GOMW 2oLy
— Construction CTF 60MW
2004
Aequisition of share
package in Central Piedra
Buena 620MW
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Variation in the installed capacity

620MW 690MW G690MW 70MW  190MW 310MW 370MW 610MW T770MW B30MW B830MW 390MW 890MW 1150MW 1520MW 1803MW

Capacity to be installed M New Capacity M Capacity

I
I
.- H

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018  2022E

2004 2005

Through EES Resolution No. 287 - E/2017 of May 2@ 7, the EES instructed CAMMESA to call for thaserested
parties to offer new thermal generation focusedlosure of combined cycles and co-generation tdogyo with the
commitment to install and start up new generatioméet the demand in the WEM.

GMSA participated in that call and was awarded psgjects for closure of combined cycles through $EeSolution
926 — E/2017.

One of those projects is the closure of the combayele of the TG06 and TGO7 units at CTMM, locate&io Cuarto,
Province of Cérdoba. The project consists in trstaifation of a new 54 MW Siemens SGT800 gas terlfimith a
guaranteed power of 47.5 MW) and the conversiom @oimbined cycle of the three gas turbines (3xfigoration).

For such conversion, a heat recovery steam gemehatbwill generate steam at two pressures willnstalled at the
outflow of the gas turbines to feed a steam turia@-600 that will supply an additional 65 MW te thetwork, as well
as the necessary infrastructure for its operati@hraaintenance. The project for the closure of CTevhbined cycle
will enable contributing a further 112.5 MW to SADThe addition of the new gas turbine will demamate fuel for the
system. The addition of the steam turbine will tciboite 65 MW, without additional consumption ofefuwith the

complete cycle recording a specific consumptioft,680 Kcal/KWh.

Another awarded project was the closure of the éoetbcycle of CTE TG01, TG02 and TGO03 units. Thajqut related
to this bidding process consists in i) the installaof a fourth Siemens SGT-800 gas turbine ofVBA/ and ii) the
conversion into combined cycle of the four gasineb. For the conversion into combined cycle, arateecovery boiler
will be installed at the gas exhaust of each ofghs turbines, which will produce steam in two poess to feed two
steam turbines (2x1 configuration) that will delivi MW each to the network. The project for thesdre of CTE
combined cycle will enable contributing a furth&3IMW to SADI. Although the new gas turbine toibstalled will
consume additional fuel, the inclusion of two ste@mibines will contribute a further 88 MW withoudditional fuel
consumption, and the two full cycles will have aafic consumption of 1,590 Kcal/KWh.

On September 2, 2019, the SRRYME Resolution Na2@BJ was published whereby the generating agerasdad
projects under ESS Resolution No. 287/2017 wereagized to extend the commercial authorization term

On October 2, 2019, the Company used the optiabkshhed in the Resolution to formally state a Neate for the
Commercial Authorization Committed (NFHCC) undee tltholesale demand agreements entered into in daoooe

with ESS Resolution No. 287/2017 belonging to CTi &TMM, respectively.

For this purpose, the Company has stated as NFH&@mber 6, 2022, for both agreements.
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2. MACROECONOMIC CONTEXT

International context

According to IMF's World Economic Outlook reporsiged in January 2020, global growth in 2019 has lesémated
at 2.9%, despite the slowdown in some emerging@ogmmarkets, particularly India.

A global growth of 3.3% and 3.4% is projected f62@ and 2021, respectively.

From a positive viewpoint, the behavior shown byrkets has been stimulated by indications that theufacturing
activity and international trade are reaching aityg point, by a general reorientation towards aooenmodative
monetary policy, and by intermittently favorablenseabout commercial negotiations between the Urftiedes and
China. However, global macroeconomic data haveyaebshown visible signs of turning points.

Regional context

In Latin America, growth is expected to recovemir®.1% estimated in 2019 to 1.6% and 2.3% in 202D 2021,
respectively. Revisions are due to reduced growdgbgects in Mexico in 2020 and 2021, among othesoss, as a result
of the continuous weaknesses shown by investmeha aignificant downward revision to the growthefeaist for Chile,
which has been affected by social tension. Thessioas are partly offset against an upward revismthe 2020 forecast
for Brazil, thanks to the better attitude followitige approval of the pension reform and the reegwludf stocks-related
problems in the mining sector.

Argentina

The cumulative economic activity for Argentina upNovember 2019 — measured by the EMAE (Monthlyrecoic
Activity Estimator) — showed a 1.9% decrease wibard to the cumulative economic activity for thens period of
2018.

According to the Level of Activity Progress Repprepared by the INDEC, cumulative GDP for the firsee quarters
of 2019 showed a decrease of 1.7% compared withaime period of 2018.

The macroeconomic evolution for the third quarteR@19 resulted in a -4.4% variation in global slypgs-a-vis the
same period of the previous year, according torpieary estimates and measured at 2004 pricesesudt of a 1.7%
decrease in GDP and a -13.4% variation in reabispof goods and services.

The global demand showed a 10.2% decrease in fixesiscapital formation, a 4.9% decrease in privaasumption,
a 0.9% decrease in public consumption, and a 142eéase in real exports of goods and services.

In seasonally adjusted terms with respect to tlversk quarter of 2019, imports grew by 1.3%, priva@esumption
increased by 0.3%, public consumption fell by 0.3¥@ss fixed capital formation maintained its lewehile exports
grew by 2.0%.

The industrial activity measured by the Manufactgrindustrial Production Index (Manufacturing Ilgcreased by
2.3% in October 2019 compared with the same pexfdD18. Regarding the previous month, the origsales with
seasonality records an increase of 9.7%. The cuivellfor the ten-month period of 2019 shows a daseeof 7.2%

3
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compared to the same period of 2018. In OctobeB 2 index for the seasonally adjusted seriesvsha positive
variation of 5.0% as against the previous month,tae series trend-cycle index records a positargation of 0.1% as
against the previous month.

According to the Consumer Price Index (IPC), prisleswed a cumulative increase of 53.8% in 2019 @QR

In the eleven-month period of 2019, exports reach@d’02 billion dollars, and imports, 45.992 bitlialollars.
International trade (exports plus imports) decrdase 10.4% and reached 105.694 billion dollars. Trhde balance
registered a trade surplus of 13.710 billion dsllén the eleven-month period of 2019, exportsdéased by 5.8% (3.257
billion dollars) compared with the same period 018, mainly due to the 13.3% increase in quantigsslting from the
drop in prices by 6.7%. Regarding large items, prinproducts, fuels and energy increased by 28%%p and 2.1%,
respectively. In the eleven-month period of 20b9padrts decreased by 25.3% compared with the samedpaf the
previous year (-15.574 billion dollars). Prices mpped by 5.6%, and quantities reduced by 20.9%. ttapaf capital
goods, intermediate goods, fuels and lubricantds@ad accessories for capital goods, consumetsgand passenger
motor vehicles fell by 31.5%, 15.6%, 33.1%, 16.2%0%, and 56.4%, respectively.

The BCRA met its Monetary Base (MB) target for Gietn2019. In late October, the average MB reachie2B® billion,
which accounted for an overcompliance of $4.9dll{0.4%). The target MB for October of $1.391ibilresults from
applying a monthly variation of 2.5% to the oriditerget for September ($1.411 billion) plus thepant of net foreign
exchange transactions as from September 18 (-&dlich). For November, the Monetary Policy Counailthe BCRA
(COPOM) set a MB growth target of 2.5% comparedhwhie target set for October, in line with BCRA’'smey demand
projections, adjusted by the effects of the recéringe in the cash reserve ratio ($154 billionavoid an excessive
monetary contraction. Accordingly, the resulting MBget for early November 2019 is estimated &&4 billion, which
will be adjusted based on net foreign exchangeséetions for the month.

Structure of the energy sector

Energy demand and consumption in Argentina is pedjtrelated to Gross Domestic Product (GDP), Whiteans that
the greater the economic growth, the greater thea@ated demand for all energy products. In #is¢ %9 years, energy
consumption has shown a historical annual averemsth of 2.7%, with an annual median of 0.8% sif062.

The reduction in energy consumption recorded in82@hd the weak recovery shown in 2019 take placanin
unprecedented context of almost 9 years of econstagnation, with a reduced growth of primary egergnsumption.
In the last four years, this economic stagnatios aiso influenced by the strong gas and electrigitg rebuilding
process. This rate readjustment process has rednlteeduced growth of energy consumption, a prhbtmporary
effect until the country resumes the path of sasthieconomic growth.
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND GDP IN ARGENTINA
500

s National energy consumption (right)

400 GDP Base 1960=100 (left)

PB11960=100
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200 20

100
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1984
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1988
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1992
1994
1996
1998
2000
2002
2004
2006
2008
2010
2012
2014
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The growth in energy consumption during severatyetthe first decade of the 21st century resutaah high economic
growth, which was driven mainly by the demand ofrgy products from the Residential and Commeraeatas, and

to a lesser extent by the growth in Industrial @ecbnsumption, as shown by the levels of gas,lgeesand, in particular,
electricity consumption. The economic stagnatiothefArgentine economy since 2011 has reduced gicergsumption

growth rates, which had shown significant incread®s/e the historical median between 2003 and 241$6,as a result
of the low rates that proved to be unsustainabi¢hfe Argentine economy.

The elasticity of energy consumption in relatior®@DP in the last two political-economic cycles bagn lower than in
previous decades. The restrictions on energy dendaedto insufficient supply and the need to impemergy to
supplement domestic supply had an impact on theamy, and on the Industrial sector in particulérintustrial

development effectively expands, there will be tgeanergy supply needs.

HlSTORl(;:;;‘;‘)ONOMlc ANNUAL GDP ENERGY CONSUPTION E::?zs(-;ryl(/:g;p
1959-2018 2.4% 2.7% 1.13
1959-1969 4.6% 5.7% 1.24
1970-1981 1.6% 3.1% 1.94
1982-1989 -0.3% 1.7% 5.67
1990-2001 3.4% 3.1% 0.91
2002-2019 3.1% 0.8% 0.26

The restrictions on the supply of energy produsitgh as natural gas, in the last cycle of econgmiwth through to
2011 and the relatively moderate growth in energyand in broad terrmsare due to problems in the supply of these
energy products, and to the growth in demand floerResidential-Commercial segment in a contextstifyat to modest
industrial recovery rather than from large energgsuimers.

1 From the analysis of a specific sector such adraditg, it may be observed that the demand grosate for this energy product is
higher than the GDP growth rate.
5
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND GDP BY HISTORICAL PERIOD

6% 7%
5% > 6%
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0%
o
0% 3 -1%
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L GDP (left) ] Energy consumption (left) @ Elasticity Energy/GDP (right)

Argentine primary energy consumption is dependeonthydrocarbons, which accounted for 86.8% in 28666% in
2017, and 85.8% in 2018. Few changes are estinfat@®19, probably, 84.6%, due to the increaseirewable energy
generation plants2. This percentage of fossil-$oelrces has dropped slightly in the last yearsrasudt of the obligation
imposed on fuel supplying refineries to incorporatgreasing ratios of biodiesel and bioethanohieirt production of
fossil fuels, such as diesel and gasoline.

PRIMARY ENERGY CONSUMPTION IN ARGENTINA 2018 (75.5
million TOE)

Coal Renewable Other

1.2 5.0 0.4 Hydroelectric

0
6.6% % as
| / 4.6%

1.6%

Oiland
byproducts

Nuclear

834 4 18
31.0% 2.5%
i Natural Gas
40.2
53.2%
PRIMARY ENERGY CONSUMPTION IN ARGENTINA 2019 (76.6
million TOE)
Renewable
Coal Other
6.2 Hydroelectri
0.8 1% 0.4 ydroelectric
3.2
| 4.1%

Oil and
byproducts Nuclear
2.1
23.0 2.7%
30.0%
Natural Gas
41.0
53.5%

2 Latest official data for 2018. Estimate for 2019®§&G Energy Consultants, expressed in million Toh®il Equivalent (TOE) for
Primary Energy Consumption.
6
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Few countries show this structure of heavy reliaogeoil and natural gas byproducts, and typicalyyahose with

significant oil and gas reserves. Although Argemtdoes not have large conventional oil and natymaal reserves in
relation to its domestic demand, it has relevarnéemtial in terms of unconventional gas and oil tgses. Due to the
nature, features and costs of the investments nejuihere are difficulties in modifying the curteanergy primary
consumption structure in the short term; neverdsléhe government has set ambitious targets tedse the use of
renewable energies in power supply.

The high reliance on natural gas — an estimatezPb® 2018 — fluctuates annually based on impdrtsatural gas and
liquefied natural gas (LNG) and on local productiomeet the demand. Despite the increase in daypestuction that
was observed in the 2018 winter season and, pkatiguin 2019, and the imports of gas and LNG frBwlivia, the
potential demand of natural gas is partially ursé@til in winter in the industrial segment and ie thermoelectric
generation segment

SHARE OF NATURAL GAS IN DOMESTIC ENERGY CONSUMPTION
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The countries within the region do not have a $tmacso biased towards hydrocarbons, althoughdbeshow a bias in
the global average and in the USA.

PRIMARY ENERGY CONSUMPTION

100%

=

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

ARG BRA PER CHL MEXICO VZLA coL T&T EE.UU. WORLD

| [N |

HYDROCARBONS NATURAL GAS COAL

HYDROELECTRIC NUCLEAR RENEWABLES

3 In the absence of restrictions on gas demand hifue ©f this product in the primary matrix woulddagen higher.
7
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Final energy consumption in Argentina —net of Igsaed transformation— is evenly distributed betwtenindustrial
and residential/commercial segments. This distigious similar to that in other developing courgnigith a vast territory
and medium sized population.

ARGENTINA - FINAL ENERGY CONSUMPTION 2018 (Milllon TOE)

Other

3.2

5.7% 14.1
13.1 25.2%

23.4%

Residential
Industry

Agriculture
and livestock Commercial
3.6 and Public
. Transportation
6.4% 4.6
17.3 8.3%

30.9%

The characteristics of the Argentine energy supply demand are summarized below:

An atypical breakdown featuring Oil and Gas as pinedominant energy sources, typical only of large
hydrocarbon exporters such as countries in the Milidst, Russia, African LNG exporters, or Veneauel

In addition, between 53% and 54% of internal priyrearergy consumption relies on natural gas withepating
consumption, despite restrictions to discouragem@l demand for this energy source in winter,chiiead to
substitution with alternate fuel sources for eliecphower generation, and to direct restrictionsimaustrial
demand in certain branches of industry, surpassedel countries with significant excess natural gas
production.

The domestic energy supply shows a recovery trerohé with the ongoing stagnation of domestic dedha
which in 2018 and 2019 mitigated unmet demand &siece the increase in investments in recensyatwed
for an improvement in the supply due to the gredtenestic supply.

Both natural gas and electric energy demand isrdlaan the historical trend in some specific segsiesuch
as residential and commercial, due to significaliigstment to the rates charged to consumers. Caoaady,
the growth rates of energy consumption in thesensegs are now lower than the historical rates duthé
greater relative weight in general consumption. i gas and electricity rate freeze imposed ddeember
2019 might revert this trend again, bringing itsgoto that shown in 2002 and 2015.

ELECTRICITY DEMAND AND SUPPLY STRUCTURE

The electricity generation capacity in Argenting lesiolved unevenly over the years, with periodsofeased supply in
response to the prevailing policies aimed at mgetlactricity demand.
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Although CAMMESA has reported there was a nomiraler of 39,704 MW installed and commercially authed in
late 2019 — a net increase in nominal availabiityl, 166 MW or 3.0% with respect to 20184, repréisgneffective
available power because most of the equipmentvis aeailable operating power in the 2019/2020 sunmseason was
close to 33,000 MW, including a rotating reservepproximately 1,800 MW, according to estimates3®&G Energy
Consultants. The difference between nominal afetg¥e power in late 2019 was due to restrictionscertain units
caused by insufficient supply of fuel, difficulti@sreaching the nominal yield, but mainly due éourrent maintenance
tasks or technical limitations in some generatingsu It must also be considered that renewabl&s Wt not operate at
their nominal power at all times but rather resptmdrratic parameters.

Unlike 2017 and 2018, when a significant numbesro&ll engine units5 and GT units were incorporategsponse to
the contracts entered into under Resolution 21/2018019, closing to combined cycle or ST unitTgigeneration
cycles, such as AESA's, started to be incorpordted019, GT units of 159 MW only were incorporatemnpared with
the 1,207 MW incorporated in 2018. In addition, @04W were incorporated at closing to combined cyclempared
with the 598 MW incorporated in 2018, and renewalrlgs — mainly wind — of 1,128 MW compared to #39 MW
incorporated in 2018. No nuclear power generatapacity was incorporated, and availability from toglectric power
plants improved by 22 MW.

NOMINAL ELECTRICITY GENERATION POWER IN ARGENTINA

2019 (MWw)
Nuclear BIOMASS Solar WIND
1,755 4 14?; 1,609
HYDROELECTRIC 4.4% 0.1 s

%/‘ 4.1%

] THERMAL
24,547
. 61.8%

The financial restrictions of the Government hamemapact on the rate of incorporation of hydroeiecand nuclear
power plants as a result of the large investmetisired and the extended execution terms. Thenaufiscal crises of
the Government result in delays and/or suspenditinese large projects. Thus, successive goverrmiente opted to
foster the incorporation of thermoelectric genamtiunits requiring lower investments and shortemge for

implementation, even though they use liquid and fgats. As production of these fuels has had aipt&ole and
increasing development in Argentina — as it nowdesys again after the confirmation of the commermiglloitation of

tight and shale gas —, its supply has not necégdarplied a restriction in the past. However, thigermoelectric
generation policy has encountered increasing ofisinis relating to the supply of locally producesbdil fuels, in

particular natural gas.

11,310 \
28.5%

Between 2016 and 2019, Macri’'s administration ldn@ucan aggressive program for hiring additionakgating power,
both from thermoelectric and renewable sources.ifibarporation of supply was achieved through poaailability
and energy dispatch remuneration contracts indke of thermal units, and available energy purchaseacts in the

41,154 MW were incorporated in 2016, 2,210 MW, ii2@nd 2,357 MW, in 2018.
51n 2018, 201 MW from this type of units were witedm. In 2019, diesel engines of 155 MW and ST wfitsd8 MW were
withdrawn.
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case of wind, solar, biomass generation units amallpower stations.
Nominal Electricity Generation Capacity

The nominal installed capacity is concentratednamrhoelectric generation, although its unavailgbif relatively high
in relation to other sources of generation, exdeptnuclear energy. An important number of thermotic power
generating units show unavailability on a recurigasis, being unable to generate electricity irtigaar during the
winter season, when fuel restrictions cause a tegum available effective power.

CHANGES IN NOMINAL ELECTRICITY GENERATION CAPACITY

Mw
=  BIOMASS 40,000
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M HYDROELECTRIC 25,000
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NOMINAL ELECTRICITY GENERATION CAPACITY (MW)- MAY 2019
REGION ST GT cc DI THERMAL | NUCLEAR | HYDROELECTRIC | SOLAR | WIND | BIOGAS | TOTAL | %
cuyo 120 87 413 40 660 0 1.129 194 1.983 5.0%
COMAHUE 0 501 1.487 81 2.069 0 4.769 153 6.991 | 17.6%
NORTH-WESTERN 261 999 1.472 363 3.095 0 220 185 58 5 3.563 9.0%
CENTRAL 2 826 534 45 1.407 648 918 61 86 7 3.127 7.9%
GREATER BA-LITORAL-BA 3.87 4.701 7.039 820 16.430 1.107 945 504 32 19.018 | 47.9%
NORTH-EASTERN 0 12 0 304 316 0 2.745 3.061 7.7%
PATAGONIA 0 271 301 0 572 0 585 807 1.964 4.9%
MOBILE 0 0 0 0.0%
TOTAL 4.253 7.397 11.246 | 1.653 24.549 1.755 11.311 440 1.608 44 39.707 | 100.0%
THERMAL % 17.3% 30.1% 45.8% 6.7% 100.0%
TOTAL % 61.8% 4.4% 28.5% 1.1% 4.1% 0.1% 100.0%

G&G Energy Consultants estimates that by the en?l0d®, available effective power -which is lowearhdeclared
nominal power for the reasons explained aboveheapproximately 33,000 MW, including a rotatiegarve of 1,800
MW, which was not necessary to be fully used duartited demand in 2019 as in 2018, and the faat élvailable power

was sufficient to meet demand. In February 2018 d#mand for power on a business day exceededstoei¢al record,
reaching 26,320 MW86, with no changes to date.

6 On January 29, 2019, the demand for power on inéssday exceeded the historical record, reacidgVviWh.
10
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RECENT CHANGES IN ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION RECORDS
DAY PREVIOUS RECORDS CURRENT RECORDS VARIATION MW
POWER (MW)
Saturday Feb-25-17 22.390 Dec-30-17 22.543 0.7% 153
Sunday Dec-27-15 21.973 Feb-28-17 22.346 1.7% 373
Working Day Feb-24-17 25.628 Feb-08-17 26.320 2.7% 692
DAY ENERGY (GWh/d) VARIATION GWh
Saturday Jan-18-14 477.9 Dec-30-17 478.4 0.1% 0.5
Sunday Dec-27-15 432.9 Feb-26-17 437.6 1.1% 4.7
Working Day Feb-08-18 543.0 29-Jan-19 544.4 0.3% 14

In early 2020, maximum demand for electric powes hat yet exceeded the levels recorded in 2018revé is greater
excess generation capacity, with thermoelectriaciap playing a leading role as it reached a maxmad 16,337 MW,
compared with 17,023 MW when the highest level maghed, i.e. February 8, 2018.

MAXIMUM ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

MwW
27,000
24,000
21,000
18,000 H Renewables
TG Imports
B Hvdroelectric
12,000
& Thermal
17,023
9,000 ’ 16,337 B Nuclear
6,000
3,000
0 — —opp—— @00 l—————ggp—

8-Feb-2018 (26.320 MW) 29-Ene-2019 (26.113 MW)

Even in those winter seasons in which the avaitgbdf thermoelectric power is somehow affected thg lower
availability of gas, there might be a shortagehia ¢lectric energy supply. However, during the 2@dr¢ter season, it
was evidenced that the incorporation of new elegtower, which increased following the investmenrtgpam in place
since 2016, changed the existing situation. Th@groemuneration of the available power is a reie¥actor for this
availability, which ensures supply.

In addition, there was a reduction in the availgbibf thermal power improved, since generators ensayestments to
maintain the plant in good availability conditioasd thus receive the related payments. Neverthetkes20%
unavailability recorded in 2019 is likely to haveached its floor.
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The increase in effective available power improsiphificantly in the last three years, and will taoe to improve in
2020 and 2021 with the power plants under constmucafter increases in remuneration to electrigiayerators, which
sped up the repair of units that were recurrentigvailable, in addition to the incorporations ireded earlier. The
companies making up Grupo Albanesi continued t@shin various power plants, with the incorporatidrpower in

general over terms agreed with the new units abmie incorporated to the National Interconnectgste3n in the
coming months.

The new generation capacity incorporated in 20X8esponds in a minimum portion to the internatigmalic bidding
called under SEE Resolution No. 21/2016 of the Mtigi of Energy and Mining, in which Grupo Albanegas the
awardee of bids for 420 MW. All awards under SEEdRation No. 21 have been completed. Grupo Albaaetvely
participated in the bidding process with the foliogvpower plants:

e The CTE owned by GMSA received commercial authorizationSeptember 2017, with two Siemens
SGT800 turbines of 50 MW each, and in Septembe82@ith a third turbine of 50 MW.

* In August 2017, th€TI owned by GMSA obtained authorization to operat&sd 80 Siemens turbine of
50 MW, and in February 2018, authorization was iolet for a second turbine of the same capacity.

* In May 2017, theCTRi owned by GMSA obtained authorization to operate\a 8GT800 Siemens turbine
of 50 MW, adding to the existing 40 MW.

e InJuly 2017, thecTMM owned by GMSA incorporated 100 MW of nominal powaatding to the existing
250 MW.

¢ The closing to combined cycle was implemented atGhR, with the incorporation of a 60 MW steam
turbine to the existing 130 MW gas turbine. Comrigr@uthorization was obtained in August 2018.

In addition, various companies making up Grupo Al were awarded spot contracts with CAMMESA fqranding
their capacity in the coming years. Within the feamork of the international public bidding for clogito combined
cycle and co-generation projects called for undg@Resolution No. 287-E/2017 of the Energy Secitafithe Ministry
of Energy and Mining, Grupo Albanesi was awardedelprojects to install 283 MW of hew capacity whige currently
being added, as other units of different compaiimnesi participates with the following plants:

e Closing to cycle with 129 MW in the CTMM in Cérdoba
* Closing to cycle with 154 MW in the CTE in Buenosés.
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INCREASE IN NOMINAL SUPPLY (MW) - NOMINAL DATA

DISTRIBUTION

ACCORDING TO

PERIOD THERMAL HYDROELECTRIC NUCLEAR BIOMASS SV(‘;'II“ADR TOTAL PERIOD REGULATORY

REGIME
1992-2019 17.752 5.049 750 44 2.048 25.643

1992-2001 5.945 3.183 0 0 0 9.128 35.6%
2002-2015 6.948 1.734 750 0 195 9.627 37.5%
2016- Sept. 2019 4.859 132 0 a4 1.853 6.888 26.9%

Gross Electricity Demand — including losses in trensmission and distribution system, and the coyigaown
consumption at generating units in rotating gemanathas shown a significant growth in thermal glegower supply
in recent decades, accompanied by a mild increageihydroelectric power supply due to the incaation of the last
stage of the CH Yacyreté following the gradual @ase of its generating quota as from 2006.

CHANGES IN HISTORICAL GROSS SUPPLY OF ELECTRIC
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Between 2016 and 2019, the growth trend of elepimiwer demand showed a slowdown, aggravated in Radt8 by
moderate winter temperatures. This long-term tnesfidcts moderation in electricity demand in pesiad economic
downturn, such as 2016, 2018 and 2019, with an dtgfaariff adjustments implemented to partialygrove electricity
supply cost coverage.
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The correlation between evolution of GDP and eleitgrdemand shows a significant dispersion; howeitemay be
concluded that when there is a significant reducitioGDP, the electricity demand falls relativelpderately. It should
also be considered that, in a context of low ecao@rowth, electricity demand increases at ratghédr than GDP.

CHANGES IN ELECTRIC POWER DEMAND AND GDP

Index Electricity demand
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CAMMESA divides Argentina into regions with similaharacteristics from the demand point of viewwa#l as on the
basis of the socio-economic characteristics andntiegration of each electricity subsystem.

Demand is highly concentrated in CABA - Greater g Aires area-Litoral region, which accounts fard86 of the
total electricity demand of the country in 2019thdlugh growth rates in other regions, such as Nedktern area,
Comahue and Patagonia are greater than in the m#rgaiegions of the country and the demand in CABreater

Buenos Aires area is influenced by rate adjustmeinéschanges in this structure are not expectée tmaterial in the
future.

Gross energy demand -considering distribution eantstnission losses, own consumption of thermaharetear power,
and minor exports to Uruguay and Brazil- recordetdight 0.5% increase in 2018, after a -2.4% fal2017. In 2017,
due to the 2.8% economic expansion during the yaactricity demand increased by 1.8% as a reduthe rate
adjustments, and especially due to a mild 2016/Zmer season and higher-than-normal temperatutas 2018
winter season. In 2019, an annual drop of -2.9% neasrded, which worsened in winter months, simreperatures
were mild compared with 2018; the higher tempeestuecorded in late 2019 strengthened the incrisademand
compared with late 2018. The economic stagnati@dmaimpact on the rate of increase in demandthegevith rate
adjustments. Growth rates are expected to be sitoilaistorical rates once the economy returns pata of sustained
growth.
ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION IN 2019 (MWh; net of losses)

Industrial/Large
commercial users Residential

36,424,173 -\
28.3%

55,420,980

l_43.0%

Commercial/SMEs/Public lighting

" 737,034,914
28.7%
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In 2019, there was a strong reduction of -2.9%ninual electricity demand. The residential eledyidemand segment
fell by -2.9% in 2019 following the 2.0% increaseorded in 2018 as a result of winter and sumnmepégatures. In
2017, electricity demand from this segment deciibhge2.0% as a result of rate adjustments and nateleemperatures
in summer and winter, after 3.0% in 2016 comparéti @015, higher than 2.1% recorded in the recessio 2014
compared to 2013, but lower than 7.7% recorde®ikb2

The commercial electricity demand segment grew 322016 compared with 2015, a growth higher thzen Q@.2%
recorded in 2014, and lower than the 3.8% recomd&D15. In 2017, this segment decreased by -@Aébin 2018 a
further -0.4%. In 2019, this trend increased td 9. The electricity tariff adjustments implemented-ebruary 2016,
followed by adjustments to natural gas in April 80partly affect the demand of consumers.

The industrial activity stopped falling at the bmging of 2017, and the activity growth lasted uaéitly 2018, when once
again, a significant slowdown began. An accelergtedvth rate was observed in the last months ofyte. In 2016,
the Industrial segment had shown a -4.7% redudtiariectricity demand after a modest +0.8% in 20h52017, the
industrial reactivation showed a 2.0% increasel@gtecity demand, while 2018 ended at —1.3%, wighy negative
year-on-year figures of -5.8% and -9.7% in Novermdat December 2018. In 2019, the recessive treed gntil the
first half of the year, with an annual contract@n3.5% and a recovery in some months.

INDUSTRIAL ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION - YEAR-ON-YEAR VARIATION
6%
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——————— - 0%
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-6%

-10%
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The increasing electricity demand since 2000 hdisde greater need for fuel supply for dispat¢bekle thermal power
generating plant. The hourly demand for power leasdn impact on the available thermal power capdleiet to meet
the maximum demand during winter night hours or m@mafternoon hours. To minimize the risk of untiynautoffs to
the residential and commercial segment, the previ@avernment resorted to electricity supply cutpfisviously agreed
upon with large industries, as in the winters o1@@&nd 2011- without reaching the extraordinarglewf the 2007
winter— which were not required in 2012. In 20J8juctions in industrial demand were necessary, lgnaiDecember,
to meet residential and commercial demand, asrinalg 2014. Neither in the summer nor in the wie2015 were
significant restrictions to be applied to indudtdansumers to meet residential/commercial elattriemand; however,
forced cutoffs occurred due to significant problemthe distribution of electricity.

In February 2016, the growing electricity demaneé dw high temperatures led to planned and untiroetgffs which
CAMMESA estimated at 1,000 MW. In 2017, demand weshaged and did not exceed the availability ofsysem
since there was more supply available and more ratelé¢emperatures. In 2018, the power demand regasdbeaten
in February, and it was satisfied without great@bpems locally with no need for imports. At thegbeing of 2019, a
day of high temperatures led to a higher demang@darer which was met with sufficient reserves.
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3. HIGHLIGHTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019

3.1Electricity

CTMM

One of the main objectives of GMSA in 2019 wasdonaw contracts with large Users in the Forward Markhis was
achieved by translating actual costs of fuel, ofi@neand maintenance into prices plus a reasomablgin.

In compliance with the WEM Supply Contract executéth CAMMESA as per ES Resolution 220 / 2007 férMwW
of the gas turbine unit 05, the availability tagstipulated in the contract were fulfilled, thueiaing penalty charges
due to significant unavailability events during trear.

The combined cycle fulfilled the availability tatgeagreed upon in the declaration of power estaddidy Resolution
SE No. 19/2017, thus maximizing remuneration peveyo By the end of 2018, as a result of Resolu@0/2018, the
combined cycle started to record greater elecjrdigpatch, which continued during 2019. The epgenerated in 2019
by unit was 161,625 MWh.

The combined cycle availability was 98%. The opgrle MMARTGO03 and MMARTGO04 units recorded averagawal
availability of 96%. The availability of MMARTGO5nit was 99% and of MMARTGO06 and MMARTGO7 units was
99%, resulting in an annual average of 98%.

CTl

In 2019, CTI units operated at a low dispatch lep@eting the availability targets committed in Sugpply Agreement
under Resolutions 220/2007 and 21/2006. Therefmr@enalties were imposed for significant unavmliky during the
year.

The new units installed within the framework of Bletion 21/2016, GT03 and GT04, reached an anniladoility
average of 95%, and complied with the power agtgexh in the Contract for Wholesale Demand.

Lastly, the energy generated in 2019 by the foitswmas 95,911 MWh.

CTRi

In 2019, it had an average plant availability o#99

Since the addition of the new unit, the energy gated amounted to 57,797 MWh.
CTLB

In 2019, the availability targets were met, achigviull remuneration for Fixed Cost power. The Plaad an average
plant availability of 100%.

CTE

In 2019, CTF reached an average plant availalilitY2%. The Power Plant recorded generated poweuatimg to
69,845 MWh.

CTE

Since the beginning of its operation in October2ahe availability of both units was of 98%, whieasily allowed to
fulfill the availability agreed upon in the Conttador Demand signed within the framework of Reiolu21/2016.
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Energy generated in 2019 amounted to 530,574 MWh
3.2 Maintenance

CTMM

The objective of the maintenance tasks carriedlotibg the year was to maintain the availabilitytted combined cycle
units and open cycle units. The maintenance plampcised all the units and ancillary equipment.

The minor predictive and preventive maintenanckstasheduled were carried out during the year at0Gland 02 of
the Combined Cycle, GU 03, 04 and 05 — Siemens PRIBST urbines —, and GU 06 and 07 — Siemens SGTraétines
—, as recommended in the manufacturer’'s manuatlsqurs run.

With PWPS, the maintenance agreements contemplegingte assistance and spare part supply and ¢iserpre of a
local technician at the plant remained effective.

In addition, the remote and local assistance agea&with Siemens Sweden and Argentina also remaffective.
CTI

The objective of the maintenance tasks carriediotihg the year was to maintain the availabilitytef generating units.
The maintenance plan comprised all the units acdlary equipment.

The minor predictive and preventive maintenanckstasheduled were carried out during the year at0Gldnd 02 —
PWPS FT8 Turbines —, and GU 03, 04 and 05 — Sier8&15800 Turbines —, as recommended in the manu&a
manual as per hours run.

With PWPS, the maintenance agreements, contemgpleginote assistance, spare part supply and regdaiosd, where
necessary, as well as the presence of a localitéahrat the plant remained effective.

In addition, the remote and local assistance ageagwith Siemens Sweden and Argentina also remaffective.

The supply of spare parts and consumables acquiigdthe purchase of Siemens SGT 800 generatints wrés
completed.

CTRi

The objective of the maintenance tasks carrieddatihg the year was to maintain the availabilitygeherating units.
The maintenance plan comprised the generating asitgell as ancillary equipment.

The minor predictive and preventive maintenandestasheduled were carried out during the year aGaind 22, while
major maintenance tasks were carried out at Gl28commended in the manufacturer’'s manual and g@ztices in
the art.

The average maintenance recommended by the mam@govhich is called type “A” inspection, was éad out at
Siemens SGT 800 GU 24, since it reached 500 steles

Regarding the ancillary equipment, major mainteeasied modernization of parts were carried out atGas Plant,
originally intended to supply GU 21, 22, and 23.

In addition, the remote and local assistance agea&with Siemens Sweden and Argentina also remaffective.
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CTLB
The objective of the maintenance tasks carriediotihg the year was to maintain the availabilityteé generating units.
The maintenance plan comprised the generating andsancillary and building equipment.

The minor predictive and preventive maintenanckstasheduled were carried out during the year ak&land 22, as
recommended in the manufacturer’s manual and tbd goactices in the art.

CTE

The objective of the maintenance tasks carriediotihg the year was to maintain the availabilityteé generating units.
The maintenance plan comprised the generating andsancillary and building equipment.

In addition, the remote and local assistance agea&with Siemens Sweden and Argentina also remaffective.

The supply of spare parts and consumables acquiittdthe purchase of Siemens SGT 800 generatints umas
completed.

The set of tools and devices necessary to carrgyerage and major maintenance, called type “B™“&idnspections,
were received and will be used by all the Groug@sn®ns SG 800 GU.

3.3 Environmental management

Corporate Environmental Management System

In CTMM, there is an Integrated Management Systeplace that meets ISO 9001:2015, 1ISO 14001:20854#6SAS
18001:2007 standards.

The ISO 14001:2015 certification, in particularaisilable with a corporate scope, integrating Gréfibanesi operating
plants (GROSA, CTR, AESA, and GMSA). Thermal poplkants: CTMM, CTRIi, CTI, CTLB, CTF, and CTE).

This shared methodology allows working in a uniféed coordinated manner at all work sites, applyfiegsame criteria
for determining the environmental aspects of thivitg, significant assessments and the operatiooatrols adopted in
response to those matters. Supported by standdrda@aimentation and implemented within a work frenordx based
on joint and cooperative performance between thigsasustained growth has been achieved over sinigect to regular
performance reviews and ongoing improvement presess
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The main benefits of the above may be noted inaspeich as:

. Environmental awareness and the involvement op#rsonnel in the fulfilment of the objectives set.

. The priority given to preventive management actions

. Absence of environmental incidents.

. Optimum order and cleaning conditions at the premis

. Efficient treatment of corrective actions as wellcd those derived from addressing risks and oppdares.

. Attention given in due time and manner to complthviégal requirements.

. Improved management of environmental issues widtigp attention to its life cycles and the intesestlated
to environmental sustainability.

. Efforts expended, with satisfactory results, to¢hee and aesthetic of natural spaces.

Important achievements have been obtained in thatemance of the Quality and Occupational Safety Health
Management Systems.

During the period from October to November 2018ew external audit on the Corporate IntegratedeEemdronmental
Management System was successfully completed bydhéication agency IRAM. As a result, the maimdaace of
corporate systems for a new year, within the fraoréwf the recertification duly obtained and effeetuntil 2021, was
approved.

3.4 Human Resources

Human Capital management

Under the motto “Work together and better”, anddgdiby our corporate values, the Group's Humant@lapanagement
is based on three pillargttract, Motivate and Retain. With the purpose of transforming the company imarket
reference, we are undergoing a change process wheegnbition is to convert every person in a vadding agent who
contributes to maximizing the results of the busiand client satisfaction at each stage of theevethain.

Below we describe the main actions undertaken dutie year by activity:

Structure of the organization

In 2019, the Internal Audit Corporate Managemend ar&ated, as part of the highest authoritiesebtiganization. The

major challenge is aimed at speeding up the foooalpletion of key processes as an additional steih® path to the
development of a structure in line with the sizd arture challenges of the Group.
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Employment opportunities

The Group’s employment level decreased by 3% coetpaith the previous year as a consequence ofcaedse in the
level of automation of some processes.

Through our internal mobility program “MOBI”, 6 (i positions were offered, with a total of 7 (seyvaémternal
applicants, and 35 (thirty five) external persaviagd the company, mainly due to replacements hadéw positions
created in the following areas: Reception Desk, eBaxAudit, Accounting, Legal, Purchases and Foréigade,
Technology and Information Systems, Gas, OperatmgsMaintenance.

Compensation and benefits

The evaluation of the 80 witness positions to defire new salary structure for non-bargaining eygss was completed.
It was led by HR with the support of Willis Toweargatson through its "Global Grading System" toole ®ystem will
be applied to payment and compensation practicas 2020.

Market practices continue to be monitored twicearythrough general market surveys with specifieoéifor the sector.
Five salary increases were granted in the yeanénwith the labor market practice.

The Corporate Benefits Program continues in pladéch combines a flexible work system known as #Flaith
discounts agreed with Sport Club network of gymd &iub La Nacién. Further, the “healthy snack” optiwas
promoted.

Further benefits include access to Bodega del Biegieoducts and to loans at low interest rates.

The Performance Management Program to assess dfieinsterms of expected behavior and potentiaktpport
development of capabilities is maintained.

Training and development

As regards Training, 17,912 hours of training wefifered to personnel, distributed as follows: 24&0evelopment of
Leadership Skills, 23% on the Development of TechinBkills and Job Position Training, 37% on Larggial0% on
Compliance, 4% on SHCT, and 2% on Relationship@oaperation Skills.

Internal communication and HR information systems

JAM was launched within the Success Factors (SARrenment, which aims at becoming a channel fdlaborative
work and communication within the company.

The use of the SAP Central Employee Module was a@@#ed, which manages the individual informatimineach
employee, as well as the organizational structure.
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In the last quarter, the option of accessing todilgéal pay slip through the Success Factors &atfwas incorporated,
thus saving management time for the employee an€tdmpany. As a result, pay slips may be consskedrely from
any device.

Work relations

The agreements for the generation activity werey digned with FATLYF and APUAYE. Conversations bedga
harmonize the agreements signed with the Affiliateosario (GROSA), which still operates underhistoric agreement
with the union of Energy Workers (Luz y Fuerza) I86/75, and to establish a work plan for its impdetation during
2020.

Corporate social responsibility

As regards the CSR policy, the actions carriedwotltin the framework of Sustainable Development IG&®G) No. 4
were consolidated.

To incorporate other types of actions, we have ghdnthe procedure in place and added two more iSabta

Development Goals: SDG No. 6 “Clean Water and &#ait” and SDG No. 11 “Sustainable Cities and Comities”.
This allows us to continue carrying out actionsednat improving the communities in which we operate

3.5 Systems and Communications

During 2019, the Systems and Communications are@tsncied to provide maintenance, development, impleation,
innovation and solutions relating to applicatioteshnology, telecommunications, information andcpss security,
guaranteeing a suitable service level and covahiagcompany’s business needs.

This area has policies and procedures in line \wtarnational standards which are constantly stipedvto ensure
compliance with the objectives of the sector, iméicontrols, as well as quality and ongoing imgmoent.

The projects and objectives achieved during 20&8%ammarized below:

. The installation of the fire extinguishing systeon the corporate data center was completed.

. The installation of a new air conditioning systesnthe corporate data center was completed.

. The installation of the Fiber Optic connectionte Timbues plant was completed.

. Several projects for the installation/extensiofC&fTV camera and monitoring systems were developed:
. Ezeiza: Extension

. Roca: New installation

. Timbues: New installation

. Tucuman: Extension

. The anylink satellite connectivity was set up andfigured as a backup system for the SOTR.

. The implementation of the corporate departmeniatipg was completed.

. SAP implementation was completed to replace INFORuUcuman, Timbues, and Rio IV.

. The implementation of the Corporate SAP-VIM projees completed to improve the accounts payablesssoc
. The improvement of the Rio IV data center was edraut.

. Timbules data center was migrated to the new plaiidibg.
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The new Systems and Information Technology Manageémi continue in 2020, with the investment preses aimed
at improving productivity and efficiency of exisgiprocesses, as well as adding innovative techiedpthus allowing
to continue with the process to improve the actifotaised on ensuring security, confidentiality, pbeteness and
availability of the information.

Projects for 2020 include the following:

. Incorporation of new servers to the corporate datder.

. Incorporation of better connectivity technologytte corporate data center.

. Improvement of connectivity at the Tucuman planimprove the CCTV camera system.
. Windows server and Windows 10 license renewal atehsion.

. Update of computers, laptops and cell phones.

. Expansion and improvement of the commercial andggnigilling systems.

3.6 Integrity Program

Through the Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Megtdated August 16, 2018, the Integrity Program@aupo Albanesi
Companies was approved, whereby the Code of E#nmck Conduct was strengthened and different policiese
implemented, including an Anti-corruption Policy,Palicy on the Submission of Tenders and Bids arRbkcy on
Relationships with Government Officials.

In addition, a confidential, anonymous and publitiés Line was implemented for the submission ofptaints.
Subsequently, additional policies were developedhsas the Gifts Policy or the Policy on Confidality and Use of
Work Tools, and records of the following were kefi}: Gifts, (ii) Relationships with Government Gffals and (iii)
Conflicts of Interest, of mandatory use for our ¢émgpes.

The Code foresees the creation of an Ethics Comenitthich was created on August 21, 2018 and wkighcharge of
investigating the complaints, reporting to the Bbar

In addition, a training plan was implemented timatuded mandatory classroom-based and online tigini

Lastly, the Group's structure was reformed to idelthe Compliance function, in charge of Legal Mmment, which
became Corporate Legal and Compliance Management.

3.7 Financial Position

In the fiscal year 2019, GMSA was aimed at imprgvime financial profile, extending financing terared reducing the
indebtedness cost, thus ensuring the need for fimidsest in the enlargement of the capacity dredcorrect operation
of the power plants.
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At December 31, 2019, the bank and financial déthe® Company was broken down as follows:

Loan agreeme
Cargill
Subtotal

Debt securities

International N¢
Class VINegotiable Obligatior
Class VIII Negotiable Obligations

Class X Negotiable Obligations

Class INegotiable Obligation ¢-issuanc

Class Il Negotiable Obligation -issuanc

Class Il Negotiable Obligation co-
issuance

Subtotal

Syndicated loan
ICBC / Hipotecario / Citibank

Subtotal

Other liabilities

Supervielle loa
Macro Loat
Chubut loan

Chubut loan

Chubut loal

Supervielle loa

Chubut loal

Related parties (Note 18)

Financial lease
Subtotal

Total financial debt

Balances at
Principal December 31, Interest rate Currency Date of Issue Maturity date
2019
(Pesos) (%)
USD 15,000,00 976,718,61 LIBOR + 4.25% Usb February 16, 201 January 29, 20z
976,718,615
USD 266,000,0C 16,576,737,4€ 9.63% usD July 27, 201 July 27, 202
USD 6,640,27 401,513,51 8.00% UsSbD February 16, 201 February 16, 20z
$ 312,884,660 327,337,502 BADLAR + 5% ARS August 28, 2017 August 28, 2021
8.50% until the first amortization date,
10.50% until the second amortization da
USD 28,148,340 1,668,374,179 and 13.00% until the third amortization Usb December 4, 2019 February 16, 2021
date.
USD 3,014,00 207,573,65 6.68% UsbD October 11, 201 October 11, 202
USD 72,000,00 4,250,320,44 15.00% UsSbD August 5, 201 May 5, 202
USD 17,153,855 1,005,415,630 8.00% until the first amortization date. uUsD December 4, 2019 April 12, 2021
13.00% until the second amortization da
24,437,272,381
$ 396,500,000 399,189,285 TM20 + 8.00% ARS December 27, 2019 December 27, 2020
399,189,285
USD 1,015,42 61,259,20 9.90% Usb August 7, 201 February 4, 202
USD 3,333,33 200,672,52 9.00% Usb August 30, 201 January 12, 20z
USD 170,340 10,239,812 10.50% Usb July 18, 2019 January 18, 2020
USD 672,850 40,454,888 11.00% Usb October 18, 2019 April 16, 2020
USD 836,99 50,203,01 11.00% Usb November 25, 201 May 25, 202
$ 135,000,00 139,532,67 64.50% ARS November 15, 201 February 7, 202
USD 1,000,00 60,034,39 11.00% usD December 23, 20: June 23, 20z
$ 309,174,881 309,174,881 35.00% ARS June 28, 2019 June 28, 2020
102,876,779
974,448,166

26,787,628,44
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1. Brief description of the activities of the issuig company, including references to relevant situ&ns subsequent
to year end(in million pesos)

Pursuant to the provisions of General Resolution368/01, as amended, of the National Securitiear@igsion (CNV),
presented below is an analysis of the results efatjpns of GMSA and its equity and financial piasit which should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying finanstatements.

Fiscal year ended December 31:

2019 2018 Variation Variation %
GW

Sales by type of market
Sale of electricity Res. N@20 335 537 (202) (38%)
Sale of electricity — IDUs 566 673 (107) (16%)
Sale of electricity - Res. No. No. 95, as
amended, plus spot 220 162 58 36%
Sale of electricity - Res. N@1 580 193 387 201%

1,701 1.56& 13€ 9%

The sales for each market (in millions of pesos)sdmown below:

Fiscal year ended Deloer 31:

| 2019 | 2018 || Variation |Variation% |
(in millions of pesos)

Sales by type of market

Sale of electricity Res. No. 220 3,882.t 4,643.: (760.7 (16%)

Energia Plus sales 2,355.( 2,640.: (285.3 (11%)

Sale of electricity Res. No. No. 95, as

amended, plus spot 509.4 898.7 (389.3 (43%)

Sale of electricity Res. No. 21 4,260.: 2,587.t 1,672.7 65%
11,007.: 10,769. 237.4 2%
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Results for the fiscal years ended December 319 20#l 2018 (in millions of pesos):

Sales of energy

Net sales

Purchase of electric energy
Gas and diesel consumption by the plant
Salaries, social security charges and fringe benefi

Defined benefit plan

Maintenance services

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Insurance

Taxes, rates and contributions

Other

Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)

Taxes, rates and contributions
(Loss) Recovery of turnover tax

Selling expenses

Salaries, social security charges and fringe benefi
Fees and compensation for services

Directors’ fees

Per diem, travel and representation expenses
Rental

Office expenses
Donations

Other

Administrative expenses

Other income
Other expenses

Operating income/(loss)

Commercial interest earned

Interest on loans

Commercial and tax interest paid

Bank expenses and commissions

Exchange difference, net

Gain/loss on purchasing power parity (RECPAM)
Recovery of property, plant and equipment impairmen
Other financial results

Financial and holding results, net

Pre-tax profit/(loss)

Income tax

Income/loss for the year

Fiscal year ended December 31:

2019 2018 Variation Variation%
11,007.1 10,769.7 237.4 2%
11,007.1 10,769.7 237.4 2%
(1,522.9) (1,953.6) 430.7 (22%)

(110.2) (566.5) 456.3 (81%)
(320.2) (254.7) (65.5) 26%
(6.9) (21.3) 14.4 (68%)
(828.4) (701.2) (127.2) 18%
(1,495.0) (1,386.5) (108.5) 8%
(78.1) (74.3) (3.8) 5%
(31.0) (27.7) 3.3) 12%
(33.9) (41.6) 7.7 (19%)
(4,426.6) (5,027.4) 600.8 (12%)
6,580.5 5,742.3 838.2 15%
(2.4) (7.3) 4.9 (67%)

- (33.1) 331 (100%,

(2.5) (40.3) 37.8 (94%)
(61.1) (39.8) (21.3) 54%
(207.2) (213.1) 5.9 (3%)

- (0.5) 0.5 (100%,

(12.9) (7.2) (5.7) 79%

7.7) 9.3) 1.6 (17%)
(5.0) (6.0) 1.0 (17%)
(0.7) 0.0 (0.7) 100%
(4.5) (9.6) 5.1 (53%)
(299.0) (286.2) (12.8) 4%
2.9 55 (2.6) (48%)

- (435.8) 435.8 (100%,
6,281.8 4,985.6 1,296.2 26%
135.8 92.8 43.0 46%
(1,533.3) (2,164.3) 631.0 (29%)
(435.8) (57.0) (378.8) 665%
(3.6) (20.8) 17.2 (83%)
(10,546.2) (17,133.2) 6,587.0 (38%)
18,88 8,631.4 2,157.4 25%
- 3,300.0 (3,300.0) (100%,
(344.8) 744.0 (1,088.8) (146%,

’ B ) . ) . 0,
(1,939.0) (6,607.1) 4,668.1 (71%)
4,342.7 (1,621.5) 5,964.2 (368%)
(3,204.8) 336.2 (3,541.0) (1053%
1,137.9 (1,285.3) 2,423.2 (189%)
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Fiscal year ended December 31

2019 2018 Variation Variation %
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Benefit plan (4.0) .7 (2.3) 135%
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment (2,589.4 7,052.1 (9,641.5 (137%)
Impact on income tax 648.2 (1,762.6 2,410.¢ (137%)
Other comprehensive income for the year (1,945.0 5,287.¢ (7,232.8 (137%)
Total comprehensive income for the year (807.1 4,002.2 (4,809.5 (120%)

Sales:

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2019 rmexbtio $11.007 billion, compared with $10.769.lidvi for fiscal
year 2018, showing an increase of $237.4 billiar2@).

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 20101 BW of electricity were sold, thus accounting 8% increase
compared with the 1,565 GW sold in 2018.

Below is a description of the Company's main reesnand their variation during the year ended Déegrl, 2019, as
against the previous year:

(i) $2.355 billion from sales under Energia Plus, anting for a decrease of 11% compared to the $2b846n sold in
2018.

(i) $3.882 hillion for sales of energy Resolution N2OD7, representing a 16% decrease with regatkt®4.643 billion
for 2018.

(i) $509.4 million for sales of energy under Resolutdm 95 plus Spot, accounting for a 43% decreasdie nggard to
the $898.7 million for the same period of 2018 aa®sult of the application of SRRyME Resolution. 9&/2019
which established new remuneration mechanisms.

(iv) $4.260 billion from sales under Resolution No. @1,65% from the $2.587 billion sold in the samequenf 2018.

Cost of sales:

The total cost of sales for the year ended DeceRibe2019 reached $4.426 billion, compared wittd$3 billion for fiscal
year 2018, thus accounting for a decrease of $6a0lidn (or 12%).

Below is a description of the main costs of safethe Company, in millions of pesos, and their haétraduring the year,
compared with the previous fiscal year:

(i) $1.522 billion from purchases of electricity, whiabcounted for a 22% drop compared with the $188®n for
fiscal year 2018, due to lower sales of GW undesrgia Plus.

(i) $110.2 million for gas and diesel consumption atglant, representing a decrease of 81% as aglain$5666.5 million
recorded in fiscal 2018.

(i) $828.4 million for maintenance services, a risé&% compared with the $701.2 million recorded gtdil year 2018.
This variation was due to the variation in the doéxchange rate and the start-up of new turbines.
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(iv) $1.495 billion for depreciation of PP&E, up 8% frahe $1.386 billion recorded in fiscal year 2018isTvariation
resulted mainly from the higher depreciation valaeer the buildings, facilities and machinery hagdidue to their
revaluation in 2019 and 2018.

(v) $320.2 million for salaries and social security trimutions, up 26% from the $254.7 million recordec®018.

(vi) $78.1 million for insurance, which accounted f&% increase compared with the $74.3 million focdisyear 2018.

Gross income/(loss):

Gross income for the year ended December 31, 2@53#.580 billion, compared with income of $5.74Roln for fiscal
year 2018, accounting for a decrease of 15%. Thiduie to the variation in the exchange rate andctmmercial
authorization of the new turbines.

Selling expenses:

Selling expenses for the year ended December 38, @&@ounted to $2.5 million, compared with the 344illion for fiscal
year 2018, accounting for a variation of $38.0 imnill(or 94%).

Administrative expenses:

Administrative expenses for the year ended Decer@be2019 amounted to $299.0 million, compared i $286.2
million recorded in fiscal year 2018, accounting & increase of $12.8 million (or 4 %).

The main components of the Company’s administraikmenses are listed below:

(i) $207.2 million in fees and compensation for sesjieedecrease of 3% compared with the $213.1 mitkoorded in
the previous year.

(i)  $7.7 million in rental costs, which accounted fatexrease of 17% compared with the $9.3 milliororéed in the
previous year.

Operating income/(loss):

Operating income for the year ended December 319 #@&s $6.281 billion, compared with income of $5.9illion for the
year 2018, accounting for a 26% increase.

Financial results:

Financial results for the fiscal year ended Decan3lie 2019 amounted to a total loss of $1.939Iibhil compared with
the loss of $6.607 billion recorded in fiscal y284.8, which accounted for a decrease of 71%.

The most noticeable aspects of the variation are:

(i) $1.532.0 billion loss corresponding to financialeiest, a decrease of 29% compared with the $2oilidn loss
recorded in fiscal year 2018 as a result of aneiase in the financial debt generated by investrpesjects and
intercompany debts.

(i) $344.8 million gain on other financial income, aacting for a decrease of 146% compared with thet®rillion
gain recorded in the previous fiscal year.

(i) $10.546 billion loss due to net exchange differeneecounting for a decrease of 38% compared Wwatbi7.133
billion loss recorded in the previous fiscal year.
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(iv) $10.788 hillion gain on PPP (RECPAM), accounting da increase of 25% compared with the $8.631obilyain
recorded in the previous fiscal year.

Pre-tax profit/(loss):

The Company reported pre-tax income of $4.342dwilfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019¢hvatcounted for
a 368% increase compared with the loss of $1.6ltrbrecorded in the previous fiscal year.

Income tax loss for the current year amounted ta®Bbillion, compared with the $336.2 million reded in the previous
fiscal year.

Net income/loss:

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Compmmuyded net income amounting to $1.137 billionpaoting for an
increase of 189% considering the loss of $1.28®bitecorded in fiscal year 2018.

Comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive loss for the period was wott845 billion in the fiscal year ended DecemberZ119, accounting
for a 137% decrease compared with the same pefi2dl8®, and included the revaluation of propertgnpand equipment
and its effect on income tax as well as the pengian.

Total comprehensive loss for the period amounteds807.1 million, representing a 120% decrease coadpéo
comprehensive income of $4.002 billion for the sgreeod of 2018.

2. Equity figures presented comparatively with theprevious fiscal year:(in millions of pesos)

12/31/2019| | 12/31/2018| | 12/31/2017

Non-Current Assets 42,112.« 37,141.° 24,681.2
Current assets 6,092.¢ 5,909.¢ 4,978.3
Total assets 48,205.: 43,051.( 29,659.5
Equity 9,259.( 10,066.: 6,063.8
Total equity 9,259.( 10,066.: 6,063.8
Non-current liabilities 30,217 .« 25,117.¢ 18,529.7
Current liabilities 8,728.¢ 7,867.2 5,066.0
Total liabilities 38,946.: 32,984.¢ 23,595.7
Total liabilities and equity 48,205.: 43,051.( 29,659.5
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3. Income statement figures presented comparativelyith the previous fiscal year(in millions of pesos):

12/31/2019( | 12/31/2018| | 12/31/2017
Ordinary operating income 6,281.¢ 4,985.¢ 2,565.5
Financial and holding results (1,939.1 (6,607.1 (2,988.2)
Ordinary net income/(loss) 4,342.¢ (1,621.5 (422.7)
Income tax (3,204.8 336.2 799.5
Net income/loss 1,137.¢ (1,285.3 376.8
Other comprehensive income (1,945.0 5,287.¢ N
Total comprehensive income (807.2 4,002.¢ 376.8

4. Cash flow figures presented comparatively withite previous fiscal year(in millions of pesos):

| 12/31/2019| | 12/31/2018| | 12/31/2017|

Cash generated by operating activities 5,175.( 3,070.¢ 4,894.6
Cash (used in) investing activities (4,929.0 (2,577.0 (9,721.9)
Cash (used in) financing activities (209.4 (345.3 3,632.9
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 36.€ 148.% (1,194.4)
5. Ratios presented comparatively with the previougear:
12/31/2019 12/31/2018 12/31/2017

Liquidity (1) 0.70 0.75 4.44

Creditworthiness (2) 0.24 0.31 0.35

Tied-up capital (3) 0.87 0.86 0.67

Indebtedness ratio (4) 3.44 3.77 6.46

Interest coverage ratio (5) 5.07 2.94 3.05

Return on equity (6) 0.12 (0.16) 0.08

(1) Current Assets / Current Liabilit
(2) Equity /Total Liabilitie:

(3) Nor-current Assets / Total Ass
(4) Financial debt / annual EBITDA {

(5) Annual EBITDA (*) / accrued annual financiaténes
(6) Net income/(loss) for the year (it does notude Other comprehensive income)/total net e
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4. OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE
The structure of the organization is shown in thiWving table

30% 50% 20%

m Armando R. Carlos Bauzas
Loson
l
Albanesi S.A.

Central Térmica 75% |95% Generacién
Roca S.A. Mediterranea S.A.
0y 0, ..
Solalban 42%)| 5% Generacién
Energia S.A. Rosario S.A.

Generacion Litoral  95%|95%  Generacion Centro
SA. SA.

Holen S.A., Armando Losé6n y Carlos Bauzas hold the remaining 5% in GMSA, GROSA, GLSA, and GECEN.
Share Capital

At December 31, 2019, the Company's capital wasenuigdof 138,172,150 ordinary, non-endorsable, bettky shares of
$1 par value each, and entitled to 1 vote per skigstibuted as follows:

* Albanesi S.A. 95% (131,263,542 shares)
¢ Armando Roberto Losén 3.7616% (5,497 shares)

* Holen S.A. 0.2384% (329,452 shares)
» Carlos Alfredo Bauzas 1% (1,381,722 shares)

Organization of the decision-making process

As indicated in the various sections of Annex I\&ading IV, of the Rules of the CNV that are attathe this Annual

Report relating to the degree of compliance with@wode of Corporate Governance, the Company’sipsland strategies
are defined by the Board of Directors to be exatuig each of the sectors under the supervisiomefcbrresponding
Management divisions and, ultimately, of the Boafr®irectors.

Decisions that are considered significant and/vent in terms of their magnitude and/or amounbived relating to the
administration of the Company’s activities are mdtectly by the Board of Directors in a meetingsially convened for
this purpose. When required in specific casesjéugsion will be made by a specially convened exttmary Shareholders’
Meeting. All the decisions by the Shareholders’ tegon the events that took place in 2019 have beeen unanimously,
while those related to the Board have been takétirfgpthe majority as set forth in the Bylaws.
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Directors’ fees
The decisions made by the Company relating toeks df the members of the Board of Directors ammpliance with

the limits and guidelines envisaged in Article 281.aw No. 19550, and Articles 1 to 7 of Chaptdr Heading Il, of the
Rules of the National Securities Commission.

5. OUTLOOK FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2020

5.1 Outlook for the Electricity Generation Market

The regulatory activity in 2018 remained almosthargyed until midyear, when the new Minister of Eyesubsequently
the Energy Government Secretariat, promoted flexdghemes for the direct hiring of natural gash®rrhal generators,
reducing the reference price of natural gas thatldvbe recognized in the payments of electricitypdied by them.

Further, bidding systems were established by CAMMES the purchase of natural gas in the contextvarsupply of
that fuel, which reduced the average prices anemiigy’s deficit.

However, with the change of administration thaktptace in December 2019, Resolution 12/19 repeakgblution 70/18
of the former Government Secretariat of Energyhefformer Ministry of Treasury, which allowed gesters to manage
their own fuel supply.

According to the Government, this change would lteisuthe saving of the subsidies paid by the Atgen Treasury,
assuming that the centralization of natural gashmses will enable to obtain a lower price.

The availability of current generating units is paged by the addition of many new units acquireder long-term
contracts, whether thermal or nuclear, as weleagwable units in 2019 and 2020. This investmentgss together with
the moderate growth in demand in the last threesykeas set an adequate level of generation reserveget expected
demand.

Despite the significant reduction in value of thgéntine peso of over 50%, CAMMESA honored alldtsy-term contracts
meeting the economic and financial conditions, arading the payments at the free exchange raterfoegpagreed upon
in dollars. The same occurred with the paymentsdfiey Resolution 1/2019 to generators without emt$r The fact of
having strictly fulfilled the contractual conditismnd made the payments in accordance with pregagigulations is not a
minor detail in such a complex year as 2019.

The Electricity Emergency declared by the Governireaarly 2016 ended on December 31, 2017. Howélverelectricity
sector still requires that some outstanding tagksdmpleted to regularize operations, and wholgsédde increases need
to continue to provide economic sustainability withsubsidies to the sector.

The international financing restrictions on Argeatiwill delay the entry of new investments in dliedly generation units
compared with the pace of investments committe2Dib6 to 2019, thus revaluing the existing plants the projects in the
process of final construction. The absence of atgrénydroelectric power supply over the next Sy@aovides a favorable
outlook in terms of thermal unit dispatches, mitighby the addition of new units for the generatibmenewable energy
sources in a context of potential growing demamefectricity by 2020, once economic growth hastresumed, following
the impact in 2018 and 2019.

The introduction of renewable energy plants poselsadienge to the system since they work uninteedig. The support
to be provided to these units by thermal units seessential.

In February of this year, the current SecretaridEmergy published Resolution No. 31/2020 that atp&esolution No.
1/19 issued by the previous administration. This nesolution modifies the conditions for the remiati®n of generators
who have not executed contracts. Capacity and ggaerprices are pesified, with a reduction of pinevious price, and
monthly updates will be made subject to changebénCPI and the IPIM. This change would represesdvang for the
Government in terms of energy costs via subsidies.
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After years of deterioration of the various Enefggctor variables, the present scenario and thealutire auspicious
despite the difficult challenges in 2018 and thistang financial restrictions. It is expected tiia¢ Government will issue
policies that complete the normalization of thectleity sector, to maintain the operating condis@nd financial health of
the generating sector.

5.2 Company outlook for the year 2020

Electric power

Company’s management expects to continue operatidgnormally maintaining the various generatingauto maintain
high levels of availability in 2020. The fact aoftioducing more efficient group machines to thecileity System would
imply obtaining higher levels of dispatch, and thirscreasing the generation of electricity with Ifygovided by
CAMMESA, and in some cases with its own fuel.

The Contract for the Wholesale Demand involving Q@I gas turbine unit 05 expires in mid-Septembe2®Gnd such
unit will start to be considered as a base machine.

Financial Position

During the current year, the Company's objectivensuring financing to make progress with the itmesit works described
according to the budgeted schedules. Meanwhilefitt@cing structure will continue to be strengthénensuring the
Company’s gradual debt reduction.

6. DISTRIBUTION OF INCOME/LOSS

In compliance with the prevailing legal provisiortae Board of Directors of the Company informs thatome of
$1,137,860,063 has been recorded for the yeare $firece are no accumulated losses and the Compasyndt fall within
the scope of section 206 of Law No. 19550 on mamglaapital reduction, the Board of Directors pregethat accumulated
losses be carried forward to the next fiscal year.

7. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors wishes to thank all the esgpes of the Company for their work during the yaader review,

which has been essential to the achievement o€trmepany's technical and economic results. Additlpna wishes to

expressly acknowledge the contribution of its deend suppliers, and of the banking entities ahdracollaborators, who
have worked toward better management of the busihesughout the year.

City of Buenos Aires, March 10, 2020

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.

REPLIES - EXHIBIT IV - Annual report for the fiscal year ended 12.31.19

A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. The Board of Directors has an ethical work culture and establishes the Company’s
vision, mission and values.

Generacion Mediterranea S.A. (the “Company”) is controlled by Albanesi S.A., one of the companies
of Grupo Albanesi (the “Group”), engaged in the generation and sale of electric power. As a result,
we share the Group’s vision, mission and value.

On August 16, 2018, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the Group’s Integrity Program (the
“Program”) and policies, among others, the Code of Ethics and Conduct. In addition, the Company’s
Board of Directors is the body responsible for generating an ethical work culture by establishing the
pillars of the Group’'s vision, mission and values, which can be accessed via web
www.albanesi.com.ar.

The Company offers a wide range of products and services that show the ability to develop and
execute new projects to strengthen its presence in the energy market, as well as to explore new
businesses generating constant growth. It also offers a proposal that adds value based on a
relationship of trust and quality with all its customers, providing not only an excellent product but also
a high-quality service based on its excellence standards.

The mission of the Company's Board of Directors is to provide reliable and sustainable access to
energy for both the industry and the national interconnected system, through the generation of
thermal and steam electricity, and the commercialization of gas. Thus, the Board understands and is
responsible for optimizing the energy needs of customers and seeks that the Company be chosen for
the value proposition that we offer.

Values serve as guiding principles of our behavior and rule our individual and group actions. They
are the Company’s DNA and govern day-to-day and short- and long-term decisions; we consider
ourselves guardians of values, such as respect, responsibility, transparency, proactivity, and
innovation. These values were consolidated in the Code of Ethics and Conduct approved through the
Minutes of the Board of Directors' Meeting dated August 16, 2018.

2. The Board of Directors devises the Company's general strategy and approves the
strategic plan developed by Management. In doing so, the Board of Directors takes
into account environmental, social and corporate governance factors. The Board of
Directors supervises its implementation by using key performance indicators and
taking into account the best interest of the Company and all its shareholders.

The Board of Directors, together with the different management divisions of the Company - structured
based on the relevant areas - sets the goals and objectives, as well as the process to monitor
compliance with the Company’s policies and general strategies.
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The executive business management is entrusted to the Executive Officers and Managers, as
appropriate. In addition, the Board of Directors approves the investment and financing policies.

The participation of the management divisions is key when establishing the general strategy, since
they are directly and immediately aware of the specific needs of each sector.

The Company's general strategies are also established taking into account the vision and mission,
as well as internal and external risk factors. The Board of Directors is the body responsible for
monitoring compliance with and application of the strategy in accordance with the values that govern
the Company's business.

Usual practices include periodic work meetings of the members of the Board of Directors and the
Corporate Management, meetings of those responsible for the different areas reporting to the Board,
discussion by the Board of Directors of relevant and strategic issues.

3. The Board supervises the Management and ensures that it develops, implements,
and maintains an adequate internal control system with clear reporting lines.

The Company has various mechanisms to provide information to its Directors and Managers well in
advance, to keep them updated at the time of making a decision. The Board of Directors has worked
on the establishment of regular procedures for informative meetings in all the aforementioned aspects
to facilitate the decision-making of the management body, especially periodic meetings with the
Management Committee made up of the Corporate Managers of each area and also, the meetings
of the Board of Directors with the point persons of each area.

4. The Board of Directors designs the corporate governance structures and practices,
appoints the person responsible for their implementation, monitors their
effectiveness and suggests changes, if necessary.

The Board of Directors has led the development and creation process of the Integrity Program, which
was approved through the Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting, dated August 16, 2018 ,and
which was initially based on the following pillars: (i) a Code of Ethics and Conduct (the “Code”), (ii)
an Anti-corruption Policy, (iii) a Policy on the Submission of Tenders and Bids, (iv) a Policy on
Relationships with Government Officials; and (v) an Ethics Line for anonymous reports from third
parties (the “Line”), managed by PricewaterhouseCoopers, and is constantly receiving advice on best
practices on this regard.

Among Corporate Governance Policies, the Corporate Governance Code is a resource that helps us
act ethically and responsibly in our daily activities. It is a guide to provide information on how to deal
with the most frequent problems related to business conduct. Good corporate governance is essential
to guarantee the growth and soundness of Grupo Albanesi, optimize its transparency, professionalize
administrative practices, and protect the rights of shareholders and investors. The main objective of
the Board of Directors is to ensure that the value delivered to shareholders and other stakeholders is
channeled through the growth of the organization and its business, as well as through an adequate
internal control framework.

To monitor compliance with existing policies, (i) the Human Resources Committee and (ii) the Ethics
Committee are in operation, the creation of which was established by the Code.
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These committees are made up of the Corporate Human Resources Manager, the Corporate Legal
& Compliance Manager and an advisor, independent from the shareholders; they both hold regular
meetings that are sufficient according to the current Company's structure.

5. The members of the Board of Directors have sufficient time to perform their duties in
a professional and efficient manner. The Board and its committees have clear and
formal rules for their operation and organization, which are disclosed through the
Company's website.

The Company's Board of Directors is the highest management body. Given the Company's structure,
all the members of the Board of Directors work full-time for the Company, so that they have sufficient
time to perform their duties. Regarding its operation, and considering the Company's structure, it is
governed in accordance with the Company's bylaws, management is entrusted to the Board of
Directors, which is made up of a minimum of five and a maximum of nine regular directors and the
same or fewer number of deputy directors. Directors will hold office for three fiscal years and must
have the knowledge and competencies necessary to clearly understand their responsibilities and
functions within Corporate Governance, and act with the loyalty and diligence of a good
businessperson.

All members of the Board are fully in compliance with the provisions of articles 8 to 15 of the
Company's Bylaws, regarding the Board membership and performance. For the adequate operation
of the Board of Directors, the General Shareholders’ Meeting determines the number of directors and
appoints them. Responsibilities of the Board include, among others, accounting and finance, internal
control, business evaluation, risk management, leadership, business vision and strategy.

The Board meets periodically in compliance with the legal provisions and whenever required by any
of the directors; furthermore, it is responsible for the general administration of the Company, making
all the necessary decisions for that purpose.

B) THE CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE CORP ORATE
SECRETARIAT

6. The Chairman of the Board is responsible for the good organization of Board
meetings, prepares the agenda guaranteeing the collaboration of the other members
and ensures that they receive the necessary materials sufficiently in advance to
participate in the meetings in an informed and efficient manner. The chairpersons of
the committees have the same responsibilities for their meetings.

The business to be transacted at Board meetings is previously discussed in the meetings of the
relevant areas, be them with the Corporate Management or point persons and committees. The
members of the Board of Directors are previously informed of the business to be transacted at
meetings, and the calls to said meetings are coordinated through the Legal Department (responsible
for preparing the relevant minutes) and the secretariats of the Board, all under the supervision of the
Chairman of the Board of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board is the person who presides over the Company’s Board of Directors'
Meetings. Decisions are made after deliberation by all the members attending the meeting.

Likewise, the Chairman ensures that the Shareholders' Meetings are called sufficiently in advance
and proposes the agenda.



Free trandation from the original prepared in Spanish for publication in Argentina

7. The Chairman of the Board of Directors ensures the correct internal operation of the
Board of Directors by implementing formal annual evaluation processes.

As this is a closed entity, in which the Directors are executives who work full-time for the Company
and proportionally represent the shareholder families, we understand that an evaluation process
different from the one that applies to the rest of the payroll is not required.

8. The Chairman creates a positive and constructive workspace for all the members of
the Board of Directors and ensures that they receive continuous training to stay up-
to-date and to correctly fulfill their functions.

At Grupo Albanesi, we believe that a continuous training process is required to properly perform the
functions within the Board of Directors - directors must obtain the knowledge and skills that allow
them to efficiently and effectively manage the risks of the organization.

Bearing in mind the professional skills of the people who have served and are currently serving on
the Board of Directors, as part of the Company's regular management, the Board of Directors, at the
request of the Chairman, adopts update and general and/or particular training sessions depending
on the specific needs that may arise in the exercise of the functions and responsibilities of each of
the members of the Board of Directors or the executives.

9. The Corporate Secretariat provides support to the Chairman of the Board in the
effective administration of the Board and collaborates in the communication among
shareholders, Board of Directors and the Management.

Given the Company's structure, where all directors are executives, the function described in the
Corporate Secretariat regulations is performed by all the members of the Corporate Management that
make up the Management Committee. By meeting, they guarantee the efficiency and effectiveness
of the subsequent Board meetings, in which all attendees are informed, since they have already
participated in the previous meetings with the leaders of each area.

10. The Chairman of the Board ensures the participation of all its members in the
development and approval of a succession plan for the Managing Director of the
Company.

Given the Company's structure and way in which the Board of Directors acts (already explained in
the previous paragraphs), there is no specific position of Managing Director. Succession of the
Chairman is expressly regulated by the Company's bylaws.
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C) COMPOSITION, APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS.

11. The Board of Directors has at least two members who are independent in
accordance with the current criteria established by the National Securities
Commission (CNV).

On the basis of its ownership structure, and as the Company does not make public offering of its
shares, the Company does not consider it necessary to have independent Directors.

12. The Company has a Nominations Committee that is made up of at least three (3)
members and is chaired by an independent director. If the Chairman of Board of
Directors is also the Chairman of the Nominations Committee, he/she will refrain
from participating in the discussions over the appointment of his/her own successor.

Notwithstanding the fact that at present, the Company does not have a Nominations Committee,
Directors are elected by the Shareholders' Meeting at the proposal of the acting Board members, and
according to suitability criteria, based on the Company’s needs, business and strategy.

13. The Board, through the Nominations Committee, develops a succession plan for its
members that rules the pre-selection process for candidates to fill vacancies, and
takes into account the non-binding recommendations made by its members, the
Managing Director and the shareholders.

As mentioned in point 12 of section c) hereof, and without prejudice to the fact that at present, the
Company does not have a Nominations Committee and a formal pre-selection process for candidates
for the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors may, based on its experience and knowledge of the
needs of the Company's management, propose candidates to fill the vacancies to the Shareholders’
Meeting, on a non-binding basis.

14. The Board implements a training program for its newly elected members.

Given that the Company is a closed entity and there have been no changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors, making it extremely stable, the implementation of a training program is not
considered necessary as long as this trend in the composition of the Board of Directors continues.

D) REMUNERATION.

15. The Company has a Remunerations Committee that is made up of at least three (3)
members. The members are entirely independent or non-executive.
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Considering its structure, the Company understands that the existence of a Compensation Committee
is not necessary, as most of the tasks set forth in the standard and related tasks are carried out by
Corporate Human Resources Management and the Human Resources Committee.

16. The Board, through the Remunerations Committee, establishes a remuneration
policy for the Managing Director and members of the Board.

As previously stated, the Board's remuneration policy does not differ from the parameters established
for the Group's payroll as a whole and is aligned with the provisions of the General Companies Law,
as appropriate.

E) CONTROL ENVIRONMENT.

17. The Board of Directors determines the Company's risk appetite and also supervises
and guarantees the existence of a comprehensive risk management system that
identifies, evaluates, decides the course of action and monitors the risks that the
Company faces, including, but not limited to, environmental, social and business
risks in the short and long term.

Both the Board of Directors and the different management divisions of the Company have vast
experience in the business. In periodic meetings with the Management, the managers disclose the
risks identified and Management determines the risk appetite.

The main risks of the activity are related to maintenance, hygiene, safety and environmental factors.
Work programs include the necessary measures to prevent and, where appropriate, mitigate these
risks. Performance results are evaluated by the Board of Directors, with the participation of the Plant
Management.

18. The Board of Directors monitors and reviews the effectiveness of the independent
internal audit and guarantees the resources for the implementation of an annual risk-
based audit plan and a direct report line to the Audit Committee.

The Company's Internal Audit Department reports to the Chairman of the Board of Directors, which
provides the independence necessary to perform its duties.

An annual risk-based audit plan is developed which is presented to the Board for approval.

The Board of Directors periodically monitors the evolution of the Plan and the effectiveness of the
work carried out.

19. The internal auditor or members of the Internal Audit Department are independent
and highly trained.

The members of the Internal Audit Department are university graduates, including Public
Accountants, Bachelors of Business Administration and of Information Technology. They have
sufficient audit experience and business knowledge. An annual training plan is contemplated for team
members.
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20. The Board of Directors has an Audit Committee that acts based upon regulations.
The committee is mostly made up of and chaired by independent directors and does
not include the Managing Director. Most of its members have professional
experience in financial and accounting areas.

The Company does not have an Audit Committee. The Board actively participates in matters
relating to:

- Financial reporting

- Fraud risks

- Independent internal audit

- Appointment of the external auditor

- Ethics and Compliance Program

21. The Board of Directors, following the opinion of the Audit Committee, approves a
policy for selecting and monitoring external auditors, which sets the indicators that
must be considered when making a recommendation to the Shareholders' Meeting
on the retention or replacement of the external auditor.

The Company does not have a rotation policy for the members of the Surveillance Committee. Price
Waterhouse & Co. SRL served as independent external auditor of the Company during the last few
fiscal years. The Company will adjust the rotation of the External Auditor in due course, as established
by current regulations.

F) ETHICS, INTEGRITY AND COMPLIANCE.

22. The Board of Directors approves a Code of Ethics and Conduct that reflects the
values and ethical principles of integrity, as well as the culture of the Company. The
Code of Ethics and Conduct is communicated and applicable to all Company
directors, managers and employees.

In February 2018, Grupo Albanesi began the process of strengthening its Code of Ethics as part of
the implementation of an Integrity Program to ensure its effectiveness in connection with the different
related risks. The new Integrity Program was approved through the Board of Directors’ Meeting dated
August 16, 2018, the date on which the new Code was also approved, which reflects the valuesand
culture of the Company and which applies to all shareholders, directors and employees in general in
all locations where Grupo Albanesi operates.
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23. The Board of Directors establishes and periodically reviews, based on the risks, size
and financial capacity, an Ethics and Integrity Program. Management supports the
plan in a clear and unequivocal manner, and appoints an internal manager to
develop, coordinate, supervise and evaluate periodically the program for its
effectiveness. The program sets forth: (i) periodic training for directors, managers
and employees on ethics, integrity and compliance; (ii) internal channels for reporting
irregularities, open to third parties and adequately disclosed; (iii) a policy to protect
whistleblowers from retaliation; and an internal investigation system that safeguards
the rights of the investigated persons and imposes effective sanctions for violations
of the Code of Ethics and Conduct; (iv) integrity policies relating to bidding
processes; (V) mechanisms for periodic risk analysis, monitoring and evaluation of
the Program; and (vi) procedures that verify the integrity and track record of third
parties or business partners (including due diligence to verify irregularities, illegal
acts or vulnerabilities during the processes of corporate transformation and
acquisitions), including suppliers, distributors, service providers, agents and
intermediaries.

The Board of Directors approves the reviews and proposals made by the Ethics Committee regarding
the Company's Integrity Program, implementing the pertinent modifications to the policies and
measures already in place, as well as reinforcing and creating new ones. All this considering the
related risks, as well as the size and economic capacity of the Company. Modifications are then
communicated to the Company's employees, directors and shareholders.

Regarding the aforementioned actions, and under the Integrity Program, the Company implemented
a Training Plan that began with the plant managers, trustees, directors, shareholders, department
managers and key employees, who received classroom-based courses.

In September 2019, the Group launched a mandatory e-learning to train all employees, guaranteeing
and facilitating access in all the country locations where the Company operates.

As previously stated, the Integrity Program created an Ethics Line for anonymous reports by third
parties, managed by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The four channels available may be consulted in the
following web site: http://www.albanesi.com.ar/linea-etica.php

The Code of Ethics establishes that whistleblowers should not be retaliated against, but protected,
and may remain anonymous, if they so decide.

Furthermore, the Company is implementing a Due Diligence process for third parties, which will
require the previous analysis of any third party willing to do business with the Company. In addition,
an Anti-corruption and Ethics clause was included in the bidding terms and conditions and in the
contracts to which the Company is a party.

24. The Board ensures the existence of formal mechanisms to prevent and manage
conflicts of interest. In the case of transactions between related parties, the Board of
Directors approves a policy that establishes the role of each corporate body and
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defines how to identify, manage and disclose transactions causing damage to the
Company or only to certain investors.

In compliance with the provisions of the Code, a mandatory registry of Conflicts of Interest was
created, which can be accessed by all members of the Company. The Ethics Committee reviews the
registry, analyzes the reported conflicts, and reports them to the Company’s Board of Directors.

G) PARTICIPATION OF SHAREHOLDERS AND STAKEHOLDERS.

25. The Company's website discloses financial and non-financial information, providing
timely and equal access to all Investors. The website has a specialized area for
dealing with inquiries from Investors.

In the website of Grupo Albanesi (www.albanesi.com.ar), the Company provides specific
information for investors. In the website, the Company provides detailed information, as required
by the CNV for each securities issue. The Company has developed a section within the website to
include not only corporate information but also information important for users in general.

Without prejudice to the fact that it does not have an Investor Relations Officer, the tasks detailed in
the regulation regarding contact with and information to investors are carried out by the Management
of Financial Structuring, and the Legal and Compliance Department updates the information related
to Corporate Governance Policies.

26. The Board of Directors must ensure that there is a procedure in place for identifying
and classifying stakeholders and a communication channel for them.

In the website of Grupo Albanesi (www.albanesi.com.ar), the Company has a communication
channel with stakeholders to clear all general doubts. Stakeholders may send an e-mail to
the Company at inversores@albanesi.com.ar, specifying the Company in connection with which
they are requiring information.

27. Prior to Shareholders’ Meetings, the Board of Directors sends to the shareholders a
"provisional information package" that allows them - through a formal communication
channel - to make non-binding comments and share dissenting opinions on the
recommendations made by the Board of Directors. When sending the final
information package, the Board must expressly reply to the comments received, as
it deems necessary.

The Board of Directors sends to the shareholders in advance all the information necessary to discuss
the relevant matters at the Shareholders’ Meeting. It is worth mentioning that, being a closed entity,
it is quite simple for the Company to send information and different reports, which is reflected in the
participation and unanimous decision of all resolutions made at Shareholders’ Meetings so far.
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28. Under the Company's by-laws, shareholders can receive information packages for
the Shareholders' Meeting through virtual means and participate in the meetings
through electronic means of communication that allow the simultaneous
transmission of sound, images and words, thus ensuring the principle of equal
treatment of all participants.

Since the Company does not make public offering of its shares, at present, it does not require the
implementation of electronic means of communication for the transmission of information. The
provision of information by the Board of Directors to the shareholders is guaranteed.

29. The Dividend Distribution Policy is aligned with the strategy and clearly establishes
the criteria, frequency and conditions under which dividend distribution will be
performed.

The Issuer does not have a specific policy on dividend distribution established by the bylaws and
approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting. Article 19 of the Company's Bylaws establishes that
dividends must be paid in proportion to the shares paid-up within the year in which dividends are
approved.

Armando Losén (Jr.)
President

10
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.

Composition of the Board of Directors and SyndicsCommittee

President
Armando Losén (Jr.)

1st Vice President
Guillermo G. Brun

2nd Vice President
Julian P. Sar

Full Directors

Carlos A. Bauzas
Sebastian A. Sanchez Ramos
Oscar C. De Luise
Juan Carlos Collin
Jorge Hilario Schneider
Ricardo Martin Lopez

Alternate Directors
José Leonel Sarti
Juan G. Daly
Romina S. Kelleyian
Dario Sebastian Silberstein
Osvaldo Enrique Alberto Ca

Full Syndics

Enrique O. Rucq
Marcelo P. Lerner
Francisco A. Lando

Alternate Syndics
Juan Cruz Nocciolino
Carlos I. Vela
Marcelo Claudio Barattie
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Legal information

Company Nami
Legal addres

Main business activity:

Tax ID:

Date of registration with the Public Registry ofrmerce

By-laws:
Latest amendmel

Registration with the Legal Entities Regulator unde
number

Expiration date of Company I-laws:

Parent company:
Legal address:

Main line of business of Parent Comps
Percentage of equity interest held by Parent Com
Percentage of voting rights of Parent Comp

Generacion Mediterranea S
Av. L. N. Alem 855, Floor 14, City of Buenos Air

Generation and sale oftateenergy Development of
energy projects, execution of projects, advisory
services, provision of services, management,
administration and performance of works of any kind
Investments and financial operations of any kind,
except those established by Law No. 21526

30-6824347-0

January 28, 19¢
March 17, 201

644 of Book 112, Volume A of Corporations

January 28, 20¢

Albanesi S.A.
Av. L. N. Alem 855, Floor 14, City of Buenos Aires.

Investment and financial activiti
95%
95%

CAPITAL STATUS (Note 13)

Subscribed, paid-in and
Class of shares registered
$
Ordinary, registered, non-endorsable shares of$i@ue each and
entitled to 1 vote per sha 138,172,15
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Statement of Financial Position
At December 31, 2019, presented in comparativedbrm
Stated in pesos

Note 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 7 39,328,707,10: 36,954,972,45!
Investments in Companies 129,863 199,76€
Other receivable 11 2,783,520,70¢ 96,607,807
Trade receivable 10 - 89,915,47¢
Total non-current assets 42,112,357,677 37,141,695,501
CURRENT ASSETS
Spare parts and materi 9 216,335,94: 165,609,95¢
Other receivable 11 1,959,046,68- 2,414,052,99:
Other financial assets at fair value through prafitoss i 388.209.91
Trade receivable 1C 3,038,284,92¢ 2,466,260,07!
Cash and cash equivale 12 879,173,04. 475,205,21:
Total current asset: 6,092,840,59¢ 5,909,338,14:
Total Assets 48,205,198,273 43,051,033,644
EQUITY
Share capiti 13 138,172,15( 138,172,15(
Capital Adjustmer 1,202,693,22. 1,202,693,22:
Additional paic-in capita 1,224,408,68( 1,224,408,68!(
Legal reserv 55,526,53¢ 55,526,53¢
Optional reserv 924,393,41: 924,393,41:
Technical revaluation resel 3,145,992,24¢ 5,289,068,54:
Special resen - 3,615,674
Special reserve General Resolution No. 77 3,217,283,91° 3,344,415,15!
Other comprehensive income/(Ic (4,323,699 (1,302,339
Unappropriated retained earnir (645,136,064 (2,114,796,387
TOTAL EQUITY 9,259,010,412 10,066,194,657
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions 22 - 6,898,80(
Deferred tax liabilities, n: 21 5,807,301,94¢ 3,250,821,05!
Defined benefit pla 23 24,886,66¢ 17,654,42(
Loans 17 22,919,100,06! 20,049,219,49
Trade payable 15 1,466,099,37! 1,793,046,38!
Total non-current liabilities 30,217,388,05! 25,117,640,15:
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other debt 16 368,81€ 1,457,894
Taxpayable 20 164,095,41. 18,953,69(
Salaries and social security liabilit 19 78,985,87: 70,323,23:
Defined benefit pla 23 2,878,301 2,927,284
Loans 17 3,868,528,37¢ 3,986,885,24:
Trade payable 15 4,613,943,02. 3,786,651,49.
Total current liabilities 8,728,799,80: 7,867,198,83!
Total liabilities 38,946,187,861 32,984,838,987
Total liabilities and equity 48,205,198,27. 43,051,033,64-

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofetfenancial statements.
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.

Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 ah8 20
Stated in pesos

Note 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Sales revenue 24 11,007,076,33; 10,769,714,05:
Cost of sales 25 (4,426,566,655 (5,027,364,757
Gross income/(loss) 6,580,509,67 5,742,349,30:
Selling expenses 26 (2,519,003 (40,269,079
Administrative expenses 27 (299,020,113 (286,154,414
Other income 28 2,868,76¢ 5,493,12¢
Other expenses 29 - (435,807,681
Operating income 6,281,839,326 4,985,611,253
Financial income 30 901,329,02¢ 337,822,19:
Financial expenses 30 (2,738,328,489 (2,487,163,585
Other financial results 30 (102,150,799 (4,457,761,110
Financial results, net (1,939,150,264) (6,607,102,502)
Pre-tax profit/(loss) 4,342,689,06. (1,621,491,249
Income tax 21 (3,204,828,999 336,161,06(
Income/(loss) for the year 1,137,860,063 (1,285,330,189)
Benefit plan 23 (4,028,480 (1,736,451,
Revaluation of property, plant and equipn 7 (2,589,363,930 7,052,091,38
Impact on income tax 21 648,348,10! (1,762,588,734

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings/(losses) per share

Basic and diluted earnings (losses) per share 31

(1,945,044,307)

5,287,766,202

(807,184,244)

4,002,436,013

8.24

The accompanying notes form an integral part afetfenancial statements.

(9.30)
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 ah8 20
Stated in pesos

Balances at December 31, 2017

Shareholders' Meeting minutes of April 1¢
2018

- Setting up of legal reserve

- Setting up of optional reserve
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Loss for the yeal

Balances at December 31, 20

Shareholders' Meeting Minutes of April 1¢
2019
- Reversal of special reserve

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Reversal of technical revaluation reserve
Income for the year

Balances at December 31, 2019

. Other
Sh"’.”e Capital Additional paid- Legal Optional Special Reserve Special Technl(_:al comprehensive Unappropriated .
capital - . " revaluation X ¢ " Total equity
Adjustment in capital reserve reserve GR No. 777/18 Reserve income for the retained earnings
(Note 13) reserve year
138,172,150 1,202,693,222 1,224,408,68€ 14,591,651 146,630,579 3,344,415,15¢ 3,615,674 - (10,768,477) 6,063,758,644
- - - 40,934,887 - - - - - (40,934,887 -
- - - - 777,762,83¢ - - - - (777,762,834 -
- - . . - 5,289,068,541 (1,302,339) 5,287,766,202
- - - - - - - - - (1,285,330,189 (1,285,330,189
138,172,15( 1,202,693,22. 1,224,408,68! 55,526,53¢ 924,393,41: 3,344,415,15! 3,615,674 5,289,068,54 (1,302,339 (2,114,796,387 10,066,194,65
- - . . (3,615,674) - 3,615,674 -
- - E - - (1,942,022,948) (3,021,360) (1,945,044,308)
- - E (127,131,242) - (201,053,344) - 328,184,586
- - E - - - 1,137,860,06 1,137,860,063
138,172,150 1,202,693,222 1,224,408,68€ 55,526,538 924,393,413 3,217,283,917 - 3,145,992,24¢ (4,323,699) (645,136,064) 9,259,010,412

The accompanying notes form an integral part afetfanancial statements.
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 ah8@ 20

Stated in pesos

Notes

12.31.2019

12.31.2018

Cash flow provided by operating activities:

Income/(loss) for the ye

Adjustments to arrive at net cash flows provided byoperating activities:

Income ta:
Accrued interest, n

Depreciation oproperty, plant and equipm
Provision for directors' fe:

21
30
7 and 25

Income/(Loss) from changes in the fair value oéfigial instruments ( 30
(Decrease) iprovision for contingencie 22

Increase in provision for bad de

Present valt

Exchange differences, 1
Other financial resul
Employee benefit plai

22

30

23 and 25

RECPAM (Purchasing Power Pari 30
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in trade receiva

Decrease in other receivables
(Increase) in inventorit
(Decrease) in trade payables
(Decrease) in other liabiliti

Increase in salaries and social security chi

Employee benefit plans
Increase/(decrease) in tax paya

Net cash flow provided by operating activities

Cash flow provided by investing activities:
Acquisition ofproperty, plant and equipm 7

(Subscription) of mutual funds, 1

Loans collecte
Loans grante

Net cash flows (used in) investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities:

Collection of financial instrumer

Borrowings
Payment of loar
Payment of intere

17
17
17

Net cash flows applied to financing activities

INCREASE IN CASH, NET

Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of

Financial results of cash and cash equiva
Gain/loss on purchasing power parity (RECPAM) afftand cash

equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents at year end 12

1,137,860,063

3,204,828,999
1,833,412,551
1,495,002,005
139,427,825
(5,829,605)
(81,567)
57,876,650
10,546,165,382
4,954,750
6,905,588
(10,788,792,488)

(133,474,240)
411,183,116
(58,355,852)

(2,769,152,061)
(999,250)
11,309,867

82,711,204

(1,285,330,189)

(336,161,060)
2,128,534,544
1,386,468,763
484,618
(1,080,586,676)
(4,492,595)
75,629,496
17,133,184,827
21,325,406
(8,631,428,418)
(3,299,973,436)

399,163,812
3,121,034
(41,154,138)
(3,043,809,759)
(347,902,890)
44,830,149
(1,736,452)
(49,293,398)

5,174,952,937

3,070,873,638

(2,512,786,49:

(2,597,364,32¢

(67,053,24¢ (37,324,34¢
227,268,23( 110,545,39¢
(2,576,420,31¢ (52,823,464

(4,928,991,822)

(2,576,966,734)

207,203,33!
5,567,782,93!
(3,600,671,49¢
(2,383,735,43:

401,69€,750
7,732,166,60:
(6,303,115,01¢
(2,176,010,517

(209,420,666) (345,259,175)
36,540,449 148,647,729
475,205,21 192,183,99¢
99,449,94¢ 50,885,41¢
267,977,43¢ 83,488,07(
879,173,042 475,205,211
36,540,449 148,647,729

Valuation difference corresponding to hedge cotgrand Mutual Investment Funds.

Includes payments to suppliers for the purchaggagerty, plant and equipment for $1,625,904,31$820,228,992 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, atxsply.

Includes commercial payments for works financinge Slote 36.

The accompanying notes form an integral part a¢Hamancial statements.
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.

Statements of Cash Flows (Cont'd)

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 ah8@ 20

Stated in pesos

Notes 12.31.2019 12.31.2018

Material transactions not entailing changes in cas

Acquisition ofproperty, plant and equipment not yet | 7 (1,757,503,27¢ (6,347,017
Decrease/(Increase) resulting from technical reatado 1,942,022,94i (5,289,068,54:
Interest and exchange difference capitalized ipgny, plant and equipme 7 (2,187,923,08: (816,560,29¢
Loans grante - (685,151,791
Loans to Directors, repz 32 (6,512,67€ (30,758,24¢
Advances to suppliers applied to the acquisitioproperty, plant and equipmi 7 - (39,505,401
Interest forgive 32 4,320,337 -
Issuance of Negotiable Obligations paid up in 17 2,715,336,53¢ -
Defined benefit pla 23 3,021,36( 1,302,33¢

The accompanying notes form an integral part afetfenancial statements.
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.

Notes to the financial statements:
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019,
presented in comparative format
Stated in pesos

NOTE 1: GENERAL INFORMATION

GMSA'’s main line of business is the conventionarthal power generation. It has six thermal powents operating
throughout the whole country fed with natural gasaeell as diesel as alternative fuel. They selléhergy generated in
accordance with different regulatory frameworks. &\Vk nominal installed capacity is 900 MW.

Nominal installed

Power Plant capacity Resolution Location

Central Térmica Modesto Maranzana (CTN 350 MW ES Nos. 220/07, 1281/06 Plus and SRRYME 01/2019 Rjo Cuarto Cérdob:
ES Nos. 220/07, 1281/06 Plus, SEE 21/16 and SRRyMBan Miguel de Tucuman,

Central Térmica Independencia (C 220 MW 01/201¢ Tucumai
Central Térmica Frias (CT 60 MW ES Nos. 220/07 and SRRYME 01/2019 Frias, Santiago del Estel
Central Térmica Riojana (CTF 90 MW ES Nos. 220/07 and SRRyME 01/2019 La Rioja, La Rioji
Central Térmica La Banda (CTL 30 MW SRRyME No. 01/2019 La Banda, Santiago del Est
Central Térmica Ezeiza (CT 150 MW EES No.21/1¢ Ezeiza, Buenos Air
Total nominal installed capacity 900 MW

GMSA is controlled by Albanesi S.A., an investingddinancing company, which holds 95% of its cdptad votes. ASA
was established in 1994. Through its subsidiamesralated entities, the Company has investeddrettergy market, in the
power generation and commercialization segmentés line of business to date.

Albanesi Group had at the date these financiatistants were signed a total installed capacity 20 MW, representing
6.1% of the total installed thermoelectric capauityArgentina, it being expanded with additionaB28W with all the new
projects awarded and currently under way.

Albanesi Group entered the electricity market i02With the purchase of the power plant Luis Pidglsana S.A. In this
way the development of the electricity market beeame of the main purposes of the Group.

2013
2009 Refurbishment of
Construction CT GROSA 60MW 15
lalban 120MW o
2012 CTE 50MW
2008 Repair CTR 130MW CTI 50MW
Enlargement CTMM Acquisition CTLB 30MW CT Timbies 170 MW
120MW CTR 60MW
2011

2007 Construction CTI 20MW =i

Sale of interest in Refurbishment e

Piedra Buena GROSA 8oMW CIRi 50MW

and CTRi 40MW CTMM 100MW

CTI 50 MW
2005 Construction: CTE 100MW
Acquisition of CTMM 2010
7MW Enlargement CTMM
60MW 2915
- Construction CTF 60MW
2004
Acquisition of share
package in Central Piedra
Buena 620MW
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 1: GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Variation in the installed capacity

620MW 690MW B9OMW 70MW

190MW 310MW 370MW 610MW 770MW B830MW B830MW 390MW B890MW 1150MW 1520MW 1803MW

Capacity to be installed M New Capacity M Capacity

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018  2022E

2004 2005

Through EES Resolution No. 287 - E/2017 of May 2@17, the EES instructed CAMMESA to call for thasterested
parties to offer new thermal generation focusedclmsure of combined cycles and co-generation telolgyo with the
commitment to install and start up new generatiomeet the demand in the WEM.

GMSA participated in that call and was awarded prajects for closure of combined cycles through $eSolution 926 —
E/2017.

One of those projects is the closure of the contbinele of the TG06 and TGO7 units at CTMM, locatedRio Cuarto,
Province of Cérdoba. The project consists in tiséailtation of a new 54 MW Siemens SGT800 gas terbivith a guaranteed
power of 47.5 MW) and the conversion into combirmgdle of the three gas turbines (3x1 configuratiodjor such
conversion, a heat recovery steam generator thiagjevierate steam at two pressures will be instakethe outflow of the
gas turbines to feed a steam turbine SST-600 thiadwpply an additional 65 MW to the network, aslixas the necessary
infrastructure for its operation and maintenancke Project for the closure of CTMM combined cycldl venable
contributing a further 112.5 MW to SADI. The adkiit of the new gas turbine will demand more fueltfee system. The
addition of the steam turbine will contribute 65 MWithout additional consumption of fuel, with tlkemplete cycle
recording a specific consumption of 1,590 Kcal/KWh.

Another awarded project was the closure of the ¢netbcycle of CTE TGO01, TG02 and TGO03 units. Thaqut related to
this bidding process consists in i) the installatid a fourth Siemens SGT-800 gas turbine of 54 B ii) the conversion
into combined cycle of the four gas turbines. lar¢onversion into combined cycle, a steam recaveitgr will be installed

at the gas exhaust of each of the gas turbineshwhill produce steam in two pressures to feed steam turbines (2x1
configuration) that will deliver 44 MW each to thetwork. The project for the closure of CTE combiimgcle will enable

contributing a further 138 MW to SADI. Althoughetmew gas turbine to be installed will consume tatahl fuel, the

inclusion of two steam turbines will contributeuather 88 MW without additional fuel consumptiondathe two full cycles
will have a specific consumption of 1,590 Kcal/KWh.
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 1: GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont'd)

On September 2, 2019, the SRRYME Resolution No2@®BJ was published whereby the generating agenésdad
projects under ESS Resolution No. 287/2017 wereagizied to extend the commercial authorization term

On October 2, 2019, the Company used the opticabkstted in the Resolution to formally state a Neate for the
Commercial Authorization Committed (NFHCC) undee thholesale demand agreements entered into indarooe with
ESS Resolution No. 287/2017 belonging to CTE antIT respectively.

For this purpose, the Company has stated as NFH&@mber 6, 2022, for both agreements.
Maintenance contract

GMSA and PWPS entered into a global service agreetheng Term Service Agreement), for the powendaCTMM,
CTl and CTF. As set forth in the agreement, PWPStiprovide on-site technical assistance on a pesntdasis, a remote
monitoring system to follow up on the efficient fmmance of the turbines, 24-hour assistance frbenéngineering
department in the USA, original spare parts imeety manner and repairs for planned and correctig@tenance. GMSA
entered into an equipment lease agreement wher#ySPmust make available to GMSA under EXW condgion
replacement equipment (Gas Generator/Power TurlhameJ2 hours, in case of unplanned placing of popgint out of
service. PWPS thus guarantees availability of es$ than ninety five percent (95%) to the PowentBlfor a contractual
year. Also, the Power Plants have their own regfaip with tools and stocks of spare parts to perfom-site repairs without
having to send the equipment to the shop in the .US¥ gas turbine equipment can be sent by plaus, reducing the
transportation time.

In addition, GMSA signed with Siemens S.A. and SiamIndustrial Turbomachinery AB a global serviod apare part
agreement for the power plants CTRi, CTMM, CTI &itE. As set forth in the agreements, Siemens nmasige on-site
technical assistance on a permanent basis, a renwtitoring system to follow up on the performawnt¢he turbines, 24-
hour assistance from the engineering departmeiginat spare parts in a timely manner and repairsplanned and
corrective maintenance. In addition, the agreenestablishes that Siemens will make available forSAMeplacement
equipment (engine gas generator), if necessaryCidRi, CTMM, CTI and CTE. Siemens thus guaranteesieerage
availability of not less than ninety six percent¥®) to the above mentioned power plants for eaahrhial measurement
period. In addition, the power plants have theinaepair shop with tools and spare parts in stoakake on-site repairs.
Compliance with the energy sale agreement with CARBSA under Resolution No. 220/07 (for power planteRCand
CTMM) and Resolution No. 21/16 (for power plantsi@nd CTE) is thus guaranteed.
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 1: GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Maintenance contract (Cont'd)

Availability per Power Plant (%)

100% i
. :
Tl CTE

CTMM C CTRi CTF

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

— 2016  m— 2017 2018 2019 | Svstem averaae 20

The high availability percentages shown in the gimpbove ensure to a great extent the estimatechtipg
income/(loss) of the business and the compliantie theé goals established by the Board.

The environment

CTMM has maintained certification of an Integratéidnagement System under 1SO 9001:2015, ISO 1400%:20d
OHSAS 18001:2007. The pertinent documentation kas bipdated in compliance with the new manageneguinements,
as a result of the enlargement of its electric payemeration process.

In July 2017, the Environmental and Quality ManagatrSystems were migrated to the new 2015 versidnptaced in
production, upon completion of the respective ind®training and distance learning.

CTI, CTLB, CTRi and CTF have maintained certificatiof an Environmental Management System underll&m1:2015,
developed and implemented within the corporatidme Ppertinent documentation has been updated in lamp with the
new management requirements of the organization, r@sult of the changes introduced with the umbaggsion of the
Standard and the field realities in view of thejpcb development related to the expansion of thstieg processes and the
installation of new generation sites.

In July 2017, the Environmental Management Systexs mvigrated to the new 2015 version and placedadyztion, upon
completion of the respective in-house training distiince learning.

The staff has been trained according to the trginiweds identified for a correct performance ofedytand the controls and
preventative follow-ups undertaken have been peréoras planned.

10
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 1: GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont'd)

The environment (Cont'd)

During the period from October to November 2017neav external audit on maintenance control of thiedrated
Management System was conducted by IRAM as théication agency, with a positive outcome.

NOTE 2: REGULATORY ASPECTS RELATED TO THE COMPANY'S POWER GENERATION ACTIVITIES

The Company's revenue from electricity generatictivity is derived from sales to Large Users on Bweward Market

(MAT), for surplus demand (ES Resolution No. 12&)/6rom sales to CAMMESA under ES Resolution NBO®7, and

sales under ES Resolutions No. 21/16 and SRRyMBIR&m No. 01/19. In addition, the excess eledfrigenerated under
the modalities of ES Resolutions No. 1281/06 an@/@2is sold on the Spot Market, in accordance tithregulations in
force in the WEM administered by CAMMESA.

a) Energia Plus Regulations, ES Resolution 1281/06

This Resolution provides that the existing eneigd ®n the Spot Market has the following priorities

(1) Demand lower than 300 KW,

(2) Demand over 300 KW, with contracts; and

(3) Demand over 300 KW, without contracts.

It also establishes certain restrictions on the efklectric power and implements the “EnergiasPservice, which allows
generating agents to offer the available additigaderation. They must fulfill the following regements: (i) they must be
WEM agents whose generating units shall have bet#hroazed for commercial operation after Septenthe2006; and (ii)
they must have fuel supply and transportation eaitst

The regulation establishes that:

 Large Users with demand over 300 KW (“GU300")Iwié authorized to enter into contract for theimaad of electricity
in the forward market with the generating agentstig in the WEM at the moment, only for the etaity consumption in

2005 (“Basic Demand”).

« The electricity consumed by GU300 above thein@Bemand must be hired with new generation (EeRiiis) at a price
agreed upon by the parties. This may not exceedd&a¥e actual demand.

* New Agents entering the system must contract 50%eir total demand under the Energia Plus serviader the same
conditions as described above.

11
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 2: REGULATORY ASPECTS RELATED TO THE COMPANY'S POWER GENERATION ACTIVITIES
(Cont'd)

a) Energia Plus Requlations, ES Resolution No. MB3(ICont'd)

At the date of these financial statements, almibgh@ nominal power of 135 MW available is undentract. The duration
of these contracts is from 1 to 2 years.

b) WEM Supply Contract (ES Resolution No. 220/2007)

In January 2007, the ES issued Resolution No.\®BRizh authorized the execution of Supply Contraetsveen CAMMESA
and the generating agents that would like to iha&lv generation capacity and related energy.igrégard, the execution
of Supply Contracts was foreseen as another wgegrerate incentives for the development of addifiemergy projects.

These Supply Contracts were entered into betwearrgiéng agents and CAMMESA, with a duration ofyEars or a

shorter term that may exceptionally be establisfiéé. valuable consideration for availability of gestion and the related
electricity was established in each contract basedhe costs accepted by the ES. The contractsealsdlish that the
machines and power plants used to cover the Supmtyracts will generate energy as they are dispdttly CAMMESA.

Sales under this modality are denominated in doflad are paid by CAMMESA under a take or pay daunsl the generated
surplus is sold to the Spot Market, pursuant tal@gns in effect in the WEM administered by CAMBE.

GMSA and CAMMESA entered into various Wholesalediie Market (WEM) supply contracts: For CTMM igieeed a
power of 45 MW for TG5 and for a term of 10 yeaosimted as from October 2010, and 89.9 MW for TGé arand a
duration of 10 years counted as from July 2017(fot it agreed a power of 100 MW and a duratiod@fyears counted as
from November 2011; for CTF it agreed a power ob38W and a duration of 10 years counted as froroeDwer 2015,
and for CTRi it agreed a power of 42 MW and a darebf 10 years counted as from May 2017.

The agreements set forth a remuneration made Ggofmponents:

i) afixed charge for hired power, affected by mon#lgrage availability; the remunerated price is:

Thermal power Fixed charge for power hired Hired power
plants USD/MW-month MW
CTMM TG 5 USD 16,133 45
CTITG1and 2 uUsD 17,155 100
CTF USD 19,272 55.5
CTMM TG 6 and 7 USD 15,930 89.9
CTRI TG 24 USD 16,790 42

ii)  the fixed charge recognizes transportation costs @iher costs inherent to the generating agents;
iii)  the variable charge associated with the energyg®@ftdy prescribed under the contract and whiclppse is to
remunerate the operation and maintenance of th:Pla

12
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 2: REGULATORY ASPECTS RELATED TO THE COMPANY'S POWER GENERATION ACTIVITIES
(Cont'd)

b) WEM Supply Contract (ES Resolution No. 220/200Z9nt’d)

Thermal power Variable charge in USD/MWh

plants Gas Diesel
CTMM TG 5 USD 7.83 USD 8.32
CTITG1and 2 USD 7.52 usD 7.97
CTF USD 10.83 USD 11.63
CTMM TG 6 and 7 UsSD 8.0 USD 10.50
CTRiI TG 24 USD 11.44 USD 15.34

iv) a variable charge for repayment of fuel coalspf them at reference price; and

v) a discount for penalties. These penalties apdiexpto the hours in which 92% of the agreed upower has not
been reached and are valued on a daily basis aodditg to the operating condition of the machind the market
situation.

c) Sales under EES Resolution No. 21/2016

EES Resolution No. 21 of March 22, 2016 called afs for new thermal generation capacity and aasedienergy
production by generating, co-generating and sellegating agents, with a commitment to be availabkhe WEM during
the summer periods of (2016/2017 and 2017/2018¥@mnithe 2017 winter season.

Through ES Note No. 161/2016 the Energy Secretawdate public the bidding process whereby 1000 M\tti@fmoelectric
power was expected to be installed. Power to ballad should arise from new generation projecidsBould not commit,
at each connection point proposed, a generatioaciigplower than 40 MW total and, in turn, the petwer of each
generating unit forming the offer for location nayt be lower than 10 MW. Equipment committed indffers should have
dual capacity of fuel consumption to operate irttargeably and specific consumption should not ek2e®00 kilocalories
per kWh.

Finally, through ES Resolution No. 155/2016 thstfprojects awarded by ES Resolution No. 217201& weported among
which were CTE and the enlargement of CTI.

These Supply Contracts were entered into betweerergtng agents and CAMMESA for a term of 10 yeats valuable
consideration for availability of power and eneggnerated was established in each contract bastx daiids made by the

generators and awarded by the ES. Sales undentidality are denominated in US dollars and paiCByVIMESA.

The agreements set forth a remuneration made Ggofmponents:

13
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 2: REGULATORY ASPECTS RELATED TO THE COMPANY'S POWER GENERATION ACTIVITIES
(Cont'd)

c) Sales under EES Resolution No. 21/2016 (Cont'd)

i) a fixed charge for hired power, affected by montigrage availability; the remunerated price is:

Thermal power Fixed charge for power hired Hired power
plants USD/MW-month MW
CTETG 2 and 3 USD 21,900 93
CTETG 1 USD 20,440 46
CTITG 3 USD 21,900 46
CTITG 4 USD 20,440 46

i) the fixed charge recognizes transportation costs glher costs inherent to the generating agents;
iii)  the variable charge associated with the energytffdy prescribed under the contract and whictppee is to
remunerate the operation and maintenance of th:Pla

Thermal power Variable charge in USD/MWh

plants Gas Diesel
CTETG 1,2and 3 USD 8.50 USD 10.00
CTITG 3 and 4 USD 8.5( USD 10.00

iv)  avariable charge for repayment of fuel costspfathem at reference price; and

V) a discount for penalties. These penalties are eghpdi the hours in which 92% of the agreed upongrdwas not
been reached and are valued on a daily basis amwiditng to the operating condition of the machind ¢e
market situation.

d) Sales under SRRyME Resolution No. 01/19

SRRyME Resolution No. 01/19 was published on Felyr@8, 2019, replacing EES Resolution No. 19/174sTasolution
establishes new remuneration mechanisms for therges, co-generators and self-generators in tB&Which do not
have WEM Supply Contracts.

The resolution maintains a remuneration comprisghgayment for minimum power or basis for generateithout
availability commitments and another per avail&pidf guaranteed power reducing the values estadiby EES Resolution

No. 19/17.

The following table shows the Base Price for thev® according to the technology and scale (PrezBai3:

14
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 2: REGULATORY ASPECTS RELATED TO THE COMPANY'S POWER GENERATION ACTIVITIES
(Cont'd)

d) Sales under SRRyME Resolution No. 01/2019 (dpnt'

TECHNOLOGY/SCALE PrecBasePot
[USD/MW-month]
CClarge P > 150 MW 3,050
CC small P<1i50MW 3,400
TV large P >100 MW 4,350
TV small P < 100MW 5,200
TG large P >50 MW 3,550
TG small P < 50MW 4,600
Internal combustion engines 5,200

The following table shows the Price for AvailahiliDIGO):

Period PrecPotDIGO
[USD/MW-month]
Summer: 7,000
December - January - February
Winter: 7,000
June - July - August
Rest of the year: 5,500
March - April - May - September - October - November

These two prices will be affected by the Use Faatdnich is the relation between the energy actugdigerated each year
and the actual energy available at the power f§laitihout forced unavailability or maintenance).

Variable costs of non-fuels of 4 USD/MWh for natigas and 7 USD/MWh for diesel or fuel oil -at thest- are recognized
per type of fuel consumed by the power plant foe #nergy actually generated for conventional thérpmaver
generation. Only 50% of non-fuel variable costl e remunerated for the Energy Generated in egsewer plant that
has opted to get its own fuel for power generatioes not have the fuel required for such generatiben called for
dispatch. Lastly, generators receive a monthlyuregnation for the Energy Operated, representetidintegration of hourly
powers in the period, valued at 1.4 USD/MWh for &pe of fuel.

Section 8 of SRRyME Resolution provides that CAMMESIll convert the dollar-denominated prices intog&ntine pesos,
applying the “A” 3500 (Wholesale) Exchange Ratefiect on the day preceding the due date of the@oic transactions.

SRRyME Resolution No. 01/19 was enforced on Mar,c019.
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 3: BASIS FOR PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been preparectordance with FACPCE Technical Pronouncements B@arizl No.
29 and amendments, which adopt the IFRS issuedeb}AISB and IFRIC Interpretations. All IFRS effeetiat the date
of preparation of these financial statements haenlapplied.

The presentation in the balance sheet segregatemtand non-current assets and liabilities. Gurassets and liabilities
are those which are expected to be recovered edetithin the twelve months after the end of thporting period. In
addition, the Company reports on the cash flowsifoperating activities using the indirect method.

The fiscal year commences on January 1 and endsniier 31 of each year.

Economic and financial results are presented obdses of the fiscal year.

These financial statements are stated in pesos.

The preparation of these financial statements com@ance with IFRS requires making estimates asdsasents that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liaslitihe disclosure of contingent assets and liigsilat the date of issue of
these financial statements, as well as the incamleeapenses recorded in the fiscal year. The aneatsing a higher

degree of judgment or complexity, or areas whesamptions and estimates are significant to thenfired statements are
disclosed in Note 6.

These financial statements were approved for ismuby the Company's Board of Directors on March2020.
Comparative information
Balances at December 31, 2018 disclosed for cortipanagurposes arise from financial statementsatdhate, restated in

constant currency at December 31, 2019. Certalagsifications have been included in the finanstatement figures
presented for comparative purposes to conform tioelime current year presentation.
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Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 3: BASIS FOR PRESENTATION (Cont'd)

Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies

The International Accounting Standard No. 29 - Raial reporting in hyperinflationary economies (1R28), requires the
financial statements of an entity that reportshia ¢urrency of a hyperinflationary economy, whether are based on a
historical cost approach or a current cost approsttall be stated in terms of the measuring unitecit at the end of the
reporting year. To this end, in general termsi,itiflation rate should be computed in the non-manyetams as from the
acquisition date or the revaluation date, as apbl& These requirements also comprise the conigaraformation
contained in the financial statements.

To determine the existence of a hyperinflationagr®my under the terms of IAS 29, the standardldetseries of factors
to be considered, including a cumulative inflatiate over three years that is close to or exce@d%1For this reason, as
set forth by IAS 29, the Argentine economy mustehbgen considered as highly inflationary as froip I1u2018.

In turn, Law No. 27468 (Official Gazette December2818) amended Section 10 of Law No. 23928 as detrand
provided that the repeal of the all regulationd #stablish or authorize index-adjustment, monetasgatement, cost
variation or any other way of restatement of defategs, prices or tariffs of goods, works or sezgjaoes not apply to the
financial statements, to which the provisions ofttea® 62 in fine of General Companies Law No. 19%3®84 restated
text), as amended, shall continue to apply. Furttier Senate repealed Decree No. 1269/02 and gsdmments of date
July 16, 2002 and delegated to the National Exeelwranch the power to determine, through its adriodies, the date
as from which the mentioned provisions in connectiath the financial statements submitted to theith vave effect.
Therefore, through General Resolution No. 777/2@Bicial Gazette 12/28/2018), the National Seg¢esitCommission
(CNV) established that issuing entities subjedtsdnspection apply the method for restatemeriinaincial statements in
constant currency for financial statements, anninétrim or for special periods, closing as fromcBmber 31, 2018
inclusive, as established by IAS 29. Thereforese¢hfinancial statements ended December 31, 2019 heen restated.

According to IAS 29, the financial statements difitees reporting in the currency of a hyperinflaitgoy economy shall be
stated in terms of the measuring unit currentetdite of the financial statements. Statemennaffiial position amounts
not already expressed in terms of the measuringaumient at the date of the financial statemehtdl e restated by
applying a general price index. All items in thatsment of income shall be expressed in termsefhthasuring unit
current at the date of the financial statementafipylying the change in the general price index ftbendates when the
items of income and expenses were initially recdridehe financial statements.
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NOTE 3: BASIS FOR PRESENTATION (Cont'd)

Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies(Cont’d)

The adjustment for inflation applied to openingdrales was calculated based on the indexes estblighthe Argentine
Federation of Professional Councils in EconomieBoés (FACPCE), based on price indexes publishatéiNational
Institute of Statistics and Census (INDEC).

Below are the main procedures to be applied foatjestment for inflation mentioned above:

- Monetary assets and liabilities recorded at ttometary unit current at year end are not restasethey are already
expressed in terms of the monetary unit curretiteatiate of the financial statements.

- Non-monetary assets and liabilities accountedafdheir acquisition cost at the balance sheet datl equity items are
restated by applying the corresponding index anfjasts.

-All items in the statement of income are adjudig@pplying the relevant conversion factors.

- The effect of inflation on the Company’s net miamg position shall be included in the statemerihobme within Other

net financial income (expenses), under the heduain or loss on monetary position”.

- Comparative amounts have been inflation-adjukibowing the same procedure explained above.

In the first period of application of this standattie equity accounts were restated as follows:

- Capital was restated as from the date of sultsanippr the date of the last accounting adjustnfieninflation, whichever
happened later. The resulting amount was includékd “Capital Adjustment” account.

- Other comprehensive income items were restatéwaseach date of accounting allocation.

- Other reserves were not restated in the firsliegon of the standard.

Tax inflation adjustment

To determine the net taxable income, an adjustieerinflation computed according to Sections 9®&of Income Tax

Law must be deducted from or added to the tax reduhe fiscal period being calculated. This viié applicable in the
fiscal year in which the variation percentage @& @eneral Consumer Price Index (CPI) accumulated ine 36 months
prior to the year end is higher than 100%. Thesgipions are applicable for fiscal years commencin@r after January
1, 2018. For the first, second and third fiscahrgefollowing its effective date, it will be appdicle when the index
variation, calculated from the beginning to the ehéach year, exceeds 55%, 30% and 15% in the $esond and third
year of application, respectively. The inflatiadjustment for the fiscal year under calculationl Wdve effect either as a
negative or positive adjustment; 1/6 will be allechin the relevant fiscal period and the remairtif@ in two equal parts,
in the two immediately following fiscal years.

The company estimated that by December 31, 2010y&Rtion will exceed the index mentioned in geragraph above;
accordingly, the Company included this adjustmerhe determination of the taxable income for theent year.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The main accounting policies used in the prepanaifathese financial statements are explained heldwese accounting
policies have been applied consistently for allfteeal years presented, unless otherwise indicated

4.1 Changes in accounting policies

4.1.1 New accounting standards, amendments and impeetations issued by IASB

The Company has applied the following standardgcarainendments for the first time as from Januai2019.
- IFRS 16 Leaseqissued in January 2016)

- IFRIC 23 -Uncertainty over income tax treatmefjissued in June 2017)

- IFRS 9 -Financial Instrumentgapplication guide amended in October 2017).

- 1AS 28 -Investment in associates and joint ventyasended in October 2017).

- Annual improvements to IFRS - Cycle 2015-20138yéed in December 2017)

- 1AS 19 -Employee benefitamended in February 2018)

Below is a detail of the impact of the initial ajgpltion of IFRS 16 to the Company’s results of @piens and financial
position as from January 1, 2019.

The application of the remaining standards, amemdsnar interpretations did not generate any impadhe Company’s
results of operations or financial position.

1. IFRS 16 application impacts

The Company opted for the application of IFRS It6ospectively and using a simplified approach,dfation to leases
identified as such under IAS 17, thus, recognizimgaccumulated effect of the application as adjast to the opening
balance of accumulated profits as from Januar@192without restating the comparative information.

Until December 31, 2018, the Company only capigalithose leases classified as finance under IAS&Tis, those leases
that substantially transfer all risks and rewamsdental to ownership of the leased property ® @ompany. At the
commencement of the finance lease, the Compangnésd finance leases as assets and liabilitieal équhe fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the preserdtigaf the minimum lease payments. Pertinent réfigations -net of
finance charges- were included in Other LiabilitiEach lease payment was allocated between capithfinancial cost.
The financial cost was allocated to results dutirglease term so as to produce a constant peraiof interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each peridttoperty, plant and equipment acquired under findeases were
depreciated during the useful life of the asseif lower, the lease term.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.1 Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)
4.1.1 New accounting standards, amendments and impgetations issued by IASB (Cont'd)

Leases that do not transfer substantially all riskd rewards incidental to ownership to the Compamyclassified as
operating leases. Payments made under operatisesi€aet of any incentives received from the Igsaoe charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis oveleage term.

Management has reviewed its lease contracts ircteffied has recognized an asset for rights of uisel¢ded under
Property, plant and equipment) for a total of $2@illion, for liabilities from leases at the admpt date (equivalent to
the present value of payments for remaining leases)

The rest of lease commitments identified correspgormbntracts that end within 12 months from adwoptind continue to
be recognized by the Company on a straight-linésbas

At the adoption date, the Company kept the carrgimgunt of assets for rights of use and liabilif@sleases classified
as finance leases under IAS 17.

Finally, no transition adjustments have been madéetses in which the Company acts as lessor.

Accordingly, the Company did not recognize any atifient to unallocated profit or loss at the begigrdue to the initial
application of IFRS 16.

4.1.2 New accounting standards, amendments and impeetations not yet effective and not early adoptedy the
Company

- IFRS 17 -Insurance contractslssued in May 2017. It replaces IFRS 4, introduag a provisional standard in 2004 to
account for insurance contracts using the natianabunting standards, and resulting in multipleliapfion approaches.
IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recagmitneasurement, presentation and disclosuresafamce contracts and
is applicable for annual reporting periods begignim or after January 1, 2021. Earlier applicatiopermitted if both
IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 have also been applied. The @oyngstimates that the application thereof will Imte a significant
impact on the results of operations or the findrmisition of the Company.

» Conceptual framework: in March 2018, IASB publiskettviewed conceptual framework that will repltee current
framework. However, the framework will not be catesied as a standard will replace any existent atan@€oncepts
from the reviewed conceptual framework are considlén the issue of future standards by IASB andrpretations
Committee immediately. Those preparing financiateshents under IFRS will consider the reviewed ephal
framework to develop accounting policies on issuatsaddressed specifically by IFRS in annual répgnperiods as
from January 1, 2020.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.1 Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)

4.1.2 New accounting standards, amendments and impgetations not yet effective and not early adoptedy the
Company (Cont’d)

* IFRS 3 -Business combinationamended in October 2018. It clarifies the defimiof business and establishes guides
to determine whether a transaction must be accduoteas a business combination or an acquisitioassets. It
applies to acquisition transactions as from Jantia020. Earlier application is permitted.

» IAS 1 - Presentation of financial statemerasd IAS 8 -Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estéaatnd
Errors: amended in October 2018hey clarify the definition of materiality and adlde concept of “obscuring
information” when there is a similar effect to theitomitting or misstating information. It applies a prospective
basis to annual reporting periods as from JanuaP920. Earlier application is permitted.

* Amendments to IFRS Binancial InstrumentsIAS 39 Financial instrumentsPresentationand IFRS 7Financial
Instruments:Disclosures adds temporary exemptions in case of hedgindioekdirectly affected by interest rate
benchmark reform, pursuant to recommendations shdudi by the Financial Stability Board (FSB) in Jayl14.
Amendments are applicable for annual reportinggasrbeginning on or after January 1, 2020. Eaalpglication is
permitted.

4.2 Revenue recognition
a) Sale of electricity

Revenue is calculated at fair value of the consitlem received or to be collected, consideringasmated amount of
discounts, thus determining net amounts.

The criterion for recognizing revenue from the mhbirsiness activity of the Company is to recognizeenue from
electricity generation on an accrual basis, conmmishe energy and power made available for consiom@and the
generated energy.

Ordinary revenue was recognized when each and tidedollowing conditions were satisfied:
a. the entity has transferred to the buyer the sigaift risks and rewards;
b. the amount of revenue was measured reliably;
c. itis probable that the economic benefits assodiai¢h the transaction will flow to the entity;
d. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respethefiransaction were measured reliably.

b) Sale of services
Sale of services is recognized in the period theyrendered, based on the degree of completion.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.2 Revenue recognition (Cont'd)
c) Interestincome

Interest income is recognized applying the effectiterest rate method. This income is registered temporary basis,
considering outstanding principal and the effectaserate. Such income is recognized when ikidyi that the entity will
receive the economic benefits associated withrresaction and the transaction amount can be nmezhseiiably.

4.3 Effects of the foreign exchange rate fluctuatits
a) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in pésgal Currency in Argentina for all the companiesnitiled in this
country), which is also the Company’s functionaftreacy. The functional currency is the currencytlod primary
economic environment in which the Company operates.

b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated the functional and presentation currency usiregyekchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction or ofiteation, when the items are restated. Exchanges gaid losses generated
by each transaction and resulting from the traimslabf monetary items stated in foreign currencyyear end are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive incexeept for the amounts that are capitalized.

The exchange rates used are: buying exchangeaatadnetary assets, selling exchange rate for rmondiabilities,
average exchange rate for balances with relatead, gach prevailing at year end, as published mc8#&acion, and one-
off exchange rate for transactions in foreign aucge

4.4 Property, plant and equipment

The Company has opted to value land, buildingslities and machinery at fair value applying disnted cash flows or
comparable techniques.

In general, property, plant and equipment, exclgdand, buildings, installations and machinery @reognized at cost
restated at constant currency net of accumulatprediation and/or accumulated impairment losseanyf

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment begihen available for use. Repair and maintenangereses of property,
plant and equipment are recognized in the incoaterstent during the financial year in which theyiamirred.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.4 Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Works in progress are stated at cost restatednistant currency less impairment losses, if any r®agtion of these assets
begins when it is available for use.

The Company measures facilities, machinery anddmgis at fair value less accumulated depreciatiwh inpairment
losses recognized at the date of revaluation,yif kand is measured at fair value and is not deéatred. Revaluations are
made frequently enough to make sure that the #irevof a revalued asset does not differ signitlgainom its carrying
amount.

On December 31, 2019, the Company revalued lanitimgs, facilities and machinery, for there hawseb important
changes in the fair values of those assets caysathbroeconomic fluctuations.

Effective September 30, 2018, the Group decidedadify the method for determining the fair valuerfra “cost approach”
to an “income approach” for the valuation of fa@ and machinery. The income approach consistalo&tion techniques
that convert future amounts (e.g. cash flows ooine and expenses) into a single present valuediseounted). Fair value
measurement is determined based on the value tadibg current market expectations of those futimeunts. The Group
considers that the income approach more relialflgats the true value of these assets.

The appraiser used a valuation method based atauwdited cash flow model, in view of the absenamofparable market
information due to the nature of those assets,ishatcombination of Level 3 inputs has been used.

External appraisers participate in the appraisdghofe assets. The participation of external apersiis decided by the
Board of Directors. The criteria for the selectimnappraisers include attributes, such as marketietge, reputation,
independence and whether they meet professionmalatds.

Fair value was determined using the income approaith reflects current market expectations osthfuture amounts.

This means that the revalued amounts are basedesant value techniques which convert future incameunts into a
single present value, that is, discounted.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

In measuring the facilities and machinery accordmghe fair value revaluation model, the presaiti® technique was
used, as this technique better allows to capturibaties of the use of the asset and the existngrgies with the rest of
the Group's assets and liabilities.

If an asset’'s carrying amount is increased as altred a revaluation, the increase shall be recoephiin other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equityruth@éheading of revaluation surplus. However jticeease shall be
recognized in profit or loss to the extent thakiterses a revaluation decrease of the same ass@iysly recognized in
profit or loss. If an asset’s carrying amount isr@ased as a result of a revaluation, the decsredkbe recognized in
profit or loss. However, the decrease shall begeized in other comprehensive income to the exttanhy credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respecthait iasset.

At the time of sale of the revalued assets, angluation surplus related to this asset is transfeto retained earnings.
However, a portion of the revaluation reserve baltransferred to retained earnings as the asase@éhby the company.
In such a case, the amount of the surplus tramsfemould be the difference between depreciatioedvas the revalued
carrying amount of the asset and depreciation basete asset’s original cost.

According to IAS 23 “Borrowing costs”, financial &8 must be capitalized in the cost of an asseh\thig in the process
of production, construction, assembly or finishiagd those processes are not interrupted due itoldhg-term nature;
the term for production, construction, assembljirishing does not exceed the period technicaltyuned; the activities
needed for the asset to be ready for its intendecu sale are not substantially complete; anédslet is not in condition
to be used in the production of other assets aeplanto service, according to the purpose ofrigglpction, construction,
assembly or finishing. The financial costs capitadi in the carrying value of property, plant andipment amounted to
$2,187,923,082 and $ 816,560,296 in the year ebdedmber 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Theageeinterest rate
used for fiscal year 2019 and 2018 was 32.31% &ar2ll36, respectively.

If land, building, installation and machinery hagelh measured using the cost model, the carryingiarmevould have
been the following:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Cost 37,137,875,338 30,679,662,487
Accumulated depreciation (5,314,372,506) (4,303,640,753)
Residual value 31,823,502,832 26,376,021,734

Subsequently to initial recognition, costs areudeld in the carrying amount of that asset or reizeghas a separate asset,
as applicable, only when it is probable that thareieconomic benefits associated to those as#etiow to the Company
and their cost can be determined reliably. In theecof replacements, the carrying amounts of thaced part is
derecognized from accounting. Other repair and teaance costs are recognized as an expense iretioel fin which
they are incurred.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.4 Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

In accordance with the technical evaluation madexpert appraisers of property, plant and equipnrectassifications
have been made within the class of elements tdodis¢them adequately.

4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

For assets subject to depreciation, an impairmesttis performed whenever facts or circumstancggesi that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impaihess is recognized for the amount in which taeying amount

of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Toeeeable amount of an asset is the higher ofaliesélue less costs to
sell or value in use. The value in use is the tatabunt of the net discounted cash flows expeadzuttderived from the
use of the assets and from their eventual dispdsathis purpose, the assumptions that represenagement’s best
estimate of the range of economic conditions thiitexist over the remaining useful life of the essre considered,
among other elements. To assess impairment logsgsts are grouped at the lowest level for whigh ¢@ws can be
identified separately (cash-generating units).

At December 31, 2019, the Company considered lteatarrying amount of land, buildings, installasand machinery
does not exceed their recoverable value.

4.6 Financial assets
4.6.1 Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets inftlewing categories: assets subsequently measatrair value and
assets measured at amortized cost. This clasgificdepends on whether the financial asset is aesiment in a debt or
equity instrument. For the asset to be measuredhattized cost, the two conditions described batawst be fulfilled.
The remaining financial assets are measured atdhie. IFRS 9 Financial instrumentsequires that all the investments
in equity instruments are measured at fair value.

a) Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets are measured at amortized cibt fbllowing conditions are met:
- the business model of the Company is aimed at khgepe assets to obtain contractual cash flows;

- contractual conditions give rise on specified d&desash flows that are only payments of the ppakand interest
on the outstanding principal amount.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

4.6 Financial assets (Cont'd)

4.6.1 Classification (Cont'd)

b) Financial assets at fair value
If any of the conditions above is not fulfillednéincial assets are measured at fair value throtaft pr loss.

All the investments in equity instruments are meeduat fair value. The Company may irrevocably aptinitial
recognition of investments not held for tradingdtsclose the changes in fair value under other ecehgnsive income.
The Company has decided to recognize the chandas walue in income.

4.6.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assete@gnized on the trade date, when the Compangrtaies to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are de-recagmihen the rights to receive cash flows from itmesits have expired or
have been transferred and the Company has traedfeubstantially all the risks and rewards of owhigr.

Financial assets are initially recognized at failue plus, in the case of financial assets thahateneasured at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs direettyibutable to the purchase of those financia¢tsss

4.6.3 Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets at amortized cost

The Company assesses at the end of each repoetitgl pvhether there is objective evidence thaharfcial asset or a
group of financial assets may have suffered impantiosses. A financial asset or a group of finangssets is impaired,
and an impairment loss is incurred if, and onlytigre is objective evidence of the impairmentalfie as a result of one
or more events that have occurred after the iméabgnition of the asset, and such an event (entsy causing the loss
has (have) an impact on the estimated future dasls from the financial asset or group of finaneiasets, which may be
reliably estimated.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

4.6 Financial assets (Cont'd)
4.6.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

The Company uses the following criteria for deterimg whether there is objective evidence of an inmpent loss:

a) Significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
b) breach of contractual clauses, such as late payofi@mierest or principal;
¢) and probability that the debtor will enter into keuptcy or other financial reorganization.

The amount of the impairment is measured as tlierdiice between the asset’s carrying amount angrésent value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future dréafses that have not been incurred), discounsétuthe original

effective interest rate. The carrying amount ofdkset is reduced and the amount of the impairtosstis recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income. If the fifrasset bears a variable interest rate, th@digaate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective indén@ate under the contract. As a useful measuse Citmpany may
calculate the value of impairment based on theviaine of the financial asset using an observalzeket price.

If in future fiscal years the amount of the impagémhloss declines and that decline may be objdgtagsociated with an
event subsequent to the recognition of impairmaumttf as the improvement in a debtor's credit ratihg reversal of the
impairment loss previously recorded is recognizethe statement of comprehensive income.

4.6.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, arebented net on the statement of financial positidren there is a legally

enforceable right to offset the recognized amouantsg, an intention to settle the net amount, oirtmkaneously realize
the asset and settle the liability.
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4.7Inventories
Materials and spare parts are valued at the loWacquisition cost restated in constant currencyeimealizable value.

Since materials and spare parts are not for sae,\talue is calculated based on the purchase,gngort duties (if any)
and other taxes (non-refundable taxes by the tthoaties), transportation, storage and other coisetly attributable to
the purchase of those assets.

Cost is determined applying the weighted averagé roethod.

The Company classified materials and spare pascinrrent and non-current depending on their fallaication and the
term during which they are expected to be used tivendor maintenance or improvement of presenttas3dée non-
current portion of materials and spare parts isloéed under Property, plant and equipment.

The value of inventories as a whole does not extesidrecoverable value at the end of each figeal.
4.8 Trade receivables and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customersafes of energy made by the Company in the orgicaeurse of
business. If collection is expected within one yaaless, receivables are classified under cuaeséts. Otherwise, they
are classified as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are initially recogmiaefair value and subsequently measured at aredrtiost, using the
effective interest rate method and, where approgradjusted at the time value of money.

The Company sets up bad debt allowances when ithelgective evidence that it will not be able tdlect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the recdestbased on an individual analysis of histonmaformance of accounts
receivable to assess the recoverability of theitpadtfolio.

The Company has applied the revised IFRS 9 retotisdy as from January 1, 2018, with the practreslources allowed
by the standard, without restatement of the contparaeriods.

The Company has reviewed the financial assets milyrmeasured and classified at fair value thropgifit or loss or at

amortized cost, and it has concluded that the tiondito maintain this classification are fulfilietierefore, initial adoption
of IFRS 9 has not affected the classification am@surement of financial assets.
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4.8 Trade receivables and other receivables (Cont'd)

Further, in connection with the new hedge accogniitodel, the Company has not opted for designatimg hedging
relationship at the date of initial adoption of ttewised IFRS 9; therefore, this adoption did na¥éhan impact on the
Company’s financial position or the results ofdtserations.

Lastly, in relation to the change in methodology tfee calculation of impairment of financial asskésed on expected
credit losses, the Company has applied the siragldéipproach of IFRS 9 for trade receivables andratiteivables with
similar risk characteristics. To measure expecteditlosses, credits have been grouped by seganehtased on shared
credit risk characteristics and the number of ¢mst due.

Expected losses at January 1, 2019 were deterrbexgztl on the following ratios calculated for thenbers of days past
due:

RATIO PCE Not yet 30days | 60days| 90days 120days 150days 180 daysﬂ'80
due days
CAMMESA i i i i i i i i
Interco _ _ _ ) ) _ _ )
Other debtors | ) ) ) ) ) ) 9%

Trade receivables are written off when there isgasonable expectation of their recovery. The Campaderstands that
the following are signs of non-compliance: i) resmization proceedings, bankruptcy or commencemklitigation, ii)
insolvency that implies a high degree of impos#ibdf collection and iii) balances in arrears foore than 180 business
days from the first expiration date of the invoice.

In addition, and in the event of similar and/or epiion situations, the Company's management mafinedthe amounts
for setting up provisions to support and justifg ttriteria adopted.

For the application of the expected loss modekgands trade receivables, no impairment allowadgestment has been
made at January 1, 2019 as against the allowanoeded at December 31, 2018. Further, in the y@a® 2no impairment

allowance has been set up.

At December 31, 2019, the Company has set up agpwavfor trade receivables of $2,655,764.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.9 Advances to suppliers

The Company has adopted as accounting policy tbodis advances to suppliers under other curreatwa@ales, until the
assets are received. Advances to suppliers madeeign currency are recorded under the cost madelare not subject
to revaluation or recognition of the effects of txehange rate.

At December 31, 2019, the Company recorded an agvansuppliers balance of $ 1,625,904,370.
4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on harid, dggosits in banks and other short-term highguit investments
originally falling due within three months or lessd subject to low material risk of changes in gaBank overdrafts, if
any, are disclosed under cash and cash equivaletite cash flow statement since they are parhefGompany's cash
management.

4.11 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goodseovices acquired from suppliers in the ordinaryrse of business.
Trade payables are classified as current liakslifipayments fall due within one year or less.edtfise, they are classified
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are initially recognizethia value and subsequently valued at amortizest epplying the
effective interest rate method.

4.12 Loans

Loans are initially recognized at fair value, leBsect transaction costs incurred. They are submsttyumeasured at
amortized cost, and any difference between thesuadeived (net of transaction costs) and the aimpayable at due
date is recognized in the statement of income thweterm of the loan, applying the effective ingtreate method. The
Company analyzes loan renegotiation terms to déterihas a result of the quantitative and qualiathanges to their
conditions, they should be considered as amendsétthed.
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4.13 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acdios, construction or production of qualifying ats, i.e. those that
necessarily take a substantial period of time taegdy for their intended use or sale, are capédlas part of the cost of
those assets until the moment they are ready &r tise or sale.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as expendég iperiod in which they are incurred.

4.14 Income tax and minimum notional income tax
a) Current and deferred income taxes

The income tax charge for the year comprises cutasrand deferred tax. Income tax is recognizeddome.

The current income tax expense is calculated abléedted by the tax laws enacted or to be enat¢térb &losing balance
sheet date. Management regularly assesses th@épsah the tax returns regarding situations witlleeeapplicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and, if @sxary, sets out provisions based on the amougtiblgato the tax
authorities.

Deferred tax is recognized according to the ligibithethod, for the temporary differences arisingveen the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amoumtfié statement of financial position. Howeverdeferred tax liability is
recognized if the differences arise from the ihitecognition of goodwill, or from the initial regaition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction (different from a bness combination) that did not affect accountirapine nor tax income at
the moment of being performed.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to thenetttat it is likely that the Company has futune irecome against which
to offset the temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset witheme is a legally enforceable right to offsetogrized amounts and if
deferred tax assets and liabilities derive fronoime tax levied by the same taxation authority ¢imeeithe same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where therarisintention to settle the balances on a net basis

Current and deferred income tax assets and li@silitave not been discounted and are stated ahnbwailue.
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4.14 Income tax and minimum notional income tax (Conti)

b) Minimum notional income tax

The Company determines minimum notional incomebtaapplying the current 1% rate on computable asgetear end.

This tax is supplementary to income tax; the Corggar liability is to coincide in each fiscal yeaith the higher of the

two taxes. However, if the tax on minimum notiomalome were to exceed income tax in a given figeal, such excess

may be computed as a payment on account of thenie¢ax to be generated in any of the next tenlfisears.

The Company has recognized the tax on minimum natimcome accrued in the year and paid in priaryes a credit,
considering that it will be offset against futureays' taxable profits.

Minimum notional income tax assets and liabilifiese not been discounted and are stated at nowshad.
4.15 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company hassept obligation, whether legal or implicit, agault of past events;
a resource outflow will likely be necessary to Isethat obligation; and the amount of the obligat@an be measured
reliably.
The amount recorded as provisions was the bestatstiof the resource outflow necessary to sei@thsent obligation,
at the end of the reporting period, consideringpiinent risks and uncertainties and the opioiothe Company's legal
counsel. When a provision is measured using thimatgtd cash outflow for settling the present oliligg the amount
recorded represents the present value of thatftagh
4.16 Balances with related parties
Debts and receivables with related parties havae bakied based on the terms agreed upon betwegatties.
4.17 Leases
The Company adopted IFRS 16 - Leases and appkefbliowing options established by the standard:

- For leases classified as financial due to the eafitin of IAS 17 and IFRIC 4, book values were cated for

assets for rights of use and lease liabilitiesrpieathe initial application of IFRS 16, as prowvitdi®or by item 11
of the Appendix C of the standard. Those valuesimadosed under Property, plant and equipment_axaahs.
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4.17 Leases (Cont'd)

- Finance charges generated for lease liabilitieslm@osed under Loan interest in Note 30.
- The rest of lease commitments identified are rdl&econtracts ending within 12 months as from &dapand
which continue to be recognized on a straight-tiasis by the Company.

Consequently, the Company did not change the atiogufor assets recorded for operating and findeases as a result
of the adoption of IFRS 16.

4.18 Defined benefit plan

The Company offers defined benefit plans. Usualbfined benefit plans define an amount of pensiemefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, generally defmnt on one or more factors such as age, yeasgrufce and
compensation.

The liability recorded in the statement of finamhgasition in relation to defined benefit planghe present value of the
obligation from defined benefit plans at the clgsdate. The obligation from defined benefit plamsalculated annually
by independent actuaries in accordance with thgegied unit credit method. The current value of dieéined benefit

obligation is determined by discounting the futgesh outflows estimated using actuarial assumptiased on the
demographic and financial variables that have #ineénce in determining the amount of those benefits

Actuarial gains and losses arising from adjustmehts to the experience and changes of actuarialhgsions are
recognized in Other comprehensive income in the ydeen they occur. The costs for past servicesirmmediately
recognized in the income statement.

4.19 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially regtzed at fair value on the date when the contsagtecuted. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they are again measurethmtvalue.

The method for recognizing the resulting loss ofipdepends on whether the derivative has beeigla®d as a hedging
instrument and, if so, on the nature of the iteis tovering. The Company has executed derivatirgracts in foreign

currency to hedge the next installment paymentsmfatiue in connection with principal and interestits loans in US

dollars. However, the Company has not applied hesgeunting; therefore, the changes in its valeeracognized in

profit or loss, in the caption Changes of fair \aaf financial instruments, under Other financedults.
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4.19 Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

Fair values of derivative financial instrumentstthee traded in active markets are recorded aaogridi quoted market
prices. Fair values of derivative financial instremts that are not traded in active markets arem@ted by using valuation
techniques. The Company applies critical judgmergeiect the most appropriate methods and to deterassumptions
that are based mainly on the market conditiongiegisit the end of each year.

4.20 Equity accounts

Movements in this item have been accounted focaoalance with the pertinent decisions of sharedreldneetings and
legal or regulatory provisions.

a) Share Capital

Share capital represents the capital issued, cosdpos the contributions that were committed andf@de by the
shareholders and represented by shares that cengutstanding shares at nominal value. Ordinaryeshare classified
under equity.

b) Legal reserve

Pursuant to General Companies Law No. 19550, 5#beoprofit reported in the Statement of Comprehenbicome for
the year, net of prior year adjustments, transféigther comprehensive income to unappropriateairetl earnings and
prior year accumulated losses, is to be allocaidtd legal reserve, until it reaches 20% of cépita

c) Optional reserve

Corresponds to the allocation decided by the Coripa@hareholders' Meeting whereby a specific amauapplied to
meet the needs for funds required by the projeussétuations relating to the Company policy.

d) Unappropriated retained earnings

Retained earnings comprise accumulated profitsossels without a specific appropriation; positivengeys can be
distributable by the decision of the shareholdaeting, as long as they are not subject to leglictions. These earnings
comprise prior year earnings that were not distatdand prior year adjustments derived from aptitinaof the accounting
standards. In case of existence of unappropriategskk to be absorbed at the end of the year undsideration by the
shareholders' meeting, the following order for appiation of balances must be followed:
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4.20 Equity accounts (Cont'd)
d) Unappropriated retained earnings (Cont’d)

(i) Reserved profits
- Optional reserves
- Reserves provided for by Company bylaws

- Legal reserve
(i) Capital contributions
(iii) Additional paid-in capital
(iv) Other equity instruments (if feasible from the legiad corporate point of view)
(v) Capital Adjustment

e) Distribution of dividends

The distribution of dividends among the sharehaaéithe Company is recognized as a liability mfihancial statements
for the year in which dividends are approved byrttezting of shareholders.

f) Special Reserve

It relates to the positive difference between tiigsil balance of unappropriated retained earndigslosed in the financial
statements of the first closing for the year of &&pplication to GISA merged company due to meager the closing
balance of unappropriated retained earnings atltsing of the last year under prior accountingndéads.

This reserve may not be reversed to perform digiohs in cash or in kind among the shareholdemarers of the entity
and may only be reversed for capitalization or bsaab possible losses of the account “Unappromtiatgained
earnings/losses”, a decision to be taken by theeBlbéders’ Meeting which considers the financiatastments at year end.

g) Special Reserve GR No. 777/18

Following the mechanism established in GR No. 70¥&of the CNV, in the transition year in which timélation
adjustment is disclosed, the Company has set ygeeia reserve for an amount equivalent to theluatimn balance
determined by its nominal value transferred in aotimg to unappropriated retained earnings. Théisp reserve may
be reversed following the mechanism provided foapglicable accounting standards.

35



Free translation from the original prepared in Sgafor publication in Argentina

Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 5: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
5.1 Financial risk factors

Financial risk management is encompassed withigltiteal policies of the Company, which are focusedhe uncertainty
of the financial markets and are aimed at miningime potential adverse effects on its financiald/i Financial risks are
the risks associated with financial instrumentsvtoch the Company is exposed during or at the drehoh fiscal year.
Financial risks comprise market risk (including fbesign exchange risk, price risk and interest régk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is controlled by the RggaDivision of the Company, which identifies, and covers
the financial risks. The financial risk managemaoltcies and systems are reviewed regularly teotfihe changes in the
market conditions and in the Company's busine$gitaes.

This section includes a description of the mairficial risks and uncertainties that could have teri@z adverse effect
on the Company’s strategy, performance, resultgefations and financial condition.

a) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

Sales made by the company are denominated in U&slabut due to the fact that they are performedien Resolution

No. 1281/06 (Energia Plus), and also under ResolsitNo. 220/07, ES No. 21/16 and ES No. 1/19, Hreyconverted

into pesos at the exchange rate per BCRA Commuaicat3500 (Wholesale) corresponding to the busiiesy preceding
the due date. Furthermore, the financial debtasip denominated in that currency, and a portibthe debt allocated to
the investment in the cycle closure project isestah US Dollars, which means that the businessaalgenuine coverage
for exchange rate fluctuations. However, the Coggamstantly monitors the exchange rate fluctuatimithe main world

currencies to define foreign exchange strategies.
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5.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

a) Market risks (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

The following table shows the Company's exposurinédforeign exchange risk associated with thetass®l liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functionalency of the Company.

Type and amount egtl:%zrr:ge Amount Amount
Captions of foreign rate 98 recorded at recorded at
currency 1) 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
$
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale
Cast UsD 1,400 59.69 83,566 80,762
Banks USD 11,844,23¢ 59.69 706,982,34¢ 94,717,164
Trade receivable
Tradereceivable - Energia Plu UsSD  6,851,40¢ 59.69| 408,960,60{ 363,607,79]
Tradereceivable - Res. 220/0°- Res. 1/1¢- Res. 21/1 USD 41,341,27: 59.69| 2,467,660,54{ 1,800,665,90:
Tradereceivable - Rental of tank UsD 641,404 59.69 38,285,37¢ 37,000,74¢
Total current assets 3,621,972,449 2,296,072,37
Total Assets 3,621,972,449 2,296,072,37
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payable
Related partie UsSD 22,037,38¢ 59.79| 1,317,615,47: 731,862,46(
Supplier: USD 38,624,43¢ 59.89| 2,313,217,64: 239,784,27¢
Supplier: SEK 72,470,57: 6.46 468,493,267 1,774,984,42]
Financial det
Loans USD 50,076,001 59.89| 2,999,051,72:| 3,433,002,27:
Total current liabilities 7,098,378,10| 6,179,633,43]
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payable
Supplier: USD 24,479,86¢ 59.89| 1,466,099,37{ 1,271,319,75]
Supplier: SEK - 6.46 - 521,726,63(
Financial det
Loans USD 377,477,45¢ 59.89| 22,607,124,94| 19,477,583,53|
Total non-current liabilities 24,073,224,324 21,270,629,92
Total liabilities 31,171,602,42¢ 27,450,263,35

(1) Banco Nacién exchange rate prevailing at yeak-Eor balances with related parties, an averageamge rate is used.
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NOTE 5: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

b) Market risks (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

The Company considers that, if all other varialégsain constant, a devaluation of 1% of each foreigrency compared
to the Argentine peso would reduce income for th&ryn the following way:

Argentine pesos

Currency 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
US dollar: (270,811,367 (228,574,79¢
Swedish crowr (4,684,933 (22,967,111
Variation in income for the year (275,496,300 (251,541,910)

Price risk

Company revenue rely, to a lesser extent, on sadeke under Resolution 1/19, which replaced ES R#&snl19/17. This
resolution adapts certain remuneration criteri@¢onomic conditions which are reasonable, foredeemid efficient,
through medium-term commitments. Company revenugsuffer the impact of any material amendment peat of any
terms of the Resolution and such repeal or amentdmay cause a minor adverse effect on its busifiessicial position
and results of operations. ES Resolution No. 3102@82s published on February 27, 2020, which rep8RRYME
Resolution No. 1/19 (See Note 42).

If for any reason not attributable to the Compathg, Company is no longer eligible to participatettie Energia Plus
Program (ES Resolution 1281/06), Resolution 22@40d/or ES Resolution 21/16, or if these resolutiaresrepealed or
substantially amended, and the Company is obligestl all the power generated in the Spot Markehe sales price is
limited, the results of Generacién Mediterranea. 8duld be badly affected.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the Company's deffibating rate. Indebtedness at floating rate eggothe Company to
interest rate risk on their cash flows. At DecemBgr 2019, a small portion of the loans in effeatl ibeen taken out at
floating rates, mainly BADLAR (plus an applicablergin).

The Company analyzes its exposure to interestrigkein a dynamic manner. Hypothetical situatioms aimulated
considering the positions relating to refinanciremewal of current positions, alternative financamgl hedging. Based on
these scenarios, the Company estimates the impaatodit or loss of a definite variation in inteteates. Simulation is
only made in relation to obligations representimg main positions that accrue interest.
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5.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
a) Market risks (Cont'd)

The following table shows the Company's loans bnakewn by interest rate:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Fixed rate
Less than 1 year 2,733,750,6¢ 2,776,941,764
Between 1 and 2 years 3,794,015,2¢ 3,174,686,467
Between 2 and 3 years 1,679,178,02 3,957,289
More than 3 years 16,774,562,2¢ 15,432,886,648
24,981,506,2€ 21,388,472,168
Floating rate
Less than 1 year 1,134,777,6€ 1,209,943,477
Between 1 and 2 years 647,722,1€ 603,844,912
Between 2 and 3 years 23,594,32 799,608,005
More than 3 years 27,97 34,236,175
1,806,122,1¢ 2,647,632,569
26,787,628,44 24,036,104,73

Based on simulations run, with all the other vdgalkept constant, an increase of 1% in the variatierest rates would
(decrease)/ increase the profit or loss for the gedollows:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Floating rat 18,061,222 26,476,326
Impact on the profit/(loss) for the year 18,061,22. 26,476,326

b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalelgsosits with banks and financial institutions, &man the exposure to
credit of customers, including the outstanding beds of accounts receivable and arranged traneactio

Our credit analysis division assesses privatelghiserporate customers’ payment ability, taking &&sis their financial
statements, financial position, market reportgphisal behavior towards the Company and othemfafe creditworthiness
factors. Credit limits are set on the basis ofitltkcators described above, and are regularly roogit by the respective
area.

The electricity generators with sales to the spaitk®t, per Resolution No. 1/19 which replaced ESoRgion No. 19/17,
and generators with contracts under Resolutions 2207 and ES No. 21/16 receive through CAMMEB& payments
for making available the power and energy suppieitie system.
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5.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

b) Credit risks (Cont'd)

In the last quarter of 2019, CAMMESA paid its pdigé obligations, recognizing interest and exchaliffierence as agreed
in the pertinent contracts.

¢) Liquidity risk

The Management of the Company monitors the updatgjdctions on liquidity requirements to ensurd tha Company
has enough cash to cover the operational neede wigintaining an adequate level of credit facsitévailable. In this
way, the Company is expected to meet its commitseguired as a result of the financial debt agishom any credit
facility. The projections take into account paymplans of the Company's debts, compliance withreateregulatory
requirements and legal requirements.

Temporary cash surpluses are prudently managedt thati are used for debt servicing purposes aneésiment in
enlargement projects currently in progress. The @om has worked in the medium and long term finagatructure,
having, in addition, available credit lines andris&o guarantee compliance with commitments.

The following table shows an analysis of the Conyfmriinancial liabilities classified according tbet due dates,
considering the remaining period from the respedtialance sheet date to their contractual due dateamounts shown
in the table are the non-discounted contractudi dass.

Between 3

At December Less than 3 Between 1 and 2 More than 2

months and 1 Total
31, 2019 months year years years
;;ﬁiénd other 3,999,937,57; 614,374,26' 1,228,134,35( 237,965,02 6,080,411,216
Loans 2,937,870,64! 4,173,094,80: 6,883,154,12( 22,715,599,43 36,709,719,01.
Total 6,937,808,22( 4,787,469,07! 8,111,288,47¢ 22,953,564,46: 42,790,130,228
At December Less than 3 Between 3 Between 1 and 2 More than 2

months and 1 Total
31, 2018 months year years years
;;ﬁiénd other 1,966,556,78( 1,821,552,60° 1,419,742,00: 373,304,38, 5,581,155,773
Loans 2,588,098,85: 3,526,525,20: 5,517,844,78! 20,134,656,78: 31,767,125,62
Total 4,554,655,63! 5,348,077,80¢ 6,937,586,78¢ 20,507,961,17( 37,348,281,399
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5.2 Capital risk management

The objectives of the Company when it administegstal are to secure the correct operation of th@any, to encourage
its growth, to meet the financial commitments takarand produce yields to its shareholders, keegingptimum capital
structure.

Consistently with the industry, the Company mormsitits capital based on the Consolidated Debt taugtdfl EBITDA
ratio. This ratio is calculated dividing the neafs by EBITDA. Net borrowings correspond to totalrbwings (including
current and non-current borrowings) less cash ast equivalents. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as apieg income less
operating expenses (including selling and admiiiiste expenses, provided that they are includedemumgerating
expenses) plus amortization, depreciation and #rgrmon-cash expenses (provided that they anedadiunder operating
expenses).

In the year ended December 31, 2019, the Companyried long-term indebtedness mainly through théssoe of NO
GMSA-CTR Class Il for an amount of USD 80,000,000.

This issue has allowed improvements in the indeteiesl profile, by extending the due dates. Condeliddebt to adjusted
EBITDA ratios at December 31, 2019 and 2018 wer®lksys:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Total loan 26,787,628,44 24,036,104,73
Less: Cash and cash equival: (879,173,04: (475,205,211
Net deb 25,908,455,40! 23,560,899,52
EBITDA (*) 7,776,841,33: 6,372,080,01(
Net debt/ EBITDA 3.331 3.698

(*) Amount not covered by the Audit Report.

NOTE 6: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires@any Management to make estimates and assumptianerning the
future, apply critical judgments and establish pgeem that affect application of the accounting ge$ and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses

These estimates and judgments are continually ateduand are based on historical experience ard fatbtors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstadatsal future results may differ from those estiesabnd assessments
made at the date these financial statements wepapd. The estimates and assumptions that hagaificant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying ansofassets and liabilities within the next fisgahr are detailed below:

a) Impairment of assets

Long-lived assets are tested for impairment atdhest levels for which there are separately idiexitie cash flows (cash-
generating units or CGUSs).
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a) Impairment of assets (Cont'd)

Electricity production plants of the Company cotugé a cash generating unit, already representiagawest level of
separation of assets that generate independenfloash

Assets that are subject to amortization are tdstdthpairment whenever events or circumstanceigaid that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

In evaluating whether there is any indication ti&t cash generating unit could be affected, inteand external sources
of information are analyzed. Specific events amdurnstances are considered, which in general iedine discount rate
used in the projections of cash flows of each ef @GU and the business condition in terms of maaket economic
factors, such as the cost of raw materials, thalaggry framework of the energy industry, projectegital expenditure
and the evolution of energy demand.

An impairment loss is recognized when the asset'sying value exceeds its recoverable value. Theverable value is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costeliaad value in use. Any impairment loss will bstdbuted (to reduce the
carrying value of the assets of the CGU) as follows

- First, to reduce the carrying value of goodwilbakted to the cash generating unit, and
- then, reduce the carrying amounts of the otheitse$¢he unit (or group of units) pro rata on tfaesis of the carrying
amount of each asset of the unit (or group of unfitke carrying amount of an asset should not deaed below the

highest of its fair value less costs to sell, @tue in use, or zero.

- The amount of the impairment loss that would otlievihave been allocated to the asset shall beatdidpro rata to
the other assets of the CGU.

Judgment is required from Management at the timestifnating the future cash flows. Actual cash 8amd values may
significantly vary from expected future cash floarad the related values obtained through discochnigues.
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b) Current and deferred income tax / Minimum notional income tax

The Company recognizes income taxes applying tlierrdel tax method. Consequently, the deferred tmeta and

liabilities are recognized according to the futte®® consequences attributable to the differencésdmn the carrying

amount of existing assets and liabilities and #epective tax bases. Deferred tax assets andtlebire valued at the
approved tax rates that should theoretically béiegppn the taxable income in the years in whigtdmporary differences
are expected to be settled. A high degree of juddgriee required to determine the provision for inemax since

Management regularly assesses the positions daxheturns regarding situations where the appléctdx regulation is

subject to interpretation and, if necessary, setoovisions based on the amounts payable toathauthorities. When
the final outcome of these matters is differentfrihe initially recognized amounts, such differeneéll have an impact
on income tax and deferred taxes in the fiscal yreauhich they are determined.

There are many transactions and calculations aicgptd which the latest tax determination is unaiert The Company
early recognizes tax liabilities based on the estim as to whether additional taxes must be paideifiuture. When the
final tax result differs from the amounts initialgcognized, any such differences will have an ichpa the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in theqgal in which such determination was made.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at every repodiitg and reduced according to the probability ahstfficient tax base
might be available to allow recovering these assetghole or in part. Deferred assets and liaketitare not discounted.
When assessing the realizability of deferred taetss Management considers it probable that somed|, @eferred tax

assets are not realizable.

Whether deferred tax assets are realizable depenilie generation of future taxable income forégods in which these
temporary differences are deductible. In making #isessment, Management takes into account tbéwsde reversal of
deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxalleome and tax planning strategies.

c) Provisions

Provisions cover contingencies arising in the cadjrcourse of business and other sundry risksthdtl create obligations
for the Company. In estimating the amounts and givdities of occurrence, the opinion of the Companggal advisors
has been considered.

At the date of issue of these financial statemehesCompany Management understands that thereaskments which

may determine the existence of other contingertiescould materialize and have a negative impadhese financial
statements.
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d) Allowance for bad debts

The allowance for bad debts has been set up basatiistorical analysis of accounts receivablesteas the recoverability
of the credit portfolio.

The allowance for bad debts was $2,655,764 at DieeeBil, 2019 and $4,085,426 at December 31, 2018.

e) Defined benefit plans

The Company determines the liabilities related douanulated bonuses for service length and to thel®me benefits
plans mentioned, considering all the rights acchyethe beneficiaries until year end, based orctuneaial study performed
by an independent professional at that date. Theasal method applied by the Company is the Pteg®&enefit Unit
method.

f) Fair value of property, plant and equipment

The fair value calculated by means of the discaligtesh flow was used to value facilities and mastyinThis cash flow
was prepared on the basis of estimates with anoapprto consider different scenarios accordindhéir tprobability of
occurrence.

The following variables have been taken into actdumelation to the estimates made: (i) excharage fluctuations; (ii)
availability and dispatch of turbines associatethwiemand projections according to vegetative gnoii) operating and
maintenance cost; (iv) number of employees; (Walist rate used, among others. Each of these saermamtemplate
different assumptions regarding the critical vaeahused.

The discounted cash flow at December 31, 2019 dersitwo scenarios (pessimistic and basic scenawitis different
probabilities of occurrence. The two scenarioseafiem current rate schedules and are combined difterent turbine
dispatch alternatives.

The criteria considered in each scenario are th@Wimg:

1. Base scenario: in this case the Company corssalhistorical average availability and an expedisgatch according
to projections of the demand for energy with a Vatiee growth. Probability of occurrence assignéaio.

2. Pessimistic scenario: in this case the Compamgiders a historical average availability and spdich of less than
expected of the demand for energy. Probabilitycaiuorence: 30%.
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NOTE 6: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)
f) Fair value of property, plant and equipment (Cort'd)

In all scenarios a discount rate in dollars of agpnately 11.51% was used, which contemplatesuhed scenarios.

The percentages of probability of occurrence asslgare mainly based on the occurrence of diffepast events
(experience).

Actual results could differ from the estimates,te projected cash flows might be badly affectedny of the above-
mentioned factors changes in the near future.

The Company cannot assure that the future behaf/tbose variables will be in line with projectigreéd differences might
arise between the estimated cash flows and therea#g obtained.

The fair value determination of property, plant atpiipment is significantly affected by the dokesxchange rate. This
situation, valuation processes and results areisisdl and approved by the Board of the Companleasitonce a year.

However, if the discounted cash flow differs by 10%m Management estimates, the Company will need:
- To increase the fair value of land, buildingsilites and machinery by $ 3,036 million, if it veefavorable; or

- To reduce the fair value of land, buildings,iliies and machinery by $ 3,036 million, if it weenot favorable.

At March 31, 2019, the fair values of revalued ébassets amounted to $ 33,708,677,562, representiegrease in their
value for $ 296,145,044 which was recorded in otloenprehensive income.

The Company performed an analysis of the recoveraslue of property, plant and equipment at June28@9 and
concluded that due to the macroeconomic variationigflation and the US dollar exchange rate, assecreased by
$ 2,589,581,443 and recognized its effect in otloenprehensive income.

At December 31, 2019, the Company performed aryaisabf the variables that are considered for #ieutation of the
recoverable value of property, plant and equipmimis obtaining an increase in their value for 6,262,563 with its
effects being recognized in other comprehensiverire:
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NOTE 7: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Original values Depreciation Net amount at end of year
. Accumulated )
- Technical Technical
At beginning of Transfers/ : Recovery / At the end of at the For the year : Recovery / Accumulated
Type of asset year Increases withdrawals reva;;;;\tlon (Impairment) the year beginning of [€H)] revaé;;mon (Impairment) at year end At12.31.2019 At12.31.2018
year
Land 921,894,118 11,986,830 - . 933,880,948 - - . - - 933,880,948 921,894,118
Buildings 1,445,948,32¢€ (112,258) (36,921,078) 1,408,914,990 7,893,604 29,027,474 (36,921,078) . - 1,408,914,990 1,438,054,722
Facilities 3,856,361,69€ 5,787,341 (628,903,811) 3,233,245,226 52,072,571 203,891,900 (255,964,471) 3,233,245,226 3,804,289,125
Machinery 28,619,612,267 17,361,024 (3,852,487,022) - 24,784,486,26¢ 384,640,058 1,251,422,374 (1,636,062,432) 24,784,486,268 28,234,972,209
Works in
progress - 2,380,656,97€  6,285,403,068 8,666,060,04€ - - - . - 8,666,060,04€ 2,380,656,978
Extension of ,380,656, ,285,403, ,666,060, ,666,060, ,380,656,
Plant
Computer and 52,647,489 2,266,806 54,914,205 35594961 6,810,693 42,405,654 12,508,641 17,052,526
office equipment
Vehicles 34,151,393 284,490 34,435,883 15,750,997 3,849,564 19,600,561 14,835,322 18,400,400
i’l?éfag.a”s and 139,652,374 135,123,292 274,775,666 - - : : - 274,775,666 139,652,372
I;tgg_aztoj_g 37,450,924,641 6,458,212,851 (112,258) (4,518,311,911) - 39,390,713,323 495,952,191 1,495,002,005 (1,928,947,981) 62,006,215 39,328,707,10¢ -
Iglgllaztom 24,563,073,861  3,459,777,04C 5,456,946,01¢ 3,971,127,721 37,450,924,641 33,474,511 1,386,468,763  (1,595,145,368) 671,154,285 495,952,191 36,954,972,450

(1) Depreciation charges for the year ended Decemhe23D and 2018 were allocated to the cost of sales
(2) At December 31, 2019, it corresponds to the revmindor $ 2,589,363,930, offset by the accumulategreciation at the time of revaluation for $ 8827,981.
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NOTE 8: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At December 31, 2019

Financial assets/
liabilities
at amortized co

At fair value through
profit and loss

Non-financial assets/
liabilities

Total

Assets

Trade receivables, other
receivables and investme
Cash and cash equivale
Non-financial asse

Total

Liabilities
Trade and other payab
Loans (finance leases
excluded

Finance leases

Non-financial liabilities
Total

At December 31, 2018

5,837,323,15¢ 129,863 1,943,529,16( 7,780,982,182
735,874,12¢ 143,298,91¢ - 879,173,04:

- - 39,545,043,04 39,545,043,04
6,573,197,28: 143,428,78: 41,488,572,20 48,205,198,27
6,080,411,211 - - 6,080,411,211

26,684,751,66¢

26,684,751,668

c - -
102,876,77¢ 102,876,77
- - 6,078,148,19: 6,078,148,19i
32,868,039,66:. 6,078,148,19  38,946,187,861

Financial assets/
liabilities

At fair value through

Non-financial assets

Total

at amortized co profit and loss liabilities
Assets
gggi‘f/égl‘;es“’:fﬁ{v Ztsrlﬁ]re 4,295,838,02¢ 199,76 770,998,332  5,067,036,117
Other financial assets at fair
value througtprofit or los: 388,209,91 388,209,911
Cash and cash equivale 233,822,371 241,382,83¢ - 475,205,21:
Non-financial asse - - 37,120,582,40! 37,120,582,40!
Total 4,529,660,40! 629,792,51: 37,891,580,72  43,051,033,644
Liabilities
Trade and other payab 5,581,155,77: - - 5,581,155,77:
;ggzzéznance leases 23,892,605,78 23,892,605,788
Finance leas: 143,498,94¢ - - 143,498,94¢
Non-financial liabilities - - 3,367,578,47 3,367,578,47
Total 29,617,260,51( - 3,367,578,477  32,984,838,987

The categories of financial instruments were dei@ethbased on IFRS 9.
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NOTE 8: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Below are presented the revenues, expenses, mofittosses arising from each financial instruncaiggory.

At December 31, 2019

Financial assets at
amortized cost

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit and los

Financial liabilities

at amortized cost

Non-financial
instruments

Total

Interest earne

Interest pai

Exchange differences, 1
Other financial resul
Total

901,329,02¢

1,908,345,74¢

(139,427,82¢

(2,734,741,57¢
(12,454,511,13:
(208,936,994

10,788,792,48:

901,329,02¢
(2,734,741,57¢
(10,546,165,38:
10,440,427,66!

2,809,674,77:

(139,427,825)

(15,398,189,700

10,788,792,48:i

(1,939,150,264)

Financial assets

At December 31, 2018 Financigl assets at fair valug Financial_liabilities l\_lon-financial Total
at amortized cos through profit at amortized cost instruments
and los
Interest earne 37,822,19: - - - 337,822,19:
Interest pai - - (2,466,356,73" - (2,466,356,73"
Exchange differences, 1 2,774,356,22! - (19,907,541,05: - (17,133,184,82
Other financial resul - 1,080,586,67¢ (357,371,661 11,931,401,85 12,654,616,86!
Total 3,112,178,41¢ 1,080,586,67¢ (22,731,269,45( 11,931,401,85

Fair value estimates

(6,607,102,50:

The Company classifies fair value measurementman€ial instruments using a three-level hieraretlyich gives priority
to the inputs used in making such measurementsyvihie hierarchies:

- Level 1: (unadjusted) quoted prices in active kate for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices includéithin Level 1, that are observable for the assdtability,
either directly (i.e., prices) or indirectly (i.@eriving from prices);

- Level 3: Inputs on the assets or liabilities based on observable market inputs (i.e. unobsexaplts).

The following table shows the Company's financ&sdeds and liabilities measured at fair value atebdzer 31, 2019 and

2018.
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NOTE 8: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

At December 31, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Share - - 129,863 129,868
Mutual fund: 143,298,91¢ - - 143,298,91¢
Property, plant and equipm: - - 30,360,527,43: 30,360,527,43
Total 143,298,91¢ - 30,360,657,29 30,503,956,21.
At December 31, 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Share - - 199,768 199,768
Derivative financial instrumer 388,209,91: - - 388,209,91:
Mutual fund: 241,382,83¢ - - 241,382,83¢
Property, plant and equipm: - - 34,399,210,17. 34,399,210,17.
Total 629,592,741 34,399,409,94 35,029,002,688

The fair value of financial instruments traded ativee markets is based on quoted market pricdseatdte of the statement
of financial position. A market is regarded as\aii quoted prices are readily and regularly ald# from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,regulatory agency, and those prices representlaand regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm's lengsisbd he quoted market price used for financiaktasbeld by the
Company is the current bid price. These instrumargsncluded in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are maded in an active market is determined by usalgation techniques.

These valuation techniques maximize the use ofreghbke market data where it is available and rsliite as possible on

the Company's specific estimates. If all signifidaputs required to fair value an instrument areeyvable, the instrument
is included in level 2. No financial instrument®ald be included in Level 2. If one or more varezblsed to calculate the
fair value are not observable in the market, tharitial instrument is included in Level 3. Thes&rmments are included
in Level 3. This is the case of the revaluatioc@tftain categories of property, plant and equipment

Specific valuation techniques used to determindahesalue of property, plant and equipment ineud

a) As for Land and Buildings, they have been adjusted method using coefficients that comprise chargé¢he
purchasing power of the currency to conform avalue at December 31, 2019.

b) The fair values of “Facilities” and “Machinery” wecalculated by means of the discounted cash f(®&e Note
6.f).

NOTE 9: INVENTORIES

12.31.201 12.31.201
Spare parts and materi 216,335,94: 165,609,95¢
216,335,941 165,609,955
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NOTE 10: TRADE RECEIVABLES

Non-Current Note 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Net receivables from CAMMES, - 89,915,47¢
- 89,915,47¢

Current

Trade receivable 2,019,875,91( 1,356,258,31«

Net receivables from CAMMES., - 59,887,34¢

Energy sold to be bille 1,021,064,78: 1,054,199,83!

Allowance for bad debi 22 (2,655,764 (4,085,426
3,038,284,929 2,466,260,075

The carrying amount of current trade receivablggs@pmates their fair value since they fall dudhie short term.

Long-term receivables are measured at present aglpiging a market rate. The amount thus obtaired ahot differ from
its fair value.

The movements of the provision for trade receivable as follow:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Balance at the beginning of ye 4,085,42¢ 6,031,931
Unused amounts revers 81,567 -
RECPAM (Purchasing Power Parity) (1,511,229 (1,946,505
Balance at year end 2,655,764 4,085,426

The maximum credit risk exposure at the balanceetstate is the carrying amount of each type ofetradd other
receivables. The Company does not maintain anyagtee as collection security.

NOTE 11: Other receivables

Non-Current Note 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Minimum notional income tax crec 62,800,68¢ 96,607,807
Balance with related partit 32 2,720,720,01! -

2,783,520,70! 96,607,807

_Current
Balances with related parti 32 48,669,09¢ 1,716,347,80t
Loans to Director- Shareholder 32 29,649,11¢ 23,314,671
Turnover tax withholdings and credit balat 15,373,551 32,556,17¢
Social security withholding 491,512 19,776,61¢
Value added ta 63,302,66: 175,534,93¢
Tax- Law No. 2541% 90,500,387 65,767,41°¢
Insurance to be accrut 78,149,51¢ 24,553,63:
Advances to suppliel 1,625,904,37! 320,228,99:
Sundry 7,006,47( 35,972,74:

1,959,046,684 2,414,052,991

The carrying amount of other current receivablgg@xmates fair value due to their short-term miggur

50



Free translation from the original prepared in $gafor publication in Argentina

Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 11: OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Other long-term receivables are measured at presérg applying a market rate. The amount thusioétbdoes not differ
from its fair value.

NOTE 12: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

12.31.201 12.31.201
Cash 463,853 752,316
Banks in local currenc 27,767,20¢ 138,352,897
Banks in foreign currenc 706,982,34¢ 94,717,164
Mutual funds 143,298,91¢ 241,382,83¢
Checks to be deposit 660,717 -
879,173,042 475,205,211

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, casi, equivalents and bank overdraft facilitiestidet

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Cash and cash equivale 879,173,04: 475,205,21:
Cash and cash equivalents (bank overdraft included) 879,173,042 475,205,211

NOTE 13: SHARE CAPITAL
Subscribed and registered capital at December@1 amounted to $ 138,172,150.

NOTE 14: DISTRIBUTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

Dividends

Tax on dividends: A tax is levied on dividends ooffis distributed, among others, by Argentine camips or permanent
establishments to: individuals, undivided estateforeign beneficiaries, according to the followireges: (i) dividends

deriving from profits generated during fiscal yebegjyinning on or after January 1, 2018 until Decengi, 2020 will be

subject to tax at a rate of 7%, and; (ii) dividewdsiving from profits obtained during fiscal yedmsginning on or after
January 1, 2021 will be subject to tax at a rat&38hb.

Dividends on profits obtained until the fiscal ygaior to the fiscal year beginning on or afterulany 1, 2018 will continue
to be subject to withholdings, for all beneficiatieat a rate of 35% of the amount exceeding redagenings to be
distributed free of tax (transition period of equation tax).

Pursuant to General Companies Law No. 19550, 58tegprofit reported in the statement of comprehansicome for the

year, net of prior year adjustments, transferstioéiocomprehensive income to unappropriated reda@aenings and prior
year accumulated losses, is to be allocated ttegs reserve, until it reaches 20% of the capitatk.
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NOTE 15: TRADE PAYABLES

Non-Current Note 12.31.201 12.31.201

Suppliers 1,466,099,37! 1,793,046,38!
1,466,099,378 1,793,046,386

Current

Suppliers 3,101,183,28: 2,827,987,20:

Balances with related parti 32 1,317,615,47. 732,338,47:

Suppliers- purchases not yet bille 195,144,26° 226,325,81¢

4,613,943,022 3,786,651,493

The carrying amount of current trade receivablgg@pmates fair value due to their short-term mitur

NOTE 16: OTHER LIABILITIES

Current Note 12.31.2019 12.31.2018

Balances with related parti 32 368,81¢€ 1,457,894
368,816 1,457,894

NOTE 17: LOANS

Non-Current 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
International bonu 15,937,385,54. 15,440,801,22!
Foreign loan dek 299,256,52¢ 866,053,13¢
Negotiable obligation 6,601,667,74: 3,645,267,81!
Other bank debt 19,963,33: -
Finance lease dek 60,826,92¢ 97,097,31:

22,919,100,06!

20,049,219,49

Current
International bont 639,351,92( 640,814,92¢
Related companie 309,174,88: -
Foreign loan dek 677,462,08" 656,060,51:
Syndicated Loal 399,189,28¢ 1,509,058,60!
Negotiable obligation 1,258,867,17 527,583,23:
CAMMESA - 9,340,75¢€
Other bank debt 542,433,17: 597,625,56¢
Finance lease dek 42,049,85¢ 46,401,63¢
3,868,528,37! 3,986,885,24

At December 31, 2019, the total financial debt antetio $ 26,788 million. The following table shothe total debt at that
date.
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NOTE 17: LOANS (Cont'd)

Balances at

- . Date of
Principal December 31, Interest rate Currency Date of issue Maturity date:
2019
(Pesos) (%)
Loan agreement
Cargill USD 15,000,000 976,718,615 LIBOR + 4.25% usb February 16, 2018 January 29, 2021
Subtotal 976,718,615
Debt securities
International Bon USD 266,000,0C 16,576,737,4€ 9.625% UsD July 27,201¢€ July 27, 202
Class VI Negotiable Obligations USD 6,640,279 401,513,510 8.00% uUsD February 16, 2017 February 16, 2020
Class VIII Negotiable Obligations $ 312,884,660 327,337,502 BADLAR + 5% ARS August 28, 2017 August 28, 2021
8.50% until the first date of amortization
Class X Negotiable Obligations USD 28,148,340 1,668,374,179 10.50% until the second amortization da uUsD December 4, 2019 February 16, 2021
13.00% until the third amortization date
Class | Negotiable Obligation co-issuance USD 3,014,000 207,573,651 6.68% usD October 11, 2017 October 11, 2020
Class Il Negotiable Obligation co-issuance USD 72,000,000 4,250,320,446 15.00% usD August 5, 2019 May 5, 2023
8.00% until the first date of amortization
Class Ill Negotiable Obligation co-issuanc USD 17,153,855 1,005,415,630 13.00% until the second date of usbD December 4, 2019 April 12, 2021
amortization
Subtotal 24,437,272,381
Syndicated loan
ICBC / Hipotecario / Citibank $ 396,500,000 399,189,285 TM20 + 8.00% ARS December 27, 201¢  December 27, 2020
Subtotal 399,189,285
Other liabilities
Supervielle loan USD 1,015,426 61,259,205 9.90% usbD August 7, 2019 February 4, 2020
Macro loan USD 3,333,333 200,672,521 9.00% UsD August 30, 2018 January 12, 2021
Chubut loan USD 170,340 10,239,812 10.50% uUsD July 18, 2019 January 18, 2020
Chubut loan USD 672,850 40,454,888 11.009 usD October 18, 2019 April 16, 2020
Chubut loan USD 836,993 50,203,017 11.00% uUsD November 25, 201¢ May 25, 2020
Supervielle loa $135,000,00 139,532,67 64.50% ARS November 15, 201 February 7, 202
Chubut loan USD 1,000,000 60,034,392 11.00% uUsD December 23, 201¢ June 23, 2020
Related parties (Note 31) $ 309,174,881 309,174,881 35.00% ARS June 28, 2019 June 28, 2020
Finance lease 102,876,779
Subtotal 974,448,16

Total financial debt

a) Issuance of international bonds

26,787,628,447

On July 7, 2016, under CNV Resolution No. 18110,$MGeneracion Frias S.A. and CTR obtained authtoiz for the
co-issuance in the domestic and international nar&é simple guaranteed unsubordinated negotiabligations, not
convertible for shares. On July 27, 2016, Nego#ighibligations were issued for USD 250 million, matg in 7 years. The
Negotiable Obligations are unconditionally andyfiguaranteed by ASA.

The NO have a Moody’s CCC rating.
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NOTE 17: LOANS (Cont'd)

a) Issuance of international bonds (Cont'd)

This issuance allowed financing investments underGompany’s expansion plans, as a result of trerdalwy the ES of
Wholesale Demand Contracts through Resolution N6/2D16 dated June 14, 2016, and also the Co-@8qurejects under
development, which in the aggregate represent wiorkimstalling 460 nominal MW. In addition, it alived for improving
the Co-issuers’ financial profile with the earlypegment of existing loans at the date of issueginbitg a term for financing
in accordance with the projects under financing alisd a considerable decrease in financing cdsis, achieving greater
financial efficiency and release of guarantees.

On November 8, 2017, under RESFC-2017-19033-APN4#DIRV Resolution, GMSA and CTR obtained authorizatio
from the CNV for the International Bond reopenim December 5, 2017, Negotiable Obligations wesedd for USD 86
million, with a nominal value of USD 336 million.h€ negotiable obligations have the same conditaenthe originally
issued ones.

On March 8, 2019, GMSA and CTR obtained, throughVCResolution No. RESFC-2019-20111-APN-DIR#CNV
authorization for increasing the maximum amountapSD 300,000,000 of the program for co-issuarfcHegotiable
Obligations.

International Bond:

Principal: Nominal value: USD 336,000,000; amount assign€aNISA: USD 266,000,000 (Considering the effect Merg
Generacion Frias S.A))

Interest: Fixed rate of 9.625%

Amortization term and method: Interest on the International Bond will be paidhé@annually in arrears, on the following
dates: January 27 and July 27 of each year, comingeon January 27, 2017 to maturity.

Principal on the negotiable obligations shall bedired in a lump sum payment at maturity, thabis July 27, 2023.
Principal balance on the International Bond outditagn at December 31, 2019 is USD 266,000,000.
As a result of the issue of International Bonds, @ompany has undertaken standard commitmentsifotype of issue,

whose specific conditions are detailed in the pertt public prospectus. At the date of these firrstatements, the
Company is in compliance with all commitments umalezn.
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NOTE 17: LOANS (Cont'd)
b) Negotiable obligations:

On October 17, 2012, GMSA obtained, under Resailuti®942 of the CNV, authorization for: (i) incorption of GMSA
to the public offering system; and (ii) creationaoflobal program to issue simple negotiable olibga (non-convertible
into shares), for a total outstanding nominal vatdieup to USD 100,000,000 (one hundred million USlats) or its
equivalent in other currencies, in one or moresgaor series.

In line with the preceding paragraph, on Septen@$er2017, GMSA and CTR obtained under RESFC-2010418\PN-
DIR#CNV Resolution authorization from the CNV fdretcreation of a program for the co-issuance inldbal market of
simple negotiable obligations, not convertible ist@res, for a total outstanding nominal valueptaUSD 100 million
(one hundred million United States dollars) oritgiivalent in other currencies.

At December 31, 2019 there are outstanding Clas®¥M and X Negotiable Obligations (GMSA) and Céak Il and Il
Negotiable Obligations (GMSA-CTR Co-issuance), éklby the Company for the amounts and under thewfiolg
conditions: In addition, Class VIl (GMSA) negotialdbligations were redeemed during the currenbgeri

Class VI Negotiable Obligations:

Principal: Nominal value: USD 34,696,397

Interest: 8% annual nominal, paid quarterly as from May2@l7 to maturity.

Amortization term and method: one-off payment once 36 months have elapsed flisbursement of funds.

The negotiable obligations were paid up in cash iankind, in the latter case through a swap of €l&#sNegotiable
Obligations for USD 448,262.

The proceeds from the issue of Class VI Negoti@itikgations were applied to investments in propgstgnt and equipment
on various extension projects of GMSA and refinagaf liabilities, improving the Company’s indebitex$s profile.

With the issue of NO Class X a swap of 80.86% efghincipal issued under NO Class VI was achieved.

After the swap, principal balance on those negtiabligations outstanding at December 31, 201998 6,640,279.
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NOTE 17: LOANS (Cont'd)

b) Negotiable obligations (Cont'd)

Class VIl Negotiable Obligations:

Class VIl negotiable obligations were issued orgist 28, 2017 and were fully subscribed in kind.

Principal: Nominal value: $ 312,884,660

Interest: Private Banks BADLAR rate plus a 5% margin. Pagaplarterly as from November 29, 2017 to maturity.
Amortization term and method: one-off payment once 48 months have elapsed flisbursement of funds.

The proceeds from the issue of Class VIl nego#iailigations were fully applied to the refinancofdiabilities, improving
the Company's indebtedness profile.

Principal balance on that Negotiable Obligationstartding amounted to $ 312,884,660 at Decembe2(BB.
Class X Negotiable Obligations:

On December 4, 2019, the Company issued NO CldsdiyXintegrated by the swap of NO Class VI undese following
conditions:

Principal: nominal value: USD 28,148,340

Interest: 8.5% annual nominal, payable as from the issuesatittment date until February 16, 2020, includiven 10.5%
annual nominal, payable on a quarterly basis dutgust 16, 2020 and the remaining 13% payable quraaterly basis until
maturity on February 16, 2021.

Payment term and method Amortization: The NO principal will be amortized three installments, the first one on
February 16, 2020 for 10% principal, the seconduogust 16, 2020 for 20% principal, and the thirdFabruary 16, 2021
for 70% principal.

The issue allowed the swap of 80.86% of the amdiumly issued under NO Class VI, improving the fiol debt
maturities profile of the Company.

Principal balance on those negotiable obligatiaristanding at December 31 is USD 28,148,340.
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b) Negotiable obligations (Cont'd)

Class | Negotiable Obligation (GMSA and CTR co-issance)

Class | negotiable obligations were co-issued otk 11, 2017 and were fully subscribed in cash.

Principal: total nominal value USD 30,000,000; amount assigito GMSA: USD 20,000,000

Interest: 6.68% annual nominal rate, payable quarterly @s flanuary 11, 2018 to maturity.

Amortization term and method: one-off payment once 36 months have elapsed flisbursement of funds.

The Negotiable Obligations were paid up in cash.

The proceeds from the issue of the Class | Nedeti@bligations will be destined mainly to investrtseim property, plant
ﬁlggili?eusi!oment on the various expansion proje€t8A and CTR and, to a lesser extent, to workirgitaband refinancing

With the co-issue GMSA-CTR Class Ill a swap of 8¥®of the principal issued under Co-issue GMSA-CJIRss | was
achieved.

Principal balance on those negotiable obligatiaristanding at December 31, 2019 is USD 3,014,000.

Class Il Negotiable Obligations (GMSA and CTR co-isuance):

Class Il negotiable obligations were co-issued agust 5, 2019 and were fully subscribed in cash.

Principal: total nominal value USD 80 million; amount assigrito GMSA: USD 72 million

Interest: 15% annual nominal, paid quarterly as from Noventh@019 to maturity.

Maturity date: May 5, 2023

Amortization method: ten equal and consecutive payments on a quakliasig from February 5, 2021 to their maturity.

The proceeds from the issuance of Class Il Negleti@bligations were mainly applied to the refinaugcof liabilities and
investment in property, plant and equipment and, fesser extent, to working capital.

Class Il Negotiable Obligations will be: (i) guataeed by Albanesi S.A.; and (ii) secured by pledge®perating turbines,
a mortgage on CTI, a reserve account funded bypevimds’ interest and the assignment of collectights over contracts

with CAMMESA under ES Resolution No. 220/07 andB&solution No. 21/17.

Principal balance on those negotiable obligatiartstanding at December 31, 2019 is USD 72,000,000.
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NOTE 17: LOANS (Cont'd)

b) Negotiable obligations (Cont'd)

Class Ill Negotiable Obligations (GMSA and CTR co-$suance):

On December 4, 2019, the Company and CTR issuedCId65s Il for the amount detailed below, fully igtated by the
swap of the Co-Issue GMSA-CTR Class | under thiefohg conditions:

Principal: nominal value: USD 25,730,782; amount assigneé@NtSA: USD 17,153,855

Interest: 8% annual nominal, payable on a quarterly badi$ @atober 13, 2020 inclusive and then 13% anmaethinal,
payable on a quarterly basis until its maturityAgril 12, 2021.

Payment term and method Amortization: NO principal will be amortized iwb installments, the first one on October 13,
2020 for 10% of the principal and the second onilA@®, 2021 for 90% of principal.

The issue allowed the swap of 84.93% of the am&mmely issued under Co-lssue GMSA-CTR Class |, iowprg the
financial debt maturities of the Company.

Principal balance on those negotiable obligatiartstanding at December 31, 2019 is USD 17,153,855.
c¢) Cargill loan

On February 16, 2018, the Company obtained a laman €argill Limited for USD 25,000,000 repayabled installments,
with a grace period of 12 months. Amortization vai# in half-yearly installments of principal anderest at LIBOR 360
plus 4.25%.

Principal balance on that debt at December 31, 20UED 15,000,000.

d) Syndicated Loan

On December 27, 2019, GMSA obtained a 12-month faan Banco ICBC Argentina S.A. for $ 396,500,08@nortized
in 9 monthly consecutive installments, being thhstfone payable after 4 months from disbursement.

Principal balance on that debt at December 31, 20$396,500,000.

58



Free translation from the original prepared in $gafor publication in Argentina

Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 17: LOANS (Cont'd)

The due dates of Company loans and their exposungerest rates are as follows:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018

Fixed rate

Less than 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 3 years
More than 3 years

Floating rate

Less than 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 3 years
More than 3 years

2,733,750,6¢
3,794,015,2¢
1,679,178,0¢
16,774,562,25

2,776,941,764
3,174,686,467
3,957,289
15,432,886,648

24,981,506,2¢€

21,388,472,168

1,134,777,6€ 1,209,943,477
647,722,1¢ 603,844,912
23,594,32 799,608,005
27,97 34,236,175
1,806,122,1¢ 2,647,632,569

26,787,628,44

24,036,104,737

The fair value of Company’s international bond®atember 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 amouapi@ximately
$ 10,116 million and $ 13,717 million, respectiveair value was calculated based on the estimatattet price of the
Company's international bonds at the end of eadalfiyear/period. The applicable fair value catggeavuld be Level 1.

The other loans at variable rates have been stafiadt value. Given the proximity of their issuanfixed-rate loans do not
differ significantly from their fair value.

Fair values are based on the present value ofaintil cash flows, applying a discount rate deriveh observable market
prices of other similar debt instruments, plusriepective credit risk.

59



Free translation from the original prepared in $gafor publication in Argentina

Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 17: LOANS (Cont'd)

Company loans are denominated in the followingengies:

Argentine pesos
US dollars

Changes in Company loans were as follows:

12.31.2019

12.31.2018

1,181,451,77
25,606,176,6€

1,125,518,925
22,910,585,812

26,787,628,44

24,036,104,737

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Loans at beginning of the year 24,036,104,72 16,499,989,105
Loans received 8,283,119 ,4¢€ 7,738,513,620
Loans paid (6,300,419,48( (6,303,115,015)
Accrued interest 2,671,172,41 2,819,177,106
Interest paid (2,399,323,98¢ (2,176,010,511)
Exchange difference 11,380,986,8¢ 14,777,687,546
Capitalized expenses (280,633,94( (28,649,731)
RECPAM (Purchasing Power Parity) (10,603,377,65¢ (9,291,487,383)

Loans at year end

26,787,628,44

24,036,104,737

NOTE 18: LEASES
This note provides information on leases in whith €ompany acts as lessor.

Amounts recognized in the statement of Financiaitiom:

12.31.2019
Right of use of asset
Machinery 20,623,04
Vehicles 6,047,49
26,670,53
Lease liabilities
Curren 42,049,85
Non-curren 60,826,92
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NOTE 18: LEASES (Cont'd)

Changes in Company finance leases were as follows:

Finance lease at the beginni

Payments made for the y

Interest paic

Accrued interest and exchange differe
RECPAM (Purchasing Power Parit
Finance lease atyear enc

NOTE 19: SALARIES AND SOCIAL SECURITY LIABILITIES

Current

Social security charges payal
Salaries payabl

Provision for vacation pa

NOTE 20: TAX PAYABLES

Current

National Fund of Electric Energ

Income tax withholdings to be deposii
Turnover tax withholdings to be deposi
Paymer-in-installment plar

Provision for income tax withholding overru
Sundry
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12.31.201

143,498,952
(38,739,726)
(27,997,988)

79,218,002
(53,102,461)
102,876,779
12.31.2019 12.31.2018
60,263,56¢ 57,988,50¢
6,789,22¢ 128,081
11,933,08¢ 12,206,64¢
78,985,873 70,323,233
12.31.2019 12.31.2018
3,814,45¢ 1,163,141
3,533,96¢ 4,118,33€
8,340,221 7,457,809z
144,906,48: -
3,086,71¢ 5,429,66
413,57C 784,657
164,095,412 18,953,690




Free translation from the original prepared in $gafor publication in Argentina

Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 21: INCOME TAX/ DEFERRED TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilises follows:

Deferred tax asse

Deferred tax assets to be recovered over morelthanonth

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled over morartii2 montt

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
3,167,393,65! 3,179,441,89
3,167,393,65! 3,179,441,89

(8,974,695,59¢
(8,974,695,59¢

(6,430,262,94¢
(6,430,262,94¢

(5,807,30946) (3,250,821,050)

The gross transactions recorded in the deferreddeaunt are as follows:

Balances at beginning of y
Charge to income statement

Charge tcother comprehensive incol
Balance at year end

12.31.201 12.31.201

(3,250,821,05( (1,824,393,376)
(3,204,829, 336,161,060

648,348,10 (1,762,588,734)

(5,807,301,94¢ (3,250,821,050)

The activity in deferred tax assets and liabilitiwghout considering the offsetting of balancest ttorrespond to the same
tax jurisdiction, has been as follows:

Tradereceivables and other receival
Property, plant and equipm:

Loans

Other liabilities

Pension plar

Tax inflation adjustmel

Tax loss carr-forwards

Investment

Balance at Charge to income Charge to other Balance at
December 31, 2018 statement comprehensive December 31, 2019
income

19,690,09 34,360,43 - 54,050,52
(6,471,478,10¢ (1,237,835, 75¢ 647,340,98 (7,061,972,88¢
29,102,01 (27,821,47¢ - 1,280,53'
(10,326,09: 3,480,67! - (6,845,42¢E
6,174,51. 2,154,97 1,007,12 9,336,61!

- (1,927,376,97¢ - (1,927,376,97¢
3,159,751,79 (46,408,67% - 3,113,343,12

16,264,73 (5,382,192 - 10,882,54
(3,250,821,050) (3,204,828,999) 648,348,103 0B 1801,946)

The deferred tax assets due to tax losses aremeenignsofar as the realization of the correspogdiscal benefit through

future taxable income is probable.

The income tax charge is broken down as follows:

Deferred ta
Income tax

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
(3,204,828,999 336,161,060
(3,204,828,999 336,161,060
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NOTE 21: INCOME TAX/ DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

Tax Reform in Argentina and Law on Social Solidariy and Productive Reactivation

On December 29, 2017, the National Executive Brarddicted Law 27430 on Income Tax. This law intreduseveral
changes to the income tax treatment, among others:

Income tax rate: The income tax rate for Argentinmpanies will be reduced gradually from 35% to J0¥iscal years
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 until Decandie 2019 and to 25% for fiscal years beginningpafter January 1,
2020.

Tax on dividends: A tax is levied on dividends ooffis distributed, among others, by Argentine camigs or permanent
establishments to: individuals, undivided estatefoceign beneficiaries, according to the followirages: (i) dividends

deriving from profits generated during fiscal yebeginning on or after January 1, 2018 until Deceni, 2020 will be

subject to tax at a rate of 7%, and; (ii) dividewnlgsiving from profits obtained during fiscal yedmsginning on or after
January 1, 2021 will be subject to tax at a rat&38h.

Dividends on profits obtained until the fiscal ygaior to the fiscal year beginning on or afterulny 1, 2018 will continue
to be subject to withholdings, for all beneficiaieat a rate of 35% of the amount exceeding redagsnings to be
distributed free of tax (transition period of edqmation tax).

Pursuant to General Companies Law No. 19550, 58tegbrofit reported in the statement of comprehensicome for the
year, net of prior year adjustments, transferstioéiocomprehensive income to unappropriated reda@aenings and prior
year accumulated losses, is to be allocated ttet# reserve, until it reaches 20% of the caitatk.

Index-adjustments to deductions: Acquisitions #estments made in the fiscal years beginning @&fter January 1, 2018
will be index-adjusted based on the Domestic WhadéeBrice Index (“IPIM”, for its acronym in Spanjgtublished by the
National Institute of Statistics and Census (“INDEfor its acronym in Spanish). This will increatte depreciation that
may be deducted and its computable cost in thet@fensale.

On December 27, 2019, the National Executive Braanhcted Law 27541 on Social Solidarity and Pradect
Reactivation. As for Income tax applicable to camips, the following amendments introduced by élnedre highlighted:
- It maintains the tax rate at 30% for 2020 (thitershould have been reduced to 25% in accordaitic¢hs 2017
Tax Reform).
- Tax inflation adjustment: The allocation of tla inflation adjustment for the first and secondryeommenced
as from January 1, 2019 must be allocated in guarés$ during 6 fiscal years.
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NOTE 21: INCOME TAX/ DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)
- Personal assets tax, shares and equity intefiestgate rises from 0.25% to 0.50%.

The reconciliation between income tax charged twnme and that resulting from the application of tive rate to the
accounting profit before taxes is shown below:

12.31.201 12.31.201

Pre-tax profil 4,342,689,0€ (1,621,491,249)
Current tax rai 30% 30%

Income/(loss) at the tax ri (1,302,806,71¢ 486,447,375
Other permanent differenc (65,793,04° (27,255,434)
Accounting inflation adjustme 256,952,6€ 411,082,207
Tax inflation adjustmel (2,372,156,28: -
Change in the income tax rate 306,391,91 (518,540,971)
Expiration of tax losst (27,417,53: (15,572,117)
Total income tax charge (3,204,828,99¢ 336,161,060

(a) Corresponds to the effect of the applicatiothef changes in income tax rates on deferred tsat@and liabilities, in

line with the tax reform detailed above, basedrenexpected year of realization. The impact ofctienge in the rate was
recognized in income for the year, except in treea# the adjustment to deferred liabilities geteztdrom application of

the revaluation model for certain types of propeptant and equipment, as it is related to itenevipusly recognized in

other comprehensive income.

Accumulated tax loss carry-forwards recorded byGbenpany which are pending use at December 31,:2019

Year $ Year of expiration
Tax loss for the year 20 175,535,05 202(
Tax loss for the year 20 279,953,58 2021
Tax lossfor the year 201 840,419,80 202z
Tax loss for the year 20 6,810,510,50 202¢
Tax loss for the year 20 4,311,846,53 202¢
Total tax loss carry-forwards at December 31, 2019 12,418,265,48(

NOTE 22: PROVISIONS

For trade For contingencies
Sale:
Balances at December 31, 2018 4,085,426 6,898,80(
Increase/(Decreas 81,567 (5,829,605
RECPAM (Purchasing Power Parii (1,511,229 (1,069,195
Balances at December 31, 2019 2,655,764 -

Provisions cover contingencies arising in the aadjrcourse of business and other sundry riskscthat create obligations
for the Company. In estimating the amounts and gidities of occurrence, the opinion of the Comparggal advisors
has been considered.
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NOTE 23: DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN - LABOR COMMITMENTS W ITH PERSONNEL

A detailed description of the estimated cost aadility for benefits after retirement granted tongmany’s employees is
included below. These benefits are:

« A bonus for all the employees retiring under thféedéntial regime of Decree No. 937/74, when reagti5 years
of age and 30 years of service, consisting in 1driss, augmented by 2% per each year of serviceeshng the
first 5 years.

« A bonus for service length, consisting in payin@ @alary after 20 years of employment (17 yearswfmmen)
plus another one every 5 years up to 35 yearsice(82 years, for women) and two more salariesiupaching
40 years of service (37 years, for women).

The liabilities related to accumulated bonusesséwice length and to the employee benefits plagstioned above were
determined considering all the rights accrued leyltbneficiaries until closing date of the year ehBecember 31, 2019,
based on an actuarial study performed by an indkperprofessional at that date. The actuarial neetijplied by the
Company is the Projected Benefit Unit method.

The amounts and conditions vary according to thieative bargaining agreement.

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Defined benefit plan
Non-current 24,886,66¢ 17,654,42(
Current 2,878,301 2,927,284
Total 27,764,967 20,581,704

Changes in the Company'’s obligations for benefi@ecember 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Present value of the obligations for benefits 27,764,967 20,581,704
Obligations for benefits at year end 27,764,967 20,581,704
The actuarial assumptions used were:
12.31.201 12.31.201
Interest rat 5.5% 5.5%
Rate of salary increa 1% 1%
Rate of inflatiol 41.70% 28%

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company doekavat assets related to pension plans.
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NOTE 23: DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS - LABOR COMMITMENTS WITH STAFF (Cont'd)

The charge recognized in the comprehensive statesfigrcome is as follows:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Cost of current service 6,905,58 21,325,40¢
Interest charges 5,384,860 3,139,667
Actuarial loss through Other comprehensive incom 4,028,480 1,736,451
Total cosl 16,318,92 26,201,524

Changes in the obligation for defined benefit plaresas follows:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Balances at beginning of y« 20,581,70¢ -
Cost of current service 6,905,58¢ 21,325,40¢
Interest charge 5,384,86( 3,139,667
Actuarial loss through Other comprehensive inc 4,028,48(C 1,736,451
Payments of benef (430,110 (98,950
RECPAM (Purchasing Power Par (8,705,55E (5,520,870
Balance at year e 27,764,96 20,581,70¢

Estimates based on actuarial techniques involveusigeof statistical tools, such as the demogratatiites used in the
actuarial valuation of the Group active personmeldetermine mortality for the Group active persainthe mortality table

“RP 2000” has been used. In general, a mortallljetahows, for each age group, the probability ghperson in that age
group will die before reaching a predetermined adextality tables are elaborated separately for rmed women, given

that both have substantially different mortalityesa

To estimate total and permanent disability duenp@ause, the table “Pension Disability Table 19888 been used.
To estimate the probability that the Group actieespnnel will leave the job or stay, the table “EBA has been used.

The liabilities related to the above-mentioned igshe/ere determined considering all the rightsraed by the beneficiaries
of the plans until closing date of the year endeddnber 31, 2019.

NOTE 24: SALES REVENUE

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Sale of electricity Res. No. No. 95, as amendeags ppo 509,337,10( 898,687,40°
Energia Plus sale 2,355,015,54¢ 2,640,305,77!
Sale of electricity Res. No. 2: 3,882,505,13¢ 4,643,199,67!
Sale of electricity Res. No. - 4,260,218,54- 2,587,521,20(

11,007,076,33. 10,769,714,05
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NOTE 25: COST OF SALES

Purchase of electric ener
Gas and diesel consumption at the p

12.31.2019

12.31.2018

(1,522,896,114
(110,171,311

(1,953,641,101
(566,456,157

Fees and compensation for servi (8,989,078 (11,452,567
Salaries and social security contributic (300,538,329 (235,222,860
Defined benefit pla (6,905,588 (21,325,406
Other employee benefi (19,668,644 (19,448,506
Taxes, rates and contributio (30,978,147 (27,683,025
Maintenance service (828,394,455 (701,222,279
Depreciation of property, plant and equipm (1,495,002,005 (1,386,468,763
Per diem, travel and representation expe (626,018) (1,800,218
Insurance (78,112,199 (74,295,691
Communication expens: (17,448,561 (16,348,198
Sundry (6,836,206 (11,999,986

NOTE 26: SELLING EXPENSES

(4,426,566,655

(5,027,364,757

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Taxes, rates and contributio (2,437,436 (7,268,778
Turnover tax los: - (33,075,271
Bad debts (81,567) 74,970
(2,519,003) (40,269,079)

NOTE 27: ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Fees and compensation for servi (207,182,909 (213,073,382
Directors’ fees - (484,618)
Salaries and social security contributic (61,075,919 (39,827,707
Other employee benefi - (696,850)
Taxes, rates and contributio (839,799) (3,899,813
Per diem, travel and representation expe (12,905,013 (7,155,385
Insurance - (60,638)
Office expense (4,956,246 (5,984,700
Communication expens (369,176) (1,038,318
Rental (7,685,178 (9,329,261
Donations (737,014) (14,966)
Sundry (3,268,859 (4,588,776

NOTE 28: OTHER INCOME

(299,020,113)

(286,154,414)

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Other incom 2,868,76¢ 5,493,12¢
2,868,76E 5,493,12¢
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NOTE 29: Other operating expenses

Penalty imposed by CAMMES

NOTE 30: FINANCIAL RESULTS

Financial income
Commercial interes
Interest on loans grantt
Total financial income

Financial expense
Loan interes

Commercial and other intere
Bank expenses and commissic
Total financial expenses

Other financial result

Exchange differences, n

Changes in the fair value of financial instrume
RECPAM (Purchasing Power Parir

Recovery impairment of property, plant and equipn
Other financial result

Total other financial results

Total financial results, net

NOTE 31: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

The basic earnings per share are calculated bglidigyithe income attributable to the holders of@wenpany's equity
instruments by the weighted average number of arglishares outstanding during the fiscal year.

12.31.2019

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
- (435,807,681
- (435,807,681)
12.31.201 12.31.201
135,751,25¢ 92,779,42¢
765,577,76¢ 245,042,76°
901,329,024 337,822,193
(2,298,898,868  (2,409,333,090
(435,842,707 (57,023,647
(3,586,914’ (20,806,848

(2,738,328,489

(2,487,163,585

(10,546,165,382

(139,427,825
10,788,792,48:

(205,350,080

(17,133,184,827

1,080,586,67!
8,631,428,41!
3,299,973,43!
(336,564,813

(102,150,799)

(4,457,761,110)

(1,939,150,264)

(6,607,102,502)

12.31.2018

Income /(loss) for the ye
Weighted average of outstanding ordine
share

Basic earnings (losses) per she

There are no differences in the calculation oflihsic earnings per share and the diluted earniegshare, as there are no

138,172,15
8.24

1,137,860,06 (1,285,330,18¢

138,172,15
(9.30

preferred shares or negotiable obligations corslertnto ordinary shares.
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NOTE 32: TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES

a) Sales of energy

Other related parties:
Solalban Energia S.
RGA

b) Purchase of gas and ene
Other related parties:
Solalban Energia S.

RGA (*)

¢) Administrative services and manager
Other related parties:
RGA

d) Renta
Other related parties:
RGA

e) Other purchases and services rece

Other related parties:

AESA — purchase of spare parts

BDD - Purchase of wint

AJSA - Flights mad

GECE- Acquisition of property, plant and equipm
ASA - guarante

f) Recovery of expen:
Other related parties:
RGA

GROSA

CTR

GECE

AESA

AJSA

Profit / (loss)
$
12.31.2019 12.31.2018
519,24¢ 11,629,24
102,218,25 131,519,78¢
102,737,503 143,149,029
(42,438,34C (531,666)
(1,760,622,61¢ (4,576,051,015
(1,803,060,958) (4,576,582,681)

(382,830,167

(341,393,48¢

(382,830,167)

(341,393,488)

(7,721,582 (9,306,506
(7,721,582) (9,306,506)
(1,470,568) -
(509,958 (2,965,606
(89,569,29€ (85.860.942
(39,829,16¢ -
(4,793,328 (7,354,933
(136,172,32( (96,181,482
2,330,880 (3,758,575)
12,038,426 14,505,610
83,266,114 47,772,427
- 29,116,377
40,035,256 16,599,034
- 1,228
137,670,676 104,236,101

(*) Correspond to gas purchases, which are pastligaed to CAMMESA within the framework of the NatluGas Dispatch

Procedure for power generation.
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NOTE 32: TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES (Cont'd)

Gain / (loss)
$
12.31.2019 12.31.2018
g) Interest generated due to loans obtai
Other related parties:
CTR (74,146,027 -
(74,146,027) -
h) Interest generated due to loans grar
Other related parties:
CTR 51,421,72: 34,270,97¢
GROSA 888,221 22,339,38¢
Directors/Shareholders 5,177,231 5,103,49¢
ASA 708,090,59: 183,328,90¢
765,577,76¢ 245,042,768
i) Gas pipeline works
Other related parties:
RGA (1,796,239 (119,076,576
(1,796,239) (119,076,576)
j) Construction work management service
Other related parties:
RGA (173,732,513 (159,239,008
(173,732,513 (159,239,008)

k) Remuneration of key managerial staff

The senior management includes directors (execatidenon-executive). Managerial staff's fees atebdaer 31, 2019
and 2018 amounted to $ 57,414,263 and $ 40,529:86Rectively.

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Salaries (57,414,263 (40,529,902
(57,414,263 (40,529,902
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NOTE 32: TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES (Cont'd)

I) Balances at the date of the statements of fiizuposition

Other current receivables with oth

related partie
AESA

ASA
CTR
GROSA

Directors/Shareholders

Other nol-current receivables with other parti

related partie
ASA

Current trade payables with ott

related partie
RGA

AJSA
Solalban Energia S./

Other current debts with othe

related partie
BDD

Current loans with other partie

related partie
CTR

12.31.2019 12.31.2018

10,279,48¢ 16,949,78¢

- 1,231,289,78:

8,764,917 431,623,57°
29,624,69¢ 36,484,66(
29,649,114 23,314,671
78,318,212 1,739,662,477

2,720,720,01: -

2,720,720,01¢

1,317,449,99. 724,497,79;
165,47€ 7,364,66:

- 476,014

1,317,615,47: 732,338,473
368,816 1,457,894

368,816 1,457,894
309,174,88: -

309,174,881
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NOTE 32: TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES (Cont'd)

[) Balances at the date of the statements of firsuposition (Cont'd)

12.31.201 12.31.201

Loans to ASA

Balances at beginning of year 1,231,289,78 183,658,653
Loans granted 2,398,349,77 1,076,962,310
Loans repaid (753,606,383, (41,604,242)
Accrued interest 708,090,59 183,328,908
RECPAM (Purchasing Power Parity) (863,403,743, (171,055,848)
Balance at year enc 2,720,720,01¢ 1,231,289,78.

The loans are governed by the following terms amdiions:

Entity Amount Interest rate Conditions

At 12.31.2019
Maturity date: 1 year, renewab

ASA 1,990,115,579 45% )
automatically for up to 5 yea

Total in pesos 1,990,115,57!

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Loans to Directors/Shareholders
Opening balances 23,314,671 30,987,690
Loans granted 16,185,75C 27,238,180
Loans repaid (6,512,676) (30,758,249)
Accrued interest 9,497,568 5,103,496
Interest forgiven (4,320,337) -
RECPAM (Purchasing Power Parity) (8,515,862) (9,256,446)
Balance at year enc 29,649,11¢ 23,314,671

The loans are governed by the following terms amditions:

Entity Amount Interest rate Conditions
At 12.31.2019
Directors/Shareholders 21,754,936 BADLAR + 3% Maturity date: 1 yea
Total in pesos 21,754,93¢
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NOTE 32: TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES (Cont'd)

[) Balances at the date of the statements of firsuposition (Cont'd)

12.31.2019 12.31.2018

Loans to GROSA

Balances at beginning of year 36,484,66C 90,791,173
Loans granted 149,924,26¢ 25,585,284
Loans collected (159,980,753 (68,941,154)
Accrued interest 888,221 22,339,388
VAT 6,799,884
Interest collected (1,829,923
RECPAM (Purchasing Power Parity) (16,376,871) (38,259,992)
Balance at year end 10,939,52¢ 36,484,660

The loans are governed by the following terms amutitions:
Entity Amount Interest rate Conditions
At 12.31.201
GROSA 10,294,335 35% Maturity date: 1 yea
Total in peso: 10,294,33¢
12.31.2019 12.31.2018

Loans to CTR

Balances at beginning of year 431,583,10¢ -
Loans granted 11,960,52¢ 450,052,694
Loans collected (347,095,881 -
Loans received (1,025,506,139 -
Loans paid 686,318,90¢ -
Accrued interest (22,724,305} 34,270,976
Interest collected (62,778,250) -
RECPAM (Purchasing Power Parity) 19,067,15z (52,740,564)
Balance at year enc (309,174,881 431,583,106

The loans are governed by the following terms amdtitions:
Entity Amount Interest rate Conditions

At 12.31.201

CTR (235,900,900) 35% Maturity date: 1 yea
Total in pesos (235,900,900)
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NOTE 32: TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES (Cont'd)
I) Balances at the date of the statements of firsuposition (Cont'd)

Receivables from related parties arise mainly ftansactions of services provided and fall du&é@rhonth following the
transaction date. No provisions have been recdiafetthiese receivables from related parties in dny® periods covered
by these financial statements. Trade payablesmittied parties arise mainly from gas purchaseséetions and fall due
in the month following the transaction date. Trantiges with related parties in conditions similarthose carried out with
independent parties.

NOTE 33: WORKING CAPITAL

The Company reports at December 31, 2019 a defidit2,635,959,206 in its working capital (calcelias current assets
less current liabilities), which means an increafs$ 678,098,514, compared to the deficit in wogkaapital at December
31, 2018 ($ 1,957,860,692). The variation is mathlg to the application of funds due to the progm#snvestment projects
developed by the Company.

With the aim of reversing the current deficit ia Working capital, GMSA and its shareholders angeeking to execute a
plan for refinancing liabilities in the short term.

NOTE 34: RESTRICTED ASSETS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Other commitments

Some of the contractual obligations relating togbpply of electric energy to large customers ef MAT at December 31,
2019 and periods in which those obligations mugubfiled are detailed below. These commitmentsarginated in supply
contracts (energy and power) entered into betweeiCompany and large users on the Forward Markatdordance with
regulations set forth by the Energy Secretariatufesolution 1281/06 (Energia Plus). They areraotd denominated in
United States dollars, entered into with privatstomers.

Total Up to 1 year From 1to 3 years

Sale commitmerits
Electric energy and power - Plus 1,222,475,078 942,227,786 280,247,292

(1) Commitments are denominated in pesos and have Vmdaad considering estimated market prices, basethe
particular conditions of each contract. They rdflde valuation of the contracts with private castéos in force at
December 31, 2019, under ES Resolution No. 1281/06.

Other contractual obligations arise from Negotiabldigations Class Il which are: (i) guaranteedAlpanesi S.A.; and
(i) secured by pledges on operating turbines, ggage on CTI, a reserve account funded by twagstiinterest and the
assignment of collection rights over contracts VBllAMMESA under ES Resolution No. 220/07 and ES Re&m No.
21/17.
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NOTE 35: STORAGE OF DOCUMENTATION

On August 14, 2014, the CNV adopted General ReasoliNo. 629 introducing amendments to its regutetion storage
and preservation of corporate books, accountingrdscand business documents. It is informed tleCibmpany has sent
for storage its work papers and non-sensitive infdion for the not yet statute-barred fiscal yéathe following supplier:

Entity responsible for warehousing of informatioDemicile
Iron Mountain Argentina S.A. — Av. Amancio Alcor2482, City of Buenos Aires
Iron Mountain Argentina S.A. - San Miguel de Tucum@&1, Spegazzini, Ezeiza.

A detail of the documentation sent for preservat®ravailable at the registered office of that gntas well as the
documentation referred to by article 5, clause,&8§tion | of Chapter V of Title 1l of the REGULADNS (N.T. 2013 as
amended).

NOTE 36: SEGMENT REPORTING

The information on exploitation segments is presgnh accordance with the interim information fgimed to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The Board of Dioeg of the Company has been identified as thedsighuthority in
decision-making, responsible for allocating researand assessing the performance of the operagments.

The Management has determined the operating sedrasat on reports reviewed by the Board of Direcémd used for
strategic decision making.

The Board of Directors considers the business amfja single segment, the generation and saléeofriity.

The information used by the Board of Directors decision-making is based primarily on operatingidatbrs of the
business. Considering that the adjustments betteeprior accounting standards and IFRS refer teomerating items,
such information is not substantially affected by application of the new standards.

NOTE 37: EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS TO PURCHASE MACHINE RY

BLC Asset Solutions B.V.

On February 21, 2018, GMSA signed an agreementBlith Asset Solutions B.V. (BLC) for the purchaseegfuipment
to be installed at the electric power generati@n{d located in Rio Cuarto, Province of Cérdobd, iarEzeiza, Province
of Buenos Aires, for expansion through cycle cleswat the two power plants. The purchase agreeseentorth financing
by BLC for USD 61.200.000, according to the irreale commitment signed on July 22, 2019. At the désigning these
Financial Statements, machinery amounting to USB g8lllion was received.
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NOTE 37: EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS TO PURCHASE MACHINE RY (Cont'd)

BLC Asset Solutions B.V. (Cont'd)

BLC Asset Solutions BV (BLC) expresses its willdamend the documents so as to reschedule the paynetatted to the
Contracts for the Purchase of Equipment. Under sochmitment, an additional year was added for éyanent of the
mentioned equipment, with the expiration date béiteagch 2023, which significantly reduces the paytadar 2020.

Siemens Industrial Turbomachinery AB

On June 14, 2016 a Deferred Payment Agreement mtaseel into with Siemens Industrial TurbomachingB; by means
of which, upon compliance of the preceding condiiset forth in the agreement, the Company obtatoedmercial
financing for 50% of the amount of the contrachsid for the CTMM plant enlargement, equivalent &KSL77,000,000.

The commercial financing granted will be repaidnstallments, with the first installment being pblein August 2017.
Payments shall be made in SEK.

On September 13, 2016, four Deferred Payment Ageagstwere executed with Siemens Industrial Turbdvinacy AB
for the turbines to be installed in CTE and CTI vy, once fulfilled the preceding conditions fixedhe agreements, the
Company will be granted a commercial financing @¥bof the amount of the agreement signed for tergement of CTI
and the work of Ezeiza, equivalent to SEK 438,960,0

The commercial financing granted will be repaidimstallments, with the first installment of two tie agreements
mentioned being payable in September 2017 andagiten March 2020. Payments shall be made in SEK.

Future contractual obligations related to the amitwith Siemens Industrial Turbomachinery AB aneven below by
calendar year:

(1) The commitment is stated in US dollars, on thesakthe time of payment according to the particatanditions of the

contract.
Commitments (1) SEK ' . Total 2020
Total financing
USsD
Siemens Industrial
Turbomachinery AB for CTE 177,000,000 | 5,582,598 | 5,582,598
the purchase of two
turbines Siemens SGT 800

In July 2019, the last installment of the deferpagyment agreement signed for CTMM was paid. Adddlty, with the
proceeds from the issuance of Negotiable Obligatibat took place on August 5, 2019, the deferegah@nt agreements
signed for CTI and CTE, Stage Il, were prepaidddotal of SEK 142,370,364. The payment of suckeements implies
the release of the guarantees associated with dgysements.
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NOTE 37: EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS TO PURCHASE MACHINE RY (Cont'd)
Pratt & Whitney Power System Inc

Generacion Frias S.A. signed an agreement witht Bré#lthitney Power System Inc. for the purchasetwf ET4000™
SwiftPac® 60 turbine, including whatever is necegdar its installation and start-up. The purchaggeement sets out 4-
year financing for USD 12 million by PWPS, uponyasional acceptance by Generacion Frias S.A. Thisuat is disclosed
under current trade payables for the equivalefit768,680,000.

Financing will accrue annual interest at a raté.67% and will be calculated on a monthly basi8®élays/360 days annual,
with interest capitalized on a quarterly basis.

NOTE 38: ALL-RISK INSURANCE COVERAGE

All-risk insurance policy with coverage for lossprbfit

The Company has taken out all-risk insurance cgeefar all the risks of loss or physical damageethikr it is accidental
or unforeseeable, including machinery failures lmsd of profit as a result, up to 12 months, diyeand totally attributable
to any cause. The aim of this policy is to coverltsses caused by the interruption of the aaviis a result of the accident,
both as regards the profit that is no longer olsdiand the expenses the Company continues to bspitelits inactivity,
such that the insured may be in the same finasitigdtion as if the accident had not occurred.

This insurance covers all physical assets of apg §nd description, not expressly excluded fromtéxe of the policy,
belonging to the insured or in his/her care, custardcontrol, for which the insured has assumegspansibility for insuring

against any damage, or for which the insured mgyiee an insurable interest.

On April 15, 2019, the all-risk insurance policyaif generators of Albanesi Group was renewed forther 18 months,
with a reduction of 5% in the annual premium raterfo loss ratio upon renewal.

Contractors’ all-risk and assembly insurance
Works for installation or enlargement of the capadeveloped by the Company are insured by a Cotatrsl all-risk and

assembly insurance, which covers all accidentalndoreseeable damages occurred during the execotiarcivil work,
including damages caused by acts of God, providatthey are not expressly excluded from the policy
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NOTE 38: ALL-RISK INSURANCE COVERAGE (Cont'd)

Contractors’ all-risk and assembly insurance (Cdint’

The policy includes delay in start-up (DSU) or aus& loss of profit (ALOP) insurance of up to 12 sy providing
coverage for the expected commercial profit mafgirsales of energy and power, discounting thealédei costs during the
period of repair or replacement of the damagedpeqgent.

Once all pieces of equipment are in operationnthe assets will be covered by the All-risk insuatitat Albanesi Group
has taken out, and which covers all power plantgpieration.

NOTE 39: SUPPLY CONTRACT WITH CAMMESA: AGREED UPON DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR THE
COMMERCIAL OPERATION OF THE POWER PLANTS

On June 30, 2016, GMSA —as seller— and CAMMESAbtg®r—, on behalf of the WEM, entered into the $yfwntracts
for the available power and energy supplied by @mé CTI. July 1, 2017 was the Agreed upon Datéosehe commercial
operation of the two power plants.

The commercial operation for CTE and CTI were gedrdn September 29 and August 10, 2017, respectivel

On June 28, 2017 GMSA made a filing before CAMMESHAI the ES, to inform them that CTE and CTI hafksedl certain
facts that could be considered as a force majexgster an act of God, which in turn adversely etife the possibility of
obtaining the authorization for commercial openatity the Agreed upon Date set on the Supply Caonthachis regard,
GMSA explained, argued, and produced the pertieeidience supporting the existence of certain factoot attributable to
the Company, which implied that the commercial afien was not obtained at the Agreed upon Datesd¢he Supply
Contract.

Under Resolution 264/2018 dated June 6, 2018, ieedy Ministry established that the penalties shaltliscounted from

the sum receivable by the penalized Generating Aged2 equal and consecutive monthly installmeats] that the

Generating Agent may opt to discount the penaltparhin up to 48 equal and consecutive installmeayplying to the

balance an effective annual rate of 1.7% in Un8&tes dollars, and the number of installmentd sloakexceed the contract
term.

Without prejudice to the above, CAMMESA has rejdc@VISA’s arguments and has set the penalties iratheunts of
USD 12,580,090 for CTE and USD 3,950,212 for CTI.

The balance of these penalties at December 31, 2@18f the present value, equivalent to $ 577,899 is disclosed under
trade payables.

In this respect, July 11, 2018 CAMMESA notifieddbhgh Note B.127925-7 the penalty amount mentiohed@and urged
GMSA to inform if it would make use of the optioat®ut by Resolution 264/2018.
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NOTE 39: SUPPLY CONTRACT WITH CAMMESA: AGREED UPON DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR THE
COMMERCIAL OPERATION OF THE POWER PLANTS (Cont'd)

In view of the foregoing, on July 10 and July 2818 GMSA made the pertinent presentations to CAMMESking use
of the option to discount the penalty amount inaw@8 monthly and consecutive installments, apgltmthe balance the
effective annual rate of 1.7% in United Statesatstithe number of installments should not excheaontract term and the
first installment payable shall be discounted amfthe July 2018 transaction, maturing in Septerabés.

The results of this transaction, as disclosed ur@#rer expenses, in the Statement of Compreherss@me, are
exceptional, unique and do not relate to the Comyganain line of business, therefore they are otstdered to be within
EBITDA.

NOTE 40: COMMITMENTS UNDER FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS W ITH RELATED PARTIES

On March 7, 2019, GECEN reached an agreement wéttiitors for the repayment of its debt for USD T®®00, which
was signed jointly by ASA and GMSA, as co-debtditsis debt will accrue interest on a quarterly basian annual rate of
13.09%, and will mature on March 20, 2023.

The balance at December 31, 2019 is USD 9,050,000.

A new supplementary agreement has been execut€@timber 23, 2019 for the remaining balance of US[Y48,563,
with the following payment schedule: USD 15,798,%&8rue an annual interest rate of 13.09%. Intexestued from
March 8, 2019 to September 20, 2020 will be capidl in December 2020. Principal will be repaidnine quarterly
installments starting in March 2021. This agreemeas executed by GECEN and secured by ASA and GMSA

NOTE 41: AGREEMENT FOR THE REGULARIZATION AND SETTL EMENT OF RECEIVABLES WITH
THE WEM

As instructed by the Government Secretariat of gty CAMMESA, through Note NO-2019-66843995 APNESBIHA,
the Company and CAMMESA entered into an Agreementtfe Regularization and Settlement of Receivabigls the
WEM (“the Agreement”), whereby CAMMESA settled tl8ale Settlements With Maturity Dates to be Deteeain
(Liguidaciones de Venta con Fecha de Vencimienefinir - LVFVD) pending payment, after discountitige debts
incurred with the WEM under financing agreementafual commitment and assignment of credits agre&sretecuted
by the generators, and applying a 18 % discoutitdaemaining balance.

In this regard, the parties agreed on a net amfaurdll items corresponding to the pending LVFV®nsidering the
restatement of interest at September 30, 2019 Asasvéhe discount mentioned above, which amount 150,682,077,
before applying withholdings, if any. Lastly, ontOiser 4, 2019, offsetting was performed and the /B outstanding
balance was collected.

79



Free translation from the original prepared in $gafor publication in Argentina

Generacion Mediterranea S.A.
Notes to the financial statements (Cont'd)

NOTE 41: AGREEMENT FOR THE REGULARIZATION AND SETTL EMENT OF RECEIVABLES WITH
THE WEM (Cont'd)

In compliance with the commitments undertaken,Goenpany abandoned all claims filed and irrevocaimyved to file
any (administrative or legal) claims against thiéameal government, SGE and/or CAMESSA in connectiith the pending
LVFVD.

NOTE 42: ECONOMIC CONTEXT IN WHICH THE COMPANY OPER ATES

The Company has been operating in a complex ecanemvironment whose main variables have recentiy ladfected by
a strong volatility, both nationally and internatadly.

The following circumstances occurred locally in 201

¢ In the first half of the year, a 2.5% drop in thBBSwas recorded in year-on-year terms.

e Cumulative inflation between January 1, 2019 anddbeber 31, 2019 was 53.8% (General Consumer Priex).

« The significant peso devaluation since August bdgsd an unexpected withdrawal of deposits in defleom the
financial system, thereby eroding the Central Baaderves, and to an increase in the referencesiteate, which
during the year reached over 80%. At year endrdference interest rate was close to 60%.

On December 10, 2019, a new national governmentirésination took office. In view of these circumstas, the
government decided to implement certain measureghware summarized below:

e Set up of a regularization system for tax, socgusity and customs debts for micro, small and oadséized
enterprises.

e Suspension of the employers’ contributions ratdication schedule.

« Power to the National Executive Branch to determia@datory minimum salary increases to workergérprivate
sector (with temporary exemption of the employand employees' contributions to the Argentine Iratgl Social
Security System of the salary increases resultioign this power or collective bargaining).

e Suspension, for the financial years starting oaftar January 1, 2021, inclusive, of the tax rathuction stated by
Law No. 27430, keeping the 30% rate and the 7%foatthe dividends for those years.

¢ Regarding the tax inflation adjustment, it was dedi that the amount determined for the first arubisé year
starting on or after January 1, 2019 has to beatém as follows: 1/6 during those fiscal years tedremaining
5/6 in equal parts in the immediate next five figaars. Likewise, such provision does not pretieetcalculation
of the remaining thirds corresponding to previoearg, calculated pursuant to the previous verdi@eotion 194
of the Income Tax Law.

« Decree on the increase in the withholding tax gooets (except for hydrocarbons and mining) anchanax on
Personal Assets.

* The Value Added Tax on basic food basket produets -established and the variability of pensiamefies was
suspended.
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NOTE 42: ECONOMIC CONTEXT IN WHICH THE COMPANY OPER ATES (Cont'd)

Additionally, the national government is prepariagBill to be sent to the National Congress withrappsal for the
renegotiation of the external debt with internagibereditors.

This context of volatility and uncertainty still fsésts at the date of issuance of these Finantagé¢®ents at December 31,
2019.

The Company’s management closely monitors the amimgvariables affecting business to define theses of action to
be taken as well as identify likely impacts orfitencial and equity position. The Company’s Finah&tatements ended
December 31, 2019 must be read in light of thesigistances.

NOTE 43 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Resolution ES No. 31/2020

SRRyME Resolution 1/2020 was published on Febr@@n2020, replacing ES Resolution No. 31/2019.

Firstly, the Guaranteed Availability for Power isaimtained of thermal generators and adds that gegation of the

generating park will be evaluated during 50 hoashemonth in which the maximum thermal requirem&nécorded, that

is, in the 50 hours in which the highest dispattthermal generation is recorded in the month.

Secondly, it maintains the same remuneration itantg now in effect: available power (actual powarailability and
DIGO) and energy (energy generated, operated ermrgenergy generated in the maximum thermal remgnt hours).

The following table shows the Base Price for thev®g according to the technology and scale (PrezBai3:

1. Power prices:
a. Base Power (for those generators not guaranteeyngwilability)

PrecBasePot
Technology/Scale [$/MW-month]
CC large P > 150 MW 100,650
CC small R150 MW 112,200
TV large P >100 MW 143,500
TV small P< 100MW 171,600
TG large P >50 MW 117,150
TG small P< 50MW 151,800
Internal combustion engines > 42 MW 171,600
CC small R15 MW 204,000
TV small P< 15 MW 312,000
TG small P< 15MW 276,000
Internal combustion engines42 MW 312,000
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NOTE 42 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Cont'd)

ES Resolution No. 31/2020 (Cont'd)

b. DIGO Guaranteed Power

Period PrecPotDIGO
[$/MW-month]
Summer:
360,000
December - January - February
Winter:
360,000
June - July - August
Rest of the year:
. 270,000
March - April - May - September - October - Novembe

Further, they add a DIGO power remuneration foermtl Combustion Engines < 42 MW.

All thermal units will be remunerated in accordamgth their average monthly availability when natder maintenance.
The DIGO unavailability will be recorded for any nvitaw or due to the failure to consume fuel alteckin the economic
dispatch.

In addition, power remuneration will be affectedthg use factor. If the use factor of the genenatinit is lower than 30%,
the remuneration of the Base Power or DIGO wilbffected by 60%.

Finally, generators will receive a monthly remutiera for the average power effectively deliveredtlie Maximum
Thermal Requirement hours at the price of the Pawétours of Maximum Thermal Requirement: 37,500M& (590
US$/MW).

2. Enerqgy prices
a. Operation and maintenance

Natural gas Fuel Oi.ll
Technology/Scale Gas Oil
$/MWh $/MWh
CC large P > 150 MW 240 420
CC small K150 MW 240 420
TV large P >100 MW 240 420
TV small P< 100MW 240 420
TG large P >50 MW 240 420
TG small P< 50MW 240 420
Internal combustion engines 240 420
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NOTE 42 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Cont'd)

ES Resolution No. 31/2020 (Cont'd)

b. It will receive $ 84/Mwh for Operated Energy.

Resolution applied as from the transaction in Fakyr2020. All values stated in Argentine Pesoshia Resolution are
updated every month 60% CPI / 40% WPI, taking tteedl transaction as basis.

Proposal for the purchase of Gas from RGA to CargilS.A.C.1.

On February 13, 2020, RGA, as a company engagertisale of gas, sent a proposal for the advangegat of the price
to Cargill S.A.C.1., so that it pays in advance thechase of gas performed, which was accepteti@isdme date. The
payment proposal amounts to USD 7,000,000, fatling on April 30, 2021.

The advanced proposal is secured by a surety bamdegl by GMSA that will be governed by the law#ojentina. Any
dispute in relation to this Surety Bond, interptieta and compliance will be submitted to the juiésidn and venue of the
Commercial Courts of the City of Buenos Aires, vilaivany other venue or jurisdiction that may cqoasl.

Resignation of full Director and Appointment of newDirectors and Composition of the GMSA Board of Diectors.

On December 27, 2019, the Company was informebteofdsignation of Engineer Roberto José Volonféladirector in
the Company, which was accepted by the Board ofédiors Minutes dated February 19, 2020, wherebpatinary
Shareholders' Meeting was called for March 6, 2@28ddress this resignation and consider the appeint of new Board
Members.

In the Shareholders’ Meeting dated March 6, 2028,number of Full Directors was set at 9 (nine) artive) Alternate

Directors. In this line, Mr. Ricardo Martin Lopeasvappointed as Full Director and as Alternate ddms Messrs. Dario
Sebastian Silberstein and Osvaldo Enrique AlbestddCwho join the current Board. Thus, the Compmsiof the Board

of Directors in office until the Shareholders’ Miegt addressing the Financial Statements at DeceBihe2020 will be

formed as follows: President: Armando Losén (Jife President 1: Guillermo Gonzalo Brun, Vice Riest 2: Julian

Pablo Sarti; Full Directors: Carlos Alfredo Bauz@scar Camilo De Luise, Sebastian Andres SanchewRalorge Hilario
Schneider, Juan Carlos Collin, and Ricardo Martipdz; Alternate Directors: Jose Leonel Sarti, JGaegorio Daly,

Romina Solange Kelleyian, Dario Sebastian Silbersted Osvaldo Enrique Alberto Cado.

NOTE 43: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TRANSLATION INTO ENGL ISH LANGUAGE

These financial statements are the English traoslaf those originally prepared by the Compangpanish and presented
in accordance with accounting principles generaltgepted in Argentina. The effects of the diffeenbetween the
accounting principles generally accepted in Argentind the accounting principles generally accejptéke countries in
which the financial statements are to be used havbeen quantified. Accordingly, the accompanyingncial statements
are not intended to present the financial positstatements of comprehensive income, changes ityemucash flows in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the countries of users of the financialeshents, other than
Argentina.
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Summary of activity at December 31, 2019 and 2018

1. Brief description of the activities of the issgicompany, including references to relevant simatsubsequent
to year end.

Pursuant to the provisions of General Resolution3$8/01, as amended, of the National Securitiea@igsion
(CNV), presented below is an analysis of the resufitoperations of GMSA and its equity and finahpiasition,
which should be read in conjunction with the accamyng financial statements.

Fiscal year ended December 31:

[ 2019 | 2018 | [ variation | variation % |
Sales by type of market GW
Sale of electricity Res. No. 220 335 537 (202) (38%)
Energia Plus sales 566 673 (207) (16%)
Sale of electricity Res. No. No. 95, as amendbd; gpot 220 162 58 36%
Sale of electricity Res. No. 21 580 193 387 201%
1,701 1,565 136 9%

The sales for each market (in millions of pesos)sirown below:

Fiscal year ended Decendier
[ 2019 | 2018 | [ variation | variation % |
(in millions of pesos)

Sales by type of market

Sale of electricity Res. No. 2: 3,882.5 4,643.2 (760.7) (16%;
Energia Plus sale 2,355.( 2,640. (285.3 (11%;
Sale of electricity Res. No. No. 95, as amendags ppo! 509.4 898.7 (389.3) (43%;
Sale of electricity Res. No. - 4,260.: 2,587.! 1,672. 65%

11,007.1 10,769.7 237.4 2%

Results for the fiscal years ended December 319 20d 2018 (in millions of pesos):
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Summary of activity at December 31, 2019 and 2018

Sales of ener¢
Net sales

Purchase of electric enel

Gas and diesel consumption by the plant
Salaries, social security charges and fringe
benefit

Defined benefit pla

Maintenance services

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Insuranc

Taxes, rates and contributions

Othel

Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)

Taxes, rates and contributic

(Loss) Recovery of turnover t

Selling expenses

Salaries, social security charges and fringe
benefit

Feesand compensation for servir

Directors’ fees

Per diem, travel and representation expe
Rental

Office expenses
Donations

Othel

Administrative expenses

Other incom
Other expenses

Operating income/(loss)

Commercial interest earn

Interest on loar

Commercial and tax interest p

Bank expenses and commissi

Exchange difference, r

Gain/loss on purchasing power parity (RECP;
Recovery of property, plant and equipment
impairmen

Other financiaresult

Financial and holding results, net

Pre-tax profit/(loss)
Income tax

Income/lossfor the year

Fiscal year ended December 31:

2019 2018 Variation Variation %
11,007.. 10,769. 237.¢ 2%
11,007.1 10,769.7 237.4 2%
(1,522.9 (1,953.6 430.7 (22%,

(110.2 (566.5 456.: (81%
(320.2 (254.7 (65.5 26%
(6.9 (21.3 14.£ (68%;
(828.4 (701.2 127.2 18%
(1,495.0 (1,386.5 (108.5 8%
(78.1, (74.3 (3.8 5%
(31.0 @7.7 3.3 12%
(33.9 (41.6 7.7 (19%'
(4,426.6) (5,027.4) 600.8 (12%)
6,580.5 5,742.3 838.2 15%
(2.4, (7.3) 4.¢ (67%;

- (33.1 33.1 (100%

(2.5) (40.3) 37.8 (94%)
(61.1 (39.8 (21.3 54%
(207.2 (213.1 5.¢ (3%)

- (0.5) 0.5 (100%,

(12.9 (7.2) (5.7 79%
(7.7 (9.3) 1.€ (17%,
(5.0, (6.0) 1.C 17%;
(0.7 0.C (0.7 100%
(4.5) (9.6) 5.1 (53%
(299.0) (286.2) (12.8) 4%
2.€ 5.5 (2.6) (48%.

- (435.8 435.¢ (100%

6,281.8 4,985.6 1,296.2 26%
135.¢ 92.¢ 43.C 46%
(1,533.3 (2,164.3 631.( (29%,
(435.8 (57.0 (378.8 665%
(3.6) (20.8' 17.2 (83%,
(10,546.2 (17,133.2 6,587.( (38%,
10,788.! 8,631. 2,157.« 25%
- 3,300.( (3,300.0 (100%

(344.8 744.( (1,088.8 (146%
(1,939.0) (6,607.1) 4,668.1 (71%)
4.342.7 (1,621.5) 5,964.2 (368%)
(3,204.8 336.2 (3,541.0 (1053%
1,137.9 (1,285.3) 2,423.2 (189%)
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Summary of activity at December 31, 2019 and 2018

Fiscal year ended December 31:

2019 2018 Variation Variation %
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Benefit plar (4.0) 1.7 (2.3) 135%
Revaluation of property, plant and equipn (2,589.4 7,052.: (9,641.5 (137%
Impact on income t¢ 648.< (1,762.6 2,410.¢ (137%
Other comprehensive income for the year (1,945.0) 5,287.8 (7,232.8) (137%)
Total comprehensiveincomefor the year (807.1) 4,002.4 (4,809.5) (120%)

Sales:

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2019 ratenbto $11,007.1 million, compared with $10,76®illion
for fiscal year 2018, showing an increase of $23illon (or 2%).

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019011 BW of electricity were sold, thus accounting 8%
increase compared with the 1,565 GW sold in 2018.

Below is a description of the Company's main reesnand their variation during the year ended Déezrl,
2019, as against the previous year:

(i) $2,355.0 million from sales under Energia Pluspanting for a decrease of 11% compared to the $2364
million sold in 2018.

(i) $3,882.5 million for sales of energy ResolutionsN220/07, representing a 16% decrease with regale
$4,643.2 million for 2018.

(iii) $509.4 million for sales of energy under Resolwido. 95 plus Spot, accounting for a 43% decrease w
regard to the $898.7 million for the same perio@@%8, as a result of the application of SRRyMEdRe&®n
No. 01/2019 which established new remuneration i@gisims.

(iv) $4,260.2 million from sales under Resolution No, @f 65% from the $2,587.5 million sold in the same
period of 2018.

Cost of sales:

The total cost of sales for the year ended Decer@beR019 reached $4,426.6 million, compared wil0%7.4
million for fiscal year 2018, thus accounting fodecrease of $600.8 million (or 12%).

Below is a description of the main costs of safeb® Company, in millions of pesos, and their hétraduring the
year, compared with the previous fiscal year:

(i) $1,522.9 million from purchases of electricity, wiiaccounted for a 22% drop compared with the 1805
million for fiscal year 2018, due to lower sales@# under Energia Plus.

(i) $110.2 million for gas and diesel consumption & pfant, representing a decrease of 81% as aghimst
$566.5 million recorded in fiscal 2018.
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Summary of activity at December 31, 2019 and 2018

(i) $828.4 million for maintenance services, a risd &% compared with the $701.2 million recorded stéil
year 2018. This variation was due to the variatiotihe dollar exchange rate and the start-up of nehines.

(iv) $1,495.0 million for depreciation of PP&E, up 8%rfr the $1,386.5 million recorded in fiscal year 0Lhis
variation resulted mainly from the higher deprdomtvalue under the buildings, facilities and maehy
headings due to their revaluation in 2019 and 2018.

(v) $320.2 million for salaries and social securitytriftions, up 26% from the $254.7 million recorde@018.

(vi) $78.1 million for insurance, which accounted fab% increase compared with the $74.3 million focdis
year 2018.

Gross income/(loss):

Gross income for the year ended December 31, 2@9$6,580.5 million, compared with income of $5,342
million for fiscal year 2018, accounting for a degse of 15%. This is due to the variation in theharge rate and
the commercial authorization of the new turbines.

Selling expenses:

Selling expenses for the year ended December 3B, @Mounted to $2.5 million, compared with the 344illion
for fiscal year 2018, accounting for a variatior$88.0 million (or 94%).

Administrative expenses:

Administrative expenses for the year ended Decer@beP019 amounted to $299.0 million, compared \thin
$286.2 million recorded in fiscal year 2018, acdmmfor an increase of $12.8 million (or 4 %).

The main components of the Company’s administraikmenses are listed below:

(i) $207.2 million in fees and compensation for semvj@decrease of 3% compared with the $213.1 millio
recorded in the previous year.

(i) $7.7 million in rental costs, which accounted fatezrease of 17% compared with the $9.3 millioreed
in the previous year.

Operating income/(loss):

Operating income for the year ended December 319 2@&s $6,281.8 million, compared with income 0f985.6
million for the year 2018, accounting for a 26%re®se.
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Summary of activity at December 31, 2019 and 2018

Financial results:

Financial results for the fiscal year ended Decear8fte2019 amounted to a total loss of $1,939.0anilcompared
with the loss of $6,607.1 million recorded in fisgaar 2018, which accounted for a decrease of 71%.

The most noticeable aspects of the variation are:
(i) $1,532.0 million loss corresponding to financialeest, a decrease of 29% compared with the $23164.
million loss recorded in fiscal year 2018 as a ltesflan increase in the financial debt generatgithbestment

projects and intercompany debts.

(i) $344.8 million gain on other financial income, aaating for a decrease of 146% compared with thet®r4
million gain recorded in the previous fiscal year.

(iii) $10,546.2 million loss due to net exchange diffeesn accounting for a decrease of 38% comparedtigth
$17.133.2 million loss recorded in the previousdlgyear.

(iv) $10,788.8 million gain on PPP (RECPAM), accountiogan increase of 25% compared with the $8,631.4
million gain recorded in the previous fiscal year.

Income/(loss) before taxes:

The Company reported income before tax of $4,3#4llfon for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2048ich
accounted for a 368% increase compared with theedb$1,621.5 million recorded in the previous disgear.

Income tax loss for the current year amounted t@®B8 million, compared with the $336.2 milliorcoeded in
the previous fiscal year.

Net income/loss:

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Comperyrded net income amounting to $1,137.9 million,
accounting for an increase of 189% considerinddbe of $1,285.3 million recorded in fiscal yead 20

Comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive loss for the period was wott845.0 million in the fiscal year ended DecembkerZ)19,
accounting for a 137% decrease compared with time geeriod of 2018, and included the revaluatioproperty,
plant and equipment and its effect on income tawelbas the pension plan.

Total comprehensive loss for the period amounte®B@7.1 million, representing a 120% decrease coaap®
comprehensive income of $4,002.4 million for theegeriod of 2018.
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Summary of activity at December 31, 2019 and 2018

2. Equity figures presented comparatively with pinevious fiscal year:
(in millions of pesos)

12/31/2019 | | 127312018 | | 1213172017

Non-Current Asse 42,112 37,141 24,681.:
Current asse 6,092.¢ 5,909.: 4,978.:
Total assets 48,205.2 43,051.0 29,659.5
Equity 9,259.( 10,066.. 6,063.¢
Total equity 9,259.0 10,066.2 6,063.8
Non-current liabilitie: 30,217 . 25,117.4 18,529.
Current liabilitie: 8,728.¢ 7,867.. 5,066.(
Total liabilities 38,946.2 32,984.8 23,595.7
Total liabilities and equity 48,205.2 43,051.0 29,659.5

3. Income statement figures presented comparatwiythe previous fiscal year:
(in millions of pesos)

12/31/2019 12/31/2018 12/31/2017

Ordinary operating incon 6,281.¢ 4,985.¢ 2,565.!
Financial and holding resu (1,939.1 (6,607.1 (2,988.2
Ordinary net income 4,342.8 (1,621.5) (422.7)
Income ta (3,204.8 336.2 799.f
Net income/loss 1,138.0 (1,285.3) 376.8
Other comprehensive incol (1,945.0 5,287.¢ -
Total comprehensive income (807.1) 4,002.4 376.8
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Summary of activity at December 31, 2019 and 2018

4. Cash flow figures presented comparatively whi previous fiscal year:
(in millions of pesos)

| 127312010 | | 1213172018 | | 127312017

Cash generated by operating activities 5,175.( 3,070.¢ 4,894.¢
Cash (used in) investing activities (4.929.0 (2577.0 (9.721.9
Cash (used in) financing activities (209.4 (345.3 3,632.¢
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 36.6 148.7 (1,194.4)

5. Ratios compared with the previous year:

12/31/2019 12/31/2018 12/31/2017
Liquidity (1) 0.7C 0.7t 4.44
Creditworthiness (. 0.24 0.31 0.3t
Tied-up capital (3 0.87 0.8¢€ 0.67
Indebtedness ratio ( 3.44 3.77 6.4¢€
Interest coverage ratio | 5.07 2.94 3.0t
Return on equity (¢ 0.1z (0.16 0.0¢

(1) Current Assets / Current Liabiliti

(2) Equity / Total Liabilitie

(3) Nor-current Assets / Total Ass

(4) Financial debt / annual EBITDA |

(5) Annual EBITDA (*) / accrued annual financiaténes

(6) Net income/(loss) for the year does not include Other comprehensive income)/tatkquit

(*) Amount not covered by the Audit Report.
6. Brief remarks on the outlook for fiscal year 202

Commercial and operating sectors

Company’s management expects to continue operatidghormally maintaining the various generatingsuté maintain
high levels of availability in 2020. The fact aoftioducing more efficient group machines to theckleity System would
imply obtaining higher levels of dispatch, and thasreasing the generation of electricity.

Financial position

In fiscal year 2020, the Company aims at optimiztedinancing structure, ensuring the proper ofi@naof power plants,
and obtaining financing for the closing to cyclejprcts awarded under Resolution No. 287/17.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SECTION 12, CHAP TER Ill, TITLE IV, OF THE
NATIONAL SECURITIES COMMISSION REGULATIONS, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER
31, 2019

General matters referred to the activity of GMSA

1. Specific and significant legal systems that impbntingent extinguishment or inception of benefits

included in those provisions.

There are none.

2. Significant changes in the company activities amilsir circumstances that took place during thedlisc
years corresponding to the financial statemeng, dffect their comparability with those presenited
previous years, or that could affect comparabilitth those to be presented in future years.

None.

3. Breakdown of balances receivable and debts acaptditheir aging and due date.

Salaries and social

Tax payables and

Defined benefit

Trade receivables Other receivables Trade payables Loans security liabilities deferred tax liability plan
$
Falling due within
First quarte 2,382,675,54« 1,774,639,341 2,398,242,53: 2,177,765,56- 70,036,06( 164,095,41: 719,57€
2nd quarte - 35,363,04¢ 195,144,26° 349,148,18! 2,983,271 - 719,57¢
3rd quarte 35,363,04¢ 419,230,00( 1,038,497,44: 2,983,271 719,57¢
4th quarte 113,681,25¢ - 303,117,18¢ 2,983,271 - 719,57¢
More than 1 ye: - 2,783,520,70! 1,466,099,37! 22,919,100,06' - 5,807,301,94( 24,886,66¢
Subtotal 2,382,675,54 4,742,567,39 4,478,716,17 26,787,628,44 78,985,87 5,971,397,35 27,764,967
Past du 655,609,38¢ - 1,601,326,22: - - - -
Without stated term - - 1 - -
Total at 12/31/2019 3,038,284,92 4,742,567,39 6,080,042,40) 26,787,628,44 78,985,87 5,971,397,35 27,764,967
Non-interest bearin 3,038,284,92 1,981,258,73; 4,403,938,66 - 78,985,87 5,826,490,87 27,764,967
At fixed rate - 2,731,659,54 1,676,103,73¢ (1) 24,981,506,26 - 144,906,48: -
At floating rat¢ - 29,649,11¢ - (1) 1,806,122,18; - - -
Total at 12/31/2019 3,038,284,92 4,742,567,39 6,080,042,40 26,787,628,44] 78,985,87 5,971,397,35 27,764,967
() See Note 17 to the Financial Statements at DeaeBih019.
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4. Breakdown of receivables and debts according tdilaacial impact of maintaining the balances.

) Type and amount of Closing Amount Amount
Captions foreign currency exchange recorded at recorded at
rate (1) 12/31/2019 12/31/2018
$
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale
Cast uUsD 1,400 59.69 83,566 80,762
Banks uUsD 11,844,234 59.69 706,982,344 94,717,164
Trade receivable
Trade receivable- Energia PlL USD 6,851,40¢ 59.69 408,960,60¢ 363,607,79]
Trade receivables - Res. No. 220/07 - Res1/19 - Res. No. 21/1f USD 41,341,272 59.69 2,467,660,544 1,800,665,904
Trade receivable- Rental of tank UsD 641,404 59.69 38,285,37¢ 37,000,745
Total current asset 3,621,972,44! 2,296,072,37.
Total Asset: 3,621,972,44! 2,296,072,37.
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payable
Related parties UsbD 22,037,389 59.79 1,317,615,47% 731,862,46(
Supplier: UsD 38,624,43¢ 59.89| 2,313,217,64« 239,784,27¢
Supplier: SEK 72,470,57: 6.46 468,493,26:| 1,774,984,42:
Financial det
Loan UsD 50,076,001 59.89| 2,999,051,72 3,433,002,27{
Total current liabilities 7,098,378,10:| 6,179,633,43
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payable
Supplier: UsD 24,479,86¢ 59.89| 1,466,099,37{ 1,271,319,75]
Supplier: SEK - 6.46 - 521,726,63(
Financial det
Loan uUsD 377,477,45¢ 59.89| 22,607,124,94| 19,477,583,53,

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

24,073,224,325

21,270,629,92

31,171,602,42

27,450,263,35

(1) Banco Nacién exchange rate prevailing at yeal-An average exchange rate is applied to

intercompany balance

5. Intercompany:
Participation percentage in intercompany:

There are no interests in intercompany.

Accounts payable and receivable with intercompany:

See Note 32.1) to the financial statements at Déesr@l, 2019.

6. Trade receivables or loans against directors, sgnanembers of the surveillance committee or their

relatives in the second degree inclusive.
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See Note 32 to the Financial StatemenBeaember 31, 2019.

7. Frequency and scope of the physical inventomatierials and spare parts.
The Company keeps a permanent record of its inviestoserifying it on a yearly basis.
There are no impaired, damaged, out of servicdlerassets.

Current values

8. Source of the data used in calculating the atiralues for the valuation of inventories, propert
plant and equipment, and other significant assets.

See Note 4 to the financial statements at DeceBihe2019.

Property, plant and equipment

9. Release of the Reserve for technical revaluatiben part of it had been previously reduced t@ebs
losses.

There are none.
10. Value of unused Property, plant and equiprdaatto obsolescence.
There are none.

Equity interest in other companies

11. Interests in other companies in excess dinfieauthorized by Section 31 of Law No. 19550.
There are none.

Recoverable values

12. Criteria followed to determine significant rgecable values of the headings Property, plant and
equipment and Material and spare parts, applid¢deabmit to their accounting valuation.

See Note 4 to the financial statements at DeceBihe2019.
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Insurance

Insured amount 208

USD 643,345,09
USD 160,919,24
USD 341,000,0C

USD 116,986,00

Insured amount 2019

USD 539,980,0C
USD 137,179,8€
USD 337,000,0C

USD 116,986,00

Kind of risk

Operational a-risk - material damag:

Operational all risl- Loss of profi

Contractors’ a-risk - enlargement of power plar- material damagt
Contractors’ all-risk - enlargement of power planéslvance loss of profit
(alop;

Civil liability (excess coverag USD 9,000,00 USD 9,000,00
Civil liability (primary) USD 6,000,00 USD 6,000,00
Directors and Officers liability insuran USD 15,000,00 USD 15,000,00
Automobile $ 7,329,001 $4,315,94

USD 10,000,004
USD 133,000,0C

USD 10,000,00(
USD 133,000,0C

Transportation insurance, Argentine and internaliomarket
Transportation insurance for turbi

Directors' bon $ 450,001 $ 450,001
Customs bor $152,389,25 $327,515,90
Financial bon - -
Environmental insuran: $90,476,47 $ 68,539,82
Contract execution bond $ 450,000 $ 400,000
ENES Bon $263,500,34 $377,863,47
Bond for commercigauthorization of projec $1,409,456,2¢ $414,485,31
Bond to secure offer maintenance -
Judicial bon $5,000,00 $ 5,000,00
Equipment technical insurar USD 305,23 USD 256,20
Personal accider $ 750,001 $ 750,00(
Personal accidents USD 1,000,000 USD 1,000,000
Life insurance- mandatory life insuran $ 68,75( $ 55,00(
Life - mandatory group life insurance (LCT, emplagmh contract law) Disability: 1 salar})l/e;;? Disability: 1 salar;le[:‘z
Death: 1/2 salary per ye | Death: 1/2 salary per ye
Life - Additional group life insurant 24 salarie 24 salarie

Insurance is bought at market values, which wideler accounting values.
Operational all-risk:

All-risk insurance covers all the risks of lossptysical damage caused to property owned by orrunde
the charge of the insured while situated in thegs) described in the policy, provided that sumimage
occurs accidentally, suddenly or unexpectedly, anadkes it necessary to repair and/or replace such
property as a direct consequence of any of the skered by the policy. This policy includes cegr

for loss of profit, with the aim of covering theskes caused by the interruption of the activitsea gesult

of the accident, both as regards the profit thataslonger obtained and the expenses the Company
continues to bear despite its inactivity, such thatinsured may be in the same financial situadi®f

the accident had not occurred.
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Construction all-risk and ALOP:

Contractors’ all-risk insurance covers all acciéérdr unforeseeable damages occurred during the
execution of a civil work, including damages caubgdacts of God, provided they are not expressly
excluded in the policy.

Regarding coverage for delay in start-up (Alopg, élxpected margin of the business for the saleerby
and power is insured, discounting variable costinduthe period of repair or replacement of thergve
occurred.

Civil liability:

These policies cover underlying civil liability tdfe insured, as a result of injuries and/or deétihicd
parties and/or damages to property of third partiaased and /or derived from the development@f th
insured activity and product liability, subjectth® terms, conditions, limitations and exclusionistained

in the policy.

They are structured as follows:

An individual policy for each of the Group compamieas taken out, with a compensation limit of USD
1,000,000 - per event and two reinstatements dihnie@ffective term of the poalicy.

In addition, an insurance policy common to all camips has been taken out with a compensation limit
of USD 9,000,000- per event and during the effectarm of the policy in excess of USD 1,000,000 -
(individual policies), with two reinstatements exsively for operations liability and without
reinstatement for product liability.

Directors and Officers (D&O) liability insurance:

This policy covers all actions or decision makirffgdorectors and/or executives as such, outside the
professional service or company where they workef@mple, dismissal of employees, hiring, finahcia
decisions, advertising and marketing, merger oruaitipns, shareholders’ statements, accounting
records, which may be performed with negligencéaaolt, error or imprudence and cause an economic
damage to an employee, shareholder or third pldpes not cover malicious intent.

It also covers the company in case of stock-exchataims or from holders of bonds or securities.

It covers the personal equity of present, pasuturé directors and/or executives, and the comgany’
exposure to capital market issues.
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Automobile insurance:
This insurance covers the damage to own vehicleslsis extra-contractual civil liability of thenmer,
user or driver of the automobile involved in anident where third parties are injured or die.
Personal accidents insurance:

Covers death and disability risks and medical &tierand pharmaceutical expenses resulting fronkwor
related accidents.

Transport insurance:

The Company has an insurance policy that covenspiatation of all generators of Grupo Albanesiamd
the modality of sworn statement to be presentedtinhpim arrears. It covers losses or damages oflgoo
of the insured as a result of its mobilization dgriransportation, which may be international,oradl or
urban, either by land, air or sea.

Directors' bond:

This guarantee is required by the General Compamies(Law 19550, Section 256, paragraph 2) from
directors of corporations and members of the aditnative bodies of other companies (LLC, joint &toc
company). This guarantee covers the Company inafasen-compliance with obligations by Directors
or Managing partners while performing their duties.

Customs Guarantees:

Temporary imports: this guarantee avoids the paymiepertinent duties for the entry of goods irtte t
country, provided that they are exported in a tdatermined, at which time the guarantee is released

Temporary export: the amount of pertinent dutiesgararanteed for the export of those exported goods
which will be re-imported.

Financial bond:

It guarantees that the money received by the custam account of advance, will be applied to the
effective compliance with the contract agreed upon.

Contract execution bond:

It guarantees the compliance with all the obligaiestablished in the contract and in the spetifics.
of the call for bids. This policy has unlimited dtion; it is released when returned or upon theipianal
reception of the work without observations.
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ENES Bond:
Staggered shipping: Import or export of goods byamseof the staggered shipping system. This bond
covers eventual differences arising from the teatment of partial shipments as compared to ortwaglo
shipment.

Judicial bond:

Insurance bond for judicial guarantees providegadlitts with an appropriate means to guarantee their
procedural obligations when the respective Codegoires.

These coverages apply both in cases in which tHigejthearing the case has ordered the lock of a
provisional remedy, and in those in which the cituisdn of a counterbond has been arranged.
Replacement of provisional remedies: the providioaemedy can be substituted by the defendant in a
lawsuit through this policy, thereby releasing ¢ogiity affected by such measure.

Counterbond: it is the guarantee that must be geavby the person who has requested the lock of a
provisional remedy to guarantee the damages thatanise in case of having requested it withouttrigh

Environmental bond:

The environmental bond for damage with group incégecovers the environmental bond established by
the General Environmental Law No. 25675, Sectigre®2equired by the enforcement authorities.

Technical insurance for contractors’ equipment:

It covers the damage that machinery and equipmaittreuffer from the moment they enter into use for
their specific function and/or are placed in steragcluding any transportation by land.

Mandatory life insurance:

Mandatory life insurance is a coverage that theleyap is obliged to take out on behalf of its enygles.

It covers the risk of death of worker in an empleyrrelationship, for any cause, without limitatsarf
any kind, 24 hours a day, in or outside the country

The insured amount is $ 68,750, as establishetlebiNational Insurance Superintendency.

Life insurance (LCT, employment contract Law):

This insurance covers underlying obligations fréva Employment Contract Law, if the company has to

pay compensation in case of a total and permarneabitity or death of the employee, whichever the
cause.
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Group life insurance A Multiple of salary

The Company has taken out a group life insurandieyp@n behalf of all Group employees. It grants
compensation in case of death, double severancénpease of accidental death, partial losses due to
accident, advances for terminal diseases, orgasgfant and birth of child after the employee’stdea

Positive and negative contingencies

13. Elements considered to calculate provisions whassmbes, considered individually or in the aggregat
exceed 2% of the equity.

See Note 4.15 to the financial statements at Deeeth 2019.
14. Contingent situations not accounted for at the dathe Financial Statements.
There are none.

Irrevocable advances on account of future subsongt

15. Status of the capitalization procedure.
There are none.

16. Unpaid cumulative dividends on preferred shares
There are none.

17. Conditions, circumstances or terms for the remo¥aéstrictions on the distribution of unappropeit
earnings.

See Note 14 to the financial statements at DeceBihet019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the President and Directors of

Generacion Mediterranea S.A.

Legal address: Leandro N. Alem 855 - 14th Floor
City of Buenos Aires

Tax Code No. 30-68243472-0

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the attached financial statements of Generaciéon Mediterranea S.A.(the
Company), which consist of the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2019, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for
the year then ended, as well as a summary of the most significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The balances and other information corresponding to the fiscal year 2018 are an integral part of
the audited financial statements mentioned above; therefore, they must be considered in
connection with these financial statements.

Board's responsibility

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the preparation and reasonable
presentation of these financial statements under International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) adopted by the Argentine Federation of Professional Councils in Economic Sciences
(FACPCE) as professional accounting standards and incorporated into the regulations of the
National Securities Commission (CNV), as approved by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB). Further, the Board of Directors is responsible for the existence of adequate internal
control to prepare financial statements free of any material misstatements due to error or
irregularities.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the attached financial statements, based on our
audit. We performed our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, which
were adopted in Argentina by the FACPCE (Argentine Federation of Professional Councils in
Economic Sciences) through Technical Pronouncement No. 32 and and its corresponding circular
letters on adoption. These standards require that we comply with ethical requirements, and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
from any material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and other
information disclosed in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
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judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor must consider
internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and reasonable presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant estimates made by the Company's management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements mentioned in the first paragraph of this report present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Generaciébn Mediterranea S.A. as of
December 31, 2019, as well as the comprehensive income and cash flows for the fiscal year then
ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on compliance with current regulations

In accordance with current regulations, we report, in connection with Generacién Mediterranea
S.A., that:

a) the financial statements of Generaciébn Mediterranea S.A. have been transcribed into the
Inventory and Balance Sheet book and as regards those matters that are within our field of
competence, they are in compliance with the provisions of the General Companies Law and
pertinent resolutions of the National Securities Commission;

b) thefinancial statements of Generacién Mediterranea S.A. arise from accounting records carried
in all formal respects in conformity with legal provisions which maintain the security and
integrity conditions based on which they were authorized by the National Securities
Commission;

¢) we have read the Summary of Activity and the additional information to the Notes to the
condensed interim Financial Statements required by Section 12, Chapter III, Title IV of the
National Securities Commission regulations, on which, as regards those matters that are within
our competence, we have no observations to make;
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d) at December 31, 2019 the debt accrued by Generacion Mediterranea S.A. in favor of the
Argentine Integrated Social Security System according to the Company's accounting records
amounted to $ 8,713,436, none of which was claimable at that date.

e) as required by section 21, subsection b), Chapter III, Part VI, Title II of the rules issued by the
National Securities Commission, we report that total fees for auditing and related services
billed to the Company during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019 account for:

e.1) 75% of the total fees for services billed to the Company for all items during that fiscal
year;

e.2) 40% of the total fees for auditing services and related services billed to the Company,
its parent companies, subsidiaries and related companies during that year;

e.3) 25% of the total fees for services billed to the Company, its parent companies,
subsidiaries and related companies for all items during that year;

f) we have applied for Generacion Mediterranea S.A. the money laundering abatement and anti-
terrorist financing procedures comprised in the professional standards issued by the
Professional Council in Economic Sciences for the City of Buenos Aires.

City of Buenos Aires, March 10, 2020

PRICE WATERHOUSE & CO. S.R.L.

(Partner)
Ratl Leonardo Viglione
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Report of the Syndics’ Committee

To the Shareholders of
Generacion Mediterranea S.A.

1. In accordance with Section 294 of Law No. 193b6,standards issued by the National Securities
Commission (CNV) and Regulations of the Buenos f\istock Exchange, we have examined the
statement of financial position of Generacion Medlinea S.A. at December 31, 2019, and the
related statement of comprehensive income, stateofiehanges in equity and cash flow statement
for the year then ended and complementary notethéfuwe have examined the Annual Report of
the Board of Directors for that fiscal year. Thegaration and issuance of these financial stateament
are the responsibility of Generacién Mediterranga S

2. Our examination was carried out in accordance wiandards applicable to syndics. These
standards require that the examinations of thenfilsh statements be performed in accordance with
current auditing standards, and include the vettifon of the fairness of the significant informatio
contained in the documents examined and their stamgiy with the information on corporate
decisions, which are known to us, as disclosetiénBoard and Shareholders' meeting minutes, as
well as the conformity of those decisions with tée and by-laws insofar as concerns formal and
documentary aspects. To fulfill our professionaties) we have reviewed the work done by the
external auditors, Price Waterhouse & Co. S.R.lhossued their unqualified report on the same
date of this report. An audit requires that theitaws plan and perform the work to obtain reasomabl
assurance that the financial statements are fresatérial misstatements or significant errors. An
audit includes examining, on a selective test bassudgmental elements supporting the disclasure
in the financial statements, assessing the acecaustandards used, the significant estimates made
by the Company, and the overall financial statenyaesentation. We have not assessed the
administrative, financing, marketing and operatinginess criteria as these matters fall within the
exclusive competence of the Board of Directors @indreholders' meeting.

3. Furthermore, with regard to the Annual Reporttfie fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, we
have verified that it contains the information riggd by Section 66 of the General Companies Law
No. 19550, Law 26831 as amended, and as regarde tmatters that are within our field of
competence, the figures shown therein agree wighGbmpany's accounting records and other
pertinent documentation.

4. We have verified compliance by the Directorsfiiice with the qualification bonds as of the date
of presentation of the financial statements at Ddw 31, 2019, as called for by item 1.4 of
Appendix | to Technical Pronouncement No. 16 isdnethe Argentine Federation of Professional
Councils in Economic Sciences.

5. Based on the work done with the scope descebesle, we report that:

a. Inour opinion, the financial statements of Geniérad/lediterranea S.A. present fairly, in all
material respects, its financial position at Decembil, 2019, its comprehensive income,
changes in its equity and the cash flow for thery&@n ended, in conformity with
professional accounting standards in force in ting @ Buenos Aires, and CNV regulations;
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b. As regards those matters that are within our coempet, we have no comments to make in
connection with the Annual Report of the Board oEbtors, any statement referred to future
events being their exclusive responsibility;

c. Regarding the independence of the external auditbes quality of the auditing policies
applied by the auditor and the accounting policié$seneracion Mediterranea S.A., the
report of the external auditors includes the regmegtion of having applied auditing
standards in effect in Argentina, which comprisdejpendence requirements, and has no
gualifications as regards the application of sutdmdards or professional accounting
standards in force in Argentina, and we have nemdgions to make in connection with the
accounting policies mentioned above;

d. The provisions of CNV Resolution No. 606, refertedthe presentation of the report on
compliance with the Code of Corporate Governanaeeibeen duly fulfilled.

e. As provided for by CNV regulations, we report that have read the report of the external
auditors, from which it follows that:

i. the auditing standards applied are the ones apgrbyethe Professional Council in
Economic Sciences for the City of Buenos Aires, alsthicomprise independence
requirements, and

ii. the financial statements have been prepared umdemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), adopted by the Argentine Federadf Professional Councils in
Economic Sciences (FACPCE) as professional acamyiistiandards and incorporated
into the regulations of the National Securities @ussion (CNV), as approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

f.  We have applied money laundering abatement andeandrist financing procedures, as
established by the professional standards issudidebfrgentine Federation of Professional
Councils in Economic Sciences.

In the exercise of the legality control falling fiit our field of competence, during the year weehav
applied the other procedures described in secth & the General Companies Law that we
considered necessary under the circumstances, @ahdwe no observations to make.

City of Buenos Aires, March 10, 2020

For the Syndics’ Committee
Marcelo P. Lerner
Full Syndic



